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In 1669, Beijing Tong Ren Tang was founded during
the eighth year of Emperor Kangxi’s reign during the
Qing Dynasty. Starting in 1723, Beijing Tong Ren Tang
exclusively provided Chinese medicine to the royal
family for 188 years, spanning the reigns of eight
emperors. Throughout history, Beijing Tong Ren Tang
has always been nationally renowned in the Chinese
medicinal industry. Over 351 years of dedication to
quality medicinal products, we have continuously
upheld our longstanding commitment to “Never cut
corners on labour and quality, no matter how complex
the process or how costly the materials”. Our self-
discipline is also seen from our motto: “Dedication
comes from the heart in the steps that no one else can
see”. We are meticulous in our manufacturing process

and strive for excellence, using superior crude materials

and meticulous technical skill. Only the most effective,
unique formulas are passed down and refined into our
famed products.

“Established as the sole Chinese medicine
provider to royal families, Tong Ren Tang is an
enduring national brand that has overcome various

vicissitudes — from recessions to enemy invasions to

the establishment of the People's Republic of China.
Tong Ren Tang is a truly a historical symbol of quality
and credibility.”

Quote from "Tong Ren Tang: Inheritance and
Development”by Bian Dong Zi
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INGREDIENTS
ROLE IN THE
FORMULAE OF
TRADITIONAL
CHINESE MEDICINE

In traditional Chinese medicine (TCM), herbal therapies
are generally formula based and single herbs are rarely
used. TCM holds that every medicinal substance has
its strengths and its shortcomings, and each ingredient
in the formula should be carefully balanced in quality
and quantity, in order to accentuate its efficacy while
reducing side effects.

The herbs are not simply added in a cumulative fashion
but combined according to particular principles. Firstly,
through a unique diagnostic process, physicians discern
the subtle patterns according to the symptoms of
the individual, which then guides them to determine
therapeutic strategies and to design or select proper
formulae.

As TCM physicians always focus on disharmony
patterns, combination of herbs should address these
presentations exactly. Since a TCM formula contains
multiple interactive ingredients, it is customarily to rank
the compositions in four groups when analyzing the role
they play in the formula.
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MONARCH MEDICINE E# |
The ingredient that exerts the_ major-and Ieading effects in a formula.
Generally, monarch drugs should constitute the largest proportion
of a formula; a competent formula usually only contains one to'tqu
principal herbs so that the therapeutic effects can be focused. ) =S
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MINISTER MEDICINE &

Minister medicine ingredient plays two different functions.
One is to support the monarch drug to exert major actions
on the body, and the second is to improve and treat the

- accompanying symptoms or coexist-ing disharmony pattern.

In comparison with the monarch drug, the minister drug -

usually has a weaker action.
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GUIDE MEDICINE {2

These are two different functions. One is to_flc.>rce the
~actions of the formula on the target meridian or area of
the body; and the second is to harmonize 'and"integrate
the effects on other drugs.
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ASSISTANT MEDICINE %2

The ingredients plays three roles in a formula. One is to reinforce
the effects of the monarch or minister drug or to treat the less
important coexisting patterns. Second role is to eliminate the
toxicity of the monarch and minister ingredients, or modulate their
harsh properties, and third is to provide paradoxical assistance.
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MONARCH MEDICINE || To clear away heat,femove tnxin || X '

[%%]

Bovis Calculus
FHER BT j .
HEVER - HEME :
Bovis Calculus is bitter _ R
and cool, and used to [_'.E 1
clear the heart and . Moschus
remove toxin, calm . MEEENERE
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Realgar used to help Bovis '
Calculus to eliminate Margarlta
phlegm and toxin .
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Cinnabaris
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Cinnabaris and Margarita
used to calm the mind and
relieve irritability

Wane?
ASSISTANT MEDICINE || To soothe the nerves ]]

Angong Niuhuang Wan has created by the famous Chinese practitioner (Wu Jutong)
in Qing dynasty. It is one of the three well-known products of Chinese medicine for
cardiovascular health problem. To clear heat, remove toxin, settle fright, open the
orifices. Febrile disease caused by pathogenic factors entering the pericardium, high
fever and fright syncope, loss of consciousness, delirious speech.
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TONG REN TANG AT A GLANCE IN 2020 JO020ER % —

JANUARY —H

e Held 2020 Overseas Conference in
Shenzhen with the theme of “Stay true to
our original aspiration, promote steady
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e |aunched the “online
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and sound development, keep our shop”, the online product e - ! B—
mission firmly in mind and carve a bright sales platform on our h i ™ BROg T
future” official website maEA cmev mieR  wmem

RANERETERIASAL TRHE RAABE T #Huh £

o

B RS MAIKK 2020 F8 T rEewevarArma) B AECREAE, e
Q -

JULY £H

e Beijing Tong Ren Tang Gulf FZLLC

FEBRUARY _H

Donated GLSPC with a worth equivalent

! art attended the first online “China - the
approximately HK$12.2 million to Beijing ,Z/ United Arab Emirates Economic and
Charity Association and Beijing Warm  — Trade Digital Expo”

Foundation
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SEPTEMBER J1H

e Participated in the Opening Ceremony of
TCM Theme Day and 5th Conference for
Overseas Chinese TCM Professionals
and signed a strategic cooperation
contract with Iflytek Co., Ltd.
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ER/FATBEAS  WEMNAARRKRE
ERABFETHRESESY

MARCH =H

e Established a “global coronavirus prevention
and treatment expert team” and started
“global coronavirus prevention and
treatment activities” as well as released
“Fuzheng Biwen Decoction” formula globally
B [Z2RHEMABEERA ] REECE
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e Launched the donation activities of “Care for
others and fight the Epidemic” to stroke
rehabilitation and the elderly of Hong Kong
Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited
and also Hong Kong Chinese Medicine
Group Anti-epidemic Alliance

e Walked into the live broadcast room of the
famous host Wang Han’s “Strides towards
Good Health”, introduced Tong Ren Tang’s
key products, and led the public to
maintain wellness
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syt ; — e Launched “Show Love and Care to Stroke
i 4 p Prevention 2020” and donated 1,000
Il oL dri 9%

“TongRen Caring Bag” to Self Help Group
for The Brain Damaged, NWURO United
and The Hong Kong Stroke Association,
the three social welfare organizations that
support stroke rehabilitation

St [[E{=RE = BH R /E 2020 - $5EE £ 1,000
B IECEZE] FI3RIEPEEREALHN
HEHE — SES  KRBERHFEL
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS SRS

Profit Attributable
To Owners of
Revenue Gross Profit Profit for the Year the Company
UK A Eilll F il VA= TS VAN
& {ca ]
HK$000 HK$'000 1078421 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx FiEx P 1270 Fign Fx
1,513,873 7 601,323
1,500,000 1,000,000 600,000 576,852 567 gg1 600,000 556,118 542,456
1,265,994 > (> (> < |
1,250,000 800,000 500,000 500,000
X X X
1,000,000 400,000 400,000
600,000 X X X
750,000 300,000 X X X 300,000
400,000 X X X
500,000 :
200,000 %X X1 IX 200,000
250,000 200,000 100000 X 13X X 100,000
X X X
0 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 0 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 0 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 0 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
The following is a summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for UTAAEEBENEHNBRFENCSAGEEUREEHEERE -

the past eight financial years.
For the years ended 31 December E{Z 12 31 HIEFE

2020 HK$’000 2019 HK$’000 2018 HK$'000 2017 HK$’000 2016 HK$'000 2015 HK$000 2014 HK$'000 2013 HK$’000
2020 T T 20194 F#Ex 2018%F THx 20175 T8 201645 TET 2015F FExT 20145 TExT 2013F T
Revenue Wt A 1,315,346 1,432,632 1,513,873 1,265,994 1,084,280 970,477 761,051 613,963
Gross profit £ 952,903 1,012,796 1,078,421 916,433 795,087 680,877 543,031 420,043
Profit before income tax Bk fr 5 %: 5i 7l ;& 685,895 689,222 720,898 610,966 532,270 456,614 355,219 271,466
Profit for the year FE ;8 567,881 576,852 601,323 505,512 439,880 374,578 294,698 227,548
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 7822 8 #4H A FE{5 E 542,456 556,118 580,720 489,967 420,315 354,249 287,124 220,001
Earnings per share (HK$) S8 2% G5 7T) 0.65 0.66 0.69 0.59 0.50 0.42 0.35 0.29
Dividend per share (HK$) SRR E (787T)
Final R Hf 0.24 0.23 0.23 0.19 0.16 0.13 0.10 0.08
Special interim 45 Bl HA - 0.72 - - = = = =

As at 31 December 212 B 31 H

2020 HK$’000 2019 HK$’000 2018 HK$’000 2017 HK$’000 2016 HK$'000 2015 HK$'000 2014 HK$'000 2013 HK$000

2020 F#E T 20194 T 2018%F T 2017%F T8 2016%F THBx 2015F T 2014F T8 2013F T8
Non-current assets JERENEE 484,022 494,506 424,621 405,768 398,176 372,795 312,890 251,493
Current assets REE E 2,932,947 2,643,815 2,746,464 2,354,887 1,956,646 1,654,190 1,319,651 1,158,622
Total assets #& = 3,416,969 3,138,321 3,171,085 2,760,655 2,354,822 2,026,985 1,632,541 1,410,115
Non-current liabilities 3£ BI & & 70,843 65,604 5,927 5,024 4,694 5,352 4,675 4,248
Current liabilities &1 & & 216,616 307,081 140,931 147,454 122,891 112,718 91,005 96,148
Total liabilities & & 287,459 372,685 146,858 152,478 127,585 118,070 95,680 100,396
Net assets EEFE 3,129,510 2,765,636 3,024,227 2,608,177 2,227,237 1,908,915 1,536,861 1,309,719
Financial Metrics ¥ #% 1512
Gross profit margin & Fl % 72.4% 70.7% 71.2% 72.4% 73.3% 70.2% 71.4% 68.4%
Net profit margin #fiFlZ= 43.2% 40.3% 39.7% 39.9% 40.6% 38.6% 38.7% 37.1%
Current ratio F Btk 3 13.5 8.6 19.5 16.0 15.9 14.7 14.5 121
Return on equity B&7< B 3k % 18.1% 20.9% 19.9% 19.4% 19.8% 19.6% 19.2% 17.4%
Return on assets EEE % 16.6% 18.4% 19.0% 18.3% 18.7% 18.5% 18.1% 16.1%
Dividend payout ratio JK .2 tb = 37.0% 34.6% 33.2% 32.5% 31.9% 30.7% 29.2% 30.2%

Note: There are changes in accounting policies in 2019 which the Group has elected to apply without restating comparative figures as Mzt : REBR2019FEHTEHEEEE  UAREHBEMERSEIAFTREFREALERH
permitted by the relevant financial reporting standards. & -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

In 2020, the world was frustrated by the sudden outbreak of the coronavirus disease 2019 ( the “COVID-19”). In the face of
the “common enemy” that swept the world, Tong Ren Tang offered the world Chinese solutions and Tong Ren Tang’s
proposal in preventing and fighting against the pandemic. The pandemic is a crisis but we also consider this as a turning
point. Although we are still shadowed by the pandemic, the Group turns this crisis into an opportunity and continue to
deepen the structural reform on the supply side. In addition, we are prepared for the overall development for the following
five years in which we channel our innovation, creativity and entrepreneurship into our blueprint for the future.

TONG REN TANG AS AN ACTION TAKER IN THE GLOBAL FIGHT
AGAINST THE PANDEMIC

This Year was full of obstacles as the COVID-19 pandemic further worsened the world’s economic recovery. Amidst the
pandemic, we took advantage of our industry’s unique features in contributing to global healthcare and hygiene with
Chinese strength. Envisaging the features of “differentiation” and “customization” brought by TCM, 20 TCM experts and
Mr. Tang Zuxuan (E1HE), the Great Master of TCM ([l & KA, jointly formed the Tong Ren Tang global coronavirus
prevention and treatment expert team and developed precise anti-pandemic plan with the use of big data analysis pursuant
to the strategy of “one country/one region, one strategy”. As a result, Tong Ren Tang publicized a total of 100 sets of
Chinese medicine “Fuzheng Biwen Decoction”, an anti-pandemic formula, for an aggregate of 50 countries and regions
worldwide within the Year, refreshing the world’s awareness to the unique effectiveness brought by TCM. Meanwhile, we
set up specialized epidemic prevention medicine counters in retail outlets around the world, provided services such as
online medical consultation and donated various anti-epidemic products to many places at home and abroad. Tong Ren
Tang was deeply concerned about the general well-being and therefore contributing its effort in the global fight against the
pandemic.

TONG REN TANG AS A REFORMER IN THE TRANSFORMATION AND
UPGRADE

The pandemic greatly challenged the traditional industry and it is a high time for transformation. We established strategic
cooperation with IFLYTEK and Yonyou Group at China International Fair for Trade In Services, making a milestone
movement in digital operation and smart transformation. Enjoying the benefits in technology brought forth by internet
applications, we set up a new official online shopping mall while opening shops on large-scale e-commerce marketplaces
and holding live-streaming marketing events. Taking a two-pronged approach featuring online and offline business models,
we are now further enhancing our structural reform on the supply side. As we propel our growth with our efforts on
transformation, we will avail ourselves of upgraded channels and constantly take its development speed and quality to a
higher level, thus securing a steady advancement on the fast track to quality growth.

14 Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2020
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

TONG REN TANG AS AN ENHANCER IN INNOVATION AND CREATION

The world remained facing unprecedented critical changes that were unforeseen for centuries. Nobody would grow without
making any change; and nobody would survive without any innovation. Innovation has been our driving force for further
development. Tong Ren Tang’s exploration in overseas was far from completion. During the Year, we initiated a series of
innovative measures and made effort in fostering our new source of growth so as to adapt to market needs and become
more responsive to market change. We further optimized our business structure and kept abreast of Hainan Free Trade
Port to gain a presence in innovative industry parks with the hope to secure more benefits brought from industrial policies
as well as geographical advantages that are conducive to our future. We launched a new marketing strategy named “One
Product, One Strategy” and diversified our marketing channels so as to solidify our brand image in all dimension. We also
endeavored to strength our efforts on information technology, explore opportunities for business development and seek
breakthrough during innovation.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2021, despite a variety of uncertainties in our development, the pandemic also brings in more
possibilities for business transformation and upgrade. The trend that the world becomes more open and cooperative
remains unaltered. In the era that China bases its development on domestic market and relies on two circles of economic
activity — domestic and overseas, and the era of mutual open among countries that continues to promote win-win
cooperation as well as responsibility and governance sharing, Tong Ren Tang’s TCM will play a more important role in
building a community with shared hygiene and healthcare, shared development and shared humanism.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The pandemic reshaped Tong Ren Tang, and embodied the greatness and dedication of expatriates of Tong Ren Tang
in overseas. Driven by their own innate benevolence, a number of expatriates of Tong Ren Tang chose to go against the
odds in the midst of the pandemic and abided by their original intention and mission, i.e. protecting the health of the
people, despite the rampant outbreak. Our team's actions showed everyone who believed in and relied on Tong Ren
Tang that there were always a group of honorable challengers fighting on the frontline against the pandemic to keep
more people healthy and away from diseases.

The healthcare of the globe needs TCM and it is the mission for Tong Ren Tang to promote the application of TCM.
Tong Ren Tang will always stand on the cutting edge of open development and endeavor in building a community of
shared healthcare and hygiene for the world and developing its overseas business. On behalf of the Board, | would like
to express our sincere gratitude and appreciation to all employees both at home and abroad for their loyalty,
selflessness, passion, commitment and efforts, our utmost salute to Tong Ren Tang’s employees who have been fighting
against the pandemic on the frontline, and to our shareholders, customers, business partners and local governments
who always back Tong Ren Tang’s foreign business despite the pandemic for their support.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

By virtue of centuries of inheritance as well as extended global presence,
quality development together with constant operation and innovation,
coupled with the ingenuity in ancient royal medicine and the adherence
to the tradition which is getting more potent as time passes,

Tong Ren Tang manages to overcome current difficulties in solidarity
and tides over challenges while securing opportunities in crises, thus
making every effort to develop into a worldwide provider of TCM-based
healthcare solutions.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

Since its foundation in 1669, Tong Ren Tang has been passed down for 351 years, yet are committed to uphold its
corporate spirit of “Nurturing kindness and virtue, Preserving tranquility and wellness” and considers serving for the benefit
of people’s health as its mission. Riding on its steadfast operation in overseas for decades, Tong Ren Tang’s products
have become renowned globally. The COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 has been rampant around the world which poses a
serious threat to human life and health worldwide. In this regard, Tong Ren Tang has actively participated globally in the
prevention and control of pandemic, with the hope to contribute Chinese wisdom and power and provide TCM-based
healthcare solutions, rendering both Chinese and foreign society increasingly aware of the distinctive advantages brought
forth by TCM.

Given the global outbreak of COVID-19, weakened market consumption as a result of stringent preventive and control
measures taken place in various countries, together with the intense trading relationship between China and the United
States, world economy turned sluggish. The pandemic hammered the world economy and posed difficult challenges to the
globe. In the Mainland China, as production and operation resumed in March 2020 and anti-pandemic prevention and
control became recurring, China moved faster in transforming into a new development pattern which suggested
development to be supported by two circles of economic activity — domestic and overseas — with greater reliance on the
domestic market as the main driver of the economy. In Hong Kong, local economy was hit hard to an unprecedented level
by the outbreak of COVID-19 as both local consumption and tourism were under severe impact. Currently, the pandemic is
still not fully under control, and its impact on the economy is uncertain.

Amid the newly challenging environment for economic development, the Group upheld its mission to promote the interests
of its shareholders and the Company as a whole and decisively took a number of contingency measures. For example, the
Group launched anti-pandemic products, diversified online sales channels, enriched the portfolio of our products while
investing more in marketing and promotion. The Group endeavored to broaden its income source and reduce its costs.
Securing a quality growth, the Group was determined to overcome current difficulties in solidarity and tide over challenges
to proceed with its projects in a pragmatic way. The Group took various measures to strengthen its branding and product
promotion to boost sales and minimize the negative impact of adversity on the Group. During the Year, the Group recorded
a revenue of HK$1,315.3 million (2019: HK$1,432.6 million) with a year-on-year decrease of 8.2%. Net profit reached
HK$567.9 million (2019: HK$576.9 million) with a year-on-year decrease of 1.6%. Profit attributable to owners amounted to
HK$542.5 million (2019: HK$556.1 million) with a year-on-year decrease of 2.5%. Earnings per share amounted to HK$0.65
(2019: HK$0.66), with a year-on-year decrease of HK$0.01. The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.24 per share (2019: HK$0.23).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Hong Kong Market

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020, a series of preventive and control measures have been adopted and
implemented in Hong Kong. As the pandemic becomes recurring, local economy in Hong Kong was further worsened,
together with weak performance of retail industry as a result of the precipitous drop in the number of tourists travelling to
Hong Kong, plummeting local consumption and surging unemployment rate, resulting in difficult livelihood and sluggish
economic development. As a result of the above factors, revenue generated from the market in Hong Kong during the Year
was HK$546.4 million (2019: HK$790.2 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 30.9% and a decrease of 53.8% in
same-store revenue. During the Year, the Group operated 22 retail outlets in Hong Kong, which was down by one than that in
previous year.

Retail Network

SERE

Australia B K K= Hong Kong &8 Singapore 03 The United Kingdom 2%
Brunei JX3 Macao &9 Sweden # £4 United States %8
Cambodia SRIfHZE Malaysia 55 % 78 22 BN Thailand %=

Canada JIZ X B}l New Zealand 7788 The Netherlands &5

Czech Republic # 5 Poland % B8 The United Arab Emirates i B2

Non-Hong Kong Market

The Group is based in Hong Kong and has a
global presence. In the face of the complex and
volatile international political dynamics and the
challenging global pandemic, the Group set up
the “Tong Ren Tang global coronavirus
prevention and treatment expert team” against
the COVID-19 pandemic, formulated strategy
called “one country, one region, one strategy”
(—Bl—1#h— %) to provide a customized
TCM-based prevention and control plan, and
publicized about 100 sets of “Fuzheng Biwen
Decoction” (#k iE ## /& &k ) with anti-pandemic
formulas for 50 countries and regions
worldwide, contributing Tong Ren Tang’s
TCM-based solutions for the prevention and
control of the global pandemic. During the Year,
the Group’s business network spanned across
major countries and regions in Asia, Oceania,
North America and Europe, with 47 retail outlets, representing a net decrease of one outlet as compared to the previous
year. As the outbreak of COVID-19 remained severe in Europe and the United States, the operation of two retail outlets,
located in Switzerland and the United States respectively, was suspended this Year in order to minimize economic losses.
In the second half of the Year, the outbreak in New Zealand became under control and consequently the Group opened
one more retail outlet there to further expand its market share in the local market. During the Year, the Group’s revenue
from overseas markets was HK$337.9 million (2019: HK$338.8 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 0.3%
while the same-store revenue increased by 12.6%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the market in the Mainland China, although the market and the shipment of goods were severely disrupted by the
outbreak of COVID-19 in the beginning of the Year, thanks to the fast resumption of production and operation in the
Mainland China in March, coupled with the highly-recognized potent effect of TCM in the prevention and control of the
pandemic, our revenue from the market in the Mainland China for the Year amounted to HK$431.0 million (2019: HK$303.7
million), representing a year-on-year increase of 41.9%.

Production and Research and Development

The Group kept focusing on its core business, while stepping up efforts in production quality management and
technological innovation, enhancing its development on product portfolios, and coordinating its planning and strategical
layout. Apart from that, the Group also strengthened its talent training and boost up its production efficiency, with the aim
to consolidate its foundation for further improvement and upgrade of the Group’s industrial production capacity.

The Group’s Production and R&D Base in Tai Po, Hong Kong obtained the GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice) for
Proprietary Chinese medicine certification, International Standard 1ISO22000 certification and the HACCP (Hazard Analysis
and Critical Control Points) certification. The Group endeavored to establish and improve its quality control system which
covered the whole cycle from project initiation, research and development, procurement of raw materials to production and
supply, so that full guarantee for the production of quality products could be provided.

During the Year, the Group enhanced the production capacity of products such as Angong Niuhuang Wan, Sporoderm-
broken Ganoderma Lucidum Spores Powder Capsules and Cranberry Collagen Prebiotics and successfully satisfied the
market demand for the products. Highlighting the Group’s innovation in technology, 3 new products, including Guizhi
Fuling Wan (X% 1), were examined and granted registration certificates for proprietary Chinese medicines, which
further enriched the product offering of the Company. In addition, the Group initiated a multi-dimensional upgrade on
packaging of Sporoderm-broken Ganoderma Lucidum Spores Powder Capsules, one of its key products, and successfully
made the product more accepted by consumers with various preference.

We will continue to develop new products in line with the development trend in general health in order to meet the
extensive market demand for regulating body functions and preventing diseases. With a focus on core varieties, greater
efforts were put into the development of independent intellectual property rights which involved invention patents, utility
models, appearance, copyrights, authorship, and etc. While expanding to the overseas market, Tong Ren Tang
continuously accumulated independent intellectual property rights, explored global patents layout and applied rules of
international intellectual property rights in order to protect and enrich the core values of Tong Ren Tang’s products. As at
31 December 2020, a total of 53 patents were granted (including patents in the Mainland China and Hong Kong) and 2
applications for international PCT (Patent Cooperation Treaty) patents were commenced. In addition, the Group proceeded
to file applications for 14 copyrights and received registration certificates of works in respect of all applications, which
provided sufficient protection for the dominant products of Tong Ren Tang.

Brand promotion

Tong Ren Tang adheres to its vision and mission as
known as “Healthy Life Global Choice”. Upholding the
wisdom accumulated for TCM passed down through
generations, Tong Ren Tang is not only serving as an
economic entity but also a carrier of TCM culture. The
Group launched a series of brand promotion activities
which further enhanced the reputation and influence of
the brand and facilitated the dissemination of the
brand of “Tong Ren Tang” and popularization of TCM
culture overseas.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The impact of COVID-19 in 2020 aroused consumers’ awareness to healthcare, represented by the increasing demand for
premium healthcare products. At the same time, we witnessed that the consumption pattern of the public changed. Selling on
e-commerce platforms became a more lucrative idea, and gradually became a new trend of retailing. For the market in Hong
Kong, the Group realized its new ideas by developing diversified and modern technology-based sales channels and an online
shop named Beijing Tong Ren Tang Online Shopping Mall (3t ZZ[E1{=% 48 £ 1) was launched in its official website accordingly.
The Group also opened shops on certain large-scale e-commerce marketplaces in Hong Kong and ventured into live-streaming
marketing events with sizeable e-commerce marketplace providers, which were well received. Under the pandemic, the Group
continued to diversify its access to new media and new retail channels, and make online live streaming events into regular
activities. The Group accelerated its process of going online and integrated various business scenarios to live streaming so as to
create synergy effects. In addition, the Group entered into a strategic cooperation with IFLYTEK to jointly set a new benchmark of
“Smart Chinese Medicine” (&2 E8). Apart from that, the Group entered into a strategic cooperation with Sino United Publishing
(Holdings) Limited to facilitate the promotion and dissemination of Chinese medicine culture, and also entered into a strategic
cooperation with Yonyou Group on the establishment of digitalized platforms for corporate’s operation to promote the
establishment of an international cross-regional management and collaboration framework for time-honored brands.

The Group redesigned new advertisements under the theme of “ Protecting the most beloved with the most precious” (AR¥ & -
FHEHE B), highlighting the dual natural ingredients and efficacy of Tong Ren Tang Angong Niuhuang Wan, its flagship product,
and broadcasted them on TV for the first time to draw market attention. Besides, the Group also managed to promote its products
such as Tong Ren Tang Angong Niuhuang Wan and those under Cardiovascular and Cerebrovascular Health Series through
newspapers, Facebook, WeChat Official Account Platform, official website, booklets in outlets and auto body advertisements to
further draw people’s awareness to its brand. Thanks to the success of the campaign entitled “ Show Love and Care to Stroke
Prevention “ for the last four consecutive years, the Group re-organized the campaign this year to continue the brand’s concern
for the community and the underprivileged. The Group held online healthcare seminars and distributed blessing bags for the
purpose of enhancing the image of the brand as a caregiver to the society. In addition, the Group launched a year-round program
named “TCM Healthy Lifestyle Column” to disseminate healthcare information to the public and familiarize them with Tong Ren
Tang and TCM culture. Against the backdrop of the pandemic, the Group initiated a campaign entitled “Care for Others and Fight
the Epidemic” to donate anti-pandemic materials to social groups in need to express the Group’s concern for the society. On the
other hand, the Group launched a retail campaign called “One Product, One Strategy” in Hong Kong, its core market, to promote
its “Care for Public Health and Discount Sharing” event in which the Group offered a number of discounts of healthcare products
to people in Hong Kong such that our sales performance could be improved.

In overseas markets, as the pandemic spread, the Group mobilized its stores worldwide to provide timely and effective TCM-
based anti-pandemic services for local people, and donated various anti-pandemic products to a couple of countries and regions,
so that our kindness as a Chinese brand can be expressed. For the purpose of further speeding up its development of overseas
markets, the Group proactively prepared for the cooperation with large-scale online marketplaces in Southeast Asia and worked
on the debut of the Group’s key products at the 2020 China Health Ecology Organization (F Bl 2 B & 2 (BI) £ B2 K ') and
participated in the first China-UAE Economic and Trade Digital Expo in which the Group was dedicated to promote TCM culture
and products under the brand name of “Tong Ren Tang”.

During the Year, Tong Ren Tang Angong Niuhuang Wan (E{Z% Z = 4 & #.) won the Gold Award for Cerebrovascular Medicine
(B4 M FAZES 58 ) in the “2020 Healthy Chinese — Brand List” (2020 2B Bl o f##4E) ,which further consolidated the
competitiveness of the Group’s core products. We were also awarded the prize as “Most Influential Brand in Asia: Traditional
Chinese Medicine — Most Trustworthy Brand” for the sixth consecutive years within the year. In the prevention and control of the
pandemic, Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Macau) Company Limited was honored as “Advanced Collectives” for its outstanding
contribution in the fight against COVID-19. Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Auckland) Company Limited, on the other hand, received a
letter of appreciation from the Embassy of the People’s Republic of China in New Zealand for Tong Ren Tang’s contribution to the
local prevention and control of the pandemic, and the image of the brand as a protector of public health was further strengthened
among the public overseas accordingly.

-.n:&.'e 1 mum nanliR
NE[ A dE[Ekallae

EEENRR M

20200 F ERBMBERBLE  HEENREZBER YR RERAFRAEEM - BE
ABRHEBEEAELSL FAEHTAHENELRNEE  BEAAHEEHRRED - €58
mE - ARERFEAS TCRERRABINHEERE  CREFHU LBRLRECE
WELEE AREREEREAESH TS TEHEANEEHRREBTEERY  ARRER
e RBZT  AEETTERAMER HEERE BRLEBRER(L  MEESRLE
B EZEXBSERARERT  EEHENRE - it AEBRNAKAREREKS
B BFTETER2TE NN EBHSHR(EE) ARARDERBMESE  REDEE
MAEWEEEERE  BAAERTEECXEFTLEL T LERBRESE  EDITEEF
FERCEREEEGBEERR -

FEBUTUEYE  FEBRPE]| AR 2HRARBIRERECEREFEANER
RERDRIIBNES  XEXRABRESHAARDTSRE B BE®RE - BE  HE
DNBFE -BEARY PIEEM EHESE EEECERE4EARVHMERRRS
Em E-SRSAMEIE SBEXEANFRNERIEACEESHPTRAIER  ~FE
BEERMETERSZHENET  BRENCTREESE  REELERESK - E-
TRADERELENER - WO AEEEH [ PRERFETER | 2558 A2R
BERREN  BERCERTEEX FAEETXFHERERCHEE RBOHRK]
T RARETENLESERBBRNAENE  RESUTABRNEET  AEEEBEERLVTSE
BEER-R-—RIZEXEREEIRCRE EERAZ]EY AEEBTRREHAZ AR
BEEREBE  REHERERA -

EBMLE  BERBEE  ARERSHELRMEREHRAREARTAERNFEER
ERE  AAZEERMNGERBEESENRER  TEPERENAERE - BMRENIT
BRRE FEERGRNEERBIAREGHET LA KBLEERVERBERSR
2020HEIREEX (AR ARAE; Y2HEETE - MHECEEZHFHES 3D
EERBEEYL EERCEEM

RE ECEZEFEARE2020FHE« REE | HONERESR  E—LEEKL
ERNBED SERMBERBISNERAREIREAR - PEEERESEEDME ]
CREEFCFRESHE - ARBEHES  EREACERF)ERARAKERETRESRE
RHERMICESE | REFS EREACE (R BRLATREPEARKNBETE
HAEEBENEHGE  BHECERDIEREBHERENER  TEARERENRE
KRE-SEBIRBUPRE -




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Human Resources Management
As at 31 December 2020, we had a total of 754 employees (2019: 798 employees).

The staff costs of the Group for the Year were HK$183.6 million (2019: HK$215.3 million), representing a decrease of
14.7% from last year. To ensure that the Group is able to attract and retain talents, remuneration policies are reviewed on a
regular basis. In addition, the discretionary bonus is offered to employees with outstanding performance with reference to
the Group’s results and individual performance.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the Year was HK$1,315.3 million (2019: HK$1,432.6 million), representing a decrease of 8.2%
from last year. With the sustained outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic this Year, a series of precautionary and control
measures has been implemented in the Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macao and many countries globally, the business
of the Group has been greatly affected, and the revenue was reduced accordingly. This Year, the revenue from Hong Kong
market and overseas market decreased by 30.9% and 0.3% respectively, while the revenue from the Mainland China
market increased by 41.9%.

Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit decreased by 5.9% to HK$952.9 million (2019: HK$1,012.8 million). The gross profit margin
increased from 70.7% last year to 72.4% this Year, which was mainly due to the slight change in the product mix from last
year.

Other gains, net

The Group’s other gains, net, increased by HK$21.2 million to HK$24.3 million (2019: HK$3.1 million). The increase was
due to certain entities in the Group received government grants from their local governments this Year under the COVID-19
pandemic.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses decreased by 15.2% to HK$168.9 million (2019: HK$199.1 million). The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in rental expenses along with the decrease in the number of retail outlets and
rent concessions in respect of certain leased properties, as well as the decrease in staff costs. Distribution and selling
expenses as a percentage to revenue decreased from 13.9% last year to 12.8% this Year.

General and Administrative Expenses

The Group’s general and administrative expenses decreased by 15.7% to HK$138.9 million (2019: HK$164.8 million). The
increase was mainly due to the decrease in staff costs and no impairment loss on inventories this Year. General and
administrative expenses as a percentage to revenue decreased from 11.5% from last year to 10.6% this Year.

Finance Income, net

The Group’s net finance income decreased by HK$21.8 million to HK$17.4 million (2019: HK$39.2 million), which was
mainly due to the decrease in finance income brought about by a decrease in the average short-term bank deposit interest
rate and the average bank deposit balance from last year.

Income Tax Expense

The Group’s income tax expense increased by 5.0% to HK$118.0 million (2019: HK$112.4 million). The increase was
mainly due to the increase in taxable income with higher tax rates for the Year. The effective tax rate for the Year increased
from 16.3% last year to 17.2% this Year, which was caused by the change in the proportion of the contribution from
entities in different jurisdictions to taxable profit.

Profit for the Year, Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company,
Basic Earnings Per Share and Dividend

The Group’s profit for the Year decreased by 1.6% to HK$567.9 million (2019: HK$576.9 million) with a net profit margin of
43.2% (2019: 40.3%). Profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$542.5 million (2019: HK$556.1
million), representing a decrease of 2.5% from last year. For the Year, the basic earnings per share were HK$0.65 (2019:
HK$0.66). The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.24 per share for the Year (2019: HK$0.23).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Resources and Liquidity

During the Year, the Group funded its liquidity by internal resources. Based on the Group’s steady cash inflow from
operations, coupled with sufficient cash and bank balances, the Group has adequate liquidity and financial resources to
meet the daily operations and working capital requirements as well as to fund its expansion plans.

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position with cash and bank balances of HK$1,847.1 million (2019:
HK$1,968.4 million). Most of the Group’s cash and bank balances were denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi,
and were deposited in reputable financial institutions with maturity dates falling within one year. The table below sets out
the information regarding cash and bank balances, working capital, total equity, current ratio and gearing ratio as at 31
December 2019 and 2020 and net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities, investing activities and financing
activities for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020:
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As at 31 December

Cash and bank balances 3 & & $R1T 564
Working Capital &E& ¢ O

Total Equity #4248

Current Ratio® i E Lk & @

Gearing Ratio® &f&LL & ®

R12H31H
2020 2019
HK$’000 T 7T HK$’000 T38 7T
1,847,137 1,968,366
2,716,331 2,336,734
3,129,510 2,765,636
13.5 8.6
3.39% 3.61%

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

Net cash generated from operating activities & & E B E A WIR S EH
Net cash generated from investing activities IR & EE) E A IR S F4E
Net cash used in financing activities @& & B 7 F 938 & 7B 58

™ Being net current assets
@ Being current assets divided by current liabilities
@ Being borrowings and lease liabilities divided by total equity

Capital Expenditure

During the Year, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to HK$12.9 million (2019: HK$17.0 million), which was primarily
used for the purchase of production equipment and the establishment of new retail outlets.

Major Investment, Acquisitions and Disposals

During the Year, the Group did not have any major investment, acquisitions and disposals.

Charges over Assets of the Group

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net property value of HK$11.3 million (2019: HK$10.5 million) has been pledged as
securities for bank borrowings. Such bank borrowings in Australian dollars bears interest at 1.5% plus the bank bill rate in
Australia per annum and is wholly repayable in 2023.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s main business operations are conducted in Hong Kong and other overseas countries/regions. The
transactions, monetary assets and liabilities of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi and US
dollar. During the Year, the fluctuation in the exchange rates of these currencies did not have material impact on the Group.

The Group did not engage in any derivatives activities and did not commit to any financial instrument to hedge its foreign
exchange exposure during the Year.
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OWNED PRODUCTS

T % = om

STAR PRODUCTS
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Angong Niuhuang Wan

Functions: To clear heat, remove toxin, settle fright, open =

the orifices. Febrile disease caused by pathogenic factors
entering the pericardium, high fever and fright syncope, loss of
consciousness, delirious speech; Wind-stroke coma, -
encephalitis, meningitis, toxic encephalopathy, cerebral

hemorrhage and septicemia with the pattern mentioned above.
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Active ingredients: Bovis Calculus, Moschus, Margarita,
Cinnabaris, Realgar, Coptidis Rhizoma', Scutellariae Radix,
“Gardeniae Fructus, Curcumae Radix, Borneolum
Syntheticum, Powdered Buffalo Horn Extract.
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Sporoderm-broken Ganoderma
Lucidum Spores Powder Capsules

Functions: To enhance |mmumty or the ererIy-and the
~ frail or the people wﬂh-\ow m functlon and for patients ,

after- surgery or medlcatlon.
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Ganoderma Lucidum

|-
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Lingzhi Collagen Capsule
ECREBE

Lingzhi Collagen Capsule consists
of premium quality spores powder
of Ganoderma lucidum,
Ganoderma lucidum extract by
advanced technology and Marine
Collagen Peptides and is easily
absorbed and taken.

EZREBREUBENREESHT
B EUARRARM R EZRE
NRBTRRERK  BESHAR
TR U AR R (RO B3

Annual Report 2020

Antrodia camphorata pléye an
important role in protecting liver
and improving metabolism,
reducing the rate of acute liver
injury caused by alcohol, as well

“as regulating immune function.
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Marine Collagen Peptide

| EEBEEAK

The product is made of marine collagen
peptides imported from Japan. These
peptides are got by enzymatic
degradation of scales of red snapper by
the specific technology. It is easily
digested and absorbed by human body

| due to its properties of small molecular

weight and high water-solubility. This
product is prepared as oral tablets with
grape seed extracts and jujube extracts
by the advanced modern process.
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~ginseng, and are manufactured by -
traditional p!reparailon method of_.
Koréaﬁ Red Gmseng Korean Red
Ginseng pan strengthen the
immune system, increase blood
cwculatlon aHI'omdant |mprove-
memory and fight fatlgue =Y
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Cervus Elaphus'Linnaeus
Collagen Capsule

The product contains collagen
peptides that are produced by
hydrolysis of the scales of Ocean
Lutianus Sanguineus via an unique
Japanese developed enzymatic
technology, formulated with Milk
Mineral Salt and Cervus Elaphus
Linnaeus, and is manufactured by a
modern technology.
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Rhodioa

Rhodiolae grows in high and cold

. areas. It helps enhance immunity,
anti-hypoxic, anti-fatigue and
enhance memory.
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Ultra Fine Pearl Powder
BHY R

The product helps settle spirit and
convulsion, clear the liver and improve
vision. It is used for treating fright
palpitation and fearful throbbing,
vexation and insomnia, etc..
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MAJOR AWARDS
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Most Trustworthy Brand (Traditional Chinese Medicine)
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ABOUT THE REPORT BRI

This report is the 2020 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (referred as the “Report” in the section headed “ESG
Report”) published by the Group. By reporting the Group’s policies, measures and performances in ESG during the Year,
the Report enables the stakeholders to know more about the Group’s progress and development directions in sustainability
issues.

REPORTING SCOPE

b The Report focuses on the Group’s businesses which are manufacturing, retail and wholesale of Chinese medicine

i products and healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments. The scope of the Report
covers the business operations of the Group in Asia, Oceania, the Americas and Europe!. Environmental KPIs do not
nr— - — include operating sites without actual operations and resource consumption. Due to the failure of providing raw data at

‘ H some operating sites for the Year, it is impossible to calculate their environmental performance. Data coverage of some

environmental KPIs may be inconsistent with the scope of the Report, details please find the notes in the corresponding
sections.

Env' ronmental} Ii REPORTING STANDARD

The Report was prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 “ESG Reporting Guide” (the “Guide”) to the Rules Governing

|
‘ o
| S o ‘ I a a n the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, with four reporting principles taken as the basis of preparation of the

Report. In compliance with the requirement of “comply or explain” provisions in the Guide, the Report also includes KPIs in
| the “Recommended Disclosures”. A complete index is appended in the last chapter hereof for quick reference according

Governance i o
e e— — P
™ The scope of the 2020 Report is the same as the year of 2019.
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ESG REPORT

ABOUT THE REPORT

RIF (T EIREBEKS

FAR MRS

Materiality

Quantitative

Balance

Consistency

A report should include ESG issues that
have significant impacts on the Group and
its stakeholders.

KPIs relating to historical data should be
measurable and, where appropriate,
comparable in order to evaluate and validate
the effectiveness of ESG policies and
management systems.

A report should provide an unbiased picture
of the performance in respect of ESG issues
and avoid any possible inappropriate
influence on a decision or judgment to be
made by report readers.

A report should use consistent
methodologies on statistics to allow for
meaningful comparisons of data over time.

CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL

All the information cited in the Report is sourced from the Group’s official documents, statistical data, and the management
and operational information collected under the Group’s system. The Report was confirmed and approved by the Board of

the Group.

FEEDBACK

Our continuous improvement relies on your valuable opinions on the Group. If you have any questions or suggestions

Actions taken by the Group

During the Year, the Group identified
material environmental and social issues
through online surveys. Please refer to the
section headed “Communications with
Stakeholders” for the detailed process of
assessment.

The Group continuously recorded KPIs and
made disclosure in a quantitative manner,
where practicable. In addition, the Group
engaged an independent professional
consultant to conduct carbon assessments
in accordance with international and local
standards to ensure the accuracy of the
data of KPlIs in respect of the environment.

The Group placed emphasis on accuracy
and objectivity in the preparation of the
Report, and described the difficulties
encountered and relevant solutions in
addition to descriptions on measures and
performance in respect of ESG issues.

Unless otherwise stated in the Report, the
Group adopted a statistical approach
consistent with the past and stated, where
possible, the statistical standards, methods
or assumptions adopted. Please refer to the
section headed “KPIs Overview” for details.

about the content or reporting form of the Report, you are welcome to contact us via email at ir@tongrentangcm.com.
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ESG REPORT

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

RIF 1t EBIREIGIK
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COVID-19 has posted unprecedented challenges for the world since the beginning of 2020. Facing the
outbreak of pandemic, the Group is committed to its corporate spirit of “Nurturing kindness and virtue,
Preserving tranquility and wellness”, and has doubled its effort to contribute its wisdom and strength for joint
anti-pandemic measures and promotion of public health, providing a way for both the Group and stakeholders
to get back on the normal track.

In the future when incidents such as crisis in public health and environmental hazards could become more
frequent, sustainability development shall play a more significant role. Riding on its well-established corporate
governance, the Board of the Group is responsible for monitoring the strategies in sustainable development,
risk management, policy practice and performance. Assisted by the audit committee and the risk management
Committee, the Board reviews and evaluates existing and potential risks and relevant solutions, including
sustainability-related risks. The Group plans to enhance gradually its sustainability management systems to
better integrate sustainability into its daily operations.

The Group regards stakeholder engagement as an important aspect in sustainable development. During the
Year, the Group invited different groups of stakeholders to participate in surveys so as to collect their ideas
and opinions. There are a total of 13 key issues identified by the Group, covering “Operating Practices”,
“Employment and Labour Practices” and “Environment”, as the foci of the Report.

The Group always put utmost concern on product quality as well as health and safety, which are regarded as
even more vital against the backdrops of increasing public concern and the outbreak of pandemic. In addition
to stringent standards on quality and safety, the Group also confirmed its strategies on quality development
and relevant tasks during the Year for the purpose of further strengthening its quality control in a more holistic
way. In response to the ever-changing retail and consumption patterns in the new digital era, the Group
developed a wide range of sales channels boasting the latest technologies to offer our customers with more
convenient and innovative experiences. The Group also focused on its core business, striving to minimize the
impact from its production and operations on the environment and to establish a harmonious, fair and safe
working environment for its employees.

Looking ahead, the Group will communicate with various internal and external stakeholders as always, while
reviewing and optimizing its practices for sustainable development. The Group will also enhance its reporting
standards to better respond to stakeholders’ expectations and comply with all new reporting requirements on
ESG issues stipulated by the Stock Exchange.

Ding Yong Ling
Chairman
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ESG REPORT

RESPONSIBILITY GOVERNANCE

RIF T EIREREKS

affgis

GOVERNANCE SYSTEMS

Good corporate governance is fundamental in guiding the Group towards sustainable development and achieving its
long-term objectives. The Board and the management of the Company maintain good corporate governance practices and
procedures, as well as oversee the risk management and internal control systems that cover those risks relevant to ESG
issues. For the purpose of enhancing the governance over sustainable development, the Group will build up by phases
governance systems in respect thereof, and review and formulate strategies and policies about sustainable development
applicable to the Group as a whole, thus facilitating the Group to secure opportunities related to sustainable development
and respond to risks arising therefrom.

The Group will continue to review the governance structure on sustainable development from the Board to the
management, functional departments and business units in the future, as well as sustainable development strategies and
policies applicable to the entire group.

EiGHIER
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management and internal control are an important part of the daily management procedure and effective ESG of the
Group. The Group has established a risk management and internal control system (applicable to ESG related risk are
included), which is continuously monitored by the Board with a review on effectiveness. Meanwhile, the Board is
responsible for determining the risk profile and monitor the risk management framework of the Group within the acceptable
tolerance for significant existing and potential risks, and their relevant control measures. To ensure an effective
implementation, a risk management committee is established by the Group to monitor the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system as well as the changes in risk. The committee regularly reports to the Audit
Committee and the Board. Our internal audit department prepares risk management reports semi-annually, which are
subject to the annual review and approval by the audit committee and the Board.
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Risk Management Structure

The Group’s risk management and internal control framework consists of 5 major elements and is based on the “3 lines of
defense” model:

& bR E TR AR e
AEEYEREERABERERQETHERTERE ROl SHHS] BABER
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Identification, Evaluation and Management of the Significant Risks Procedure

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board considers that the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are well effective. Such systems of the Group are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

For details of risk management and internal control system, please refer to pages 140 to 147 in this annual report.
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Major Risks and Response Measures Related to ESG
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Impact

b2

If human resources planning is
formulated without comprehensive
and strategic consideration, no
human resources strategies and
plans in line with the Group’s
sustainable development are
formulated and implemented, or no
competitive remuneration packages
or incentive systems in terms of
development prospect, salaries,
benefits, working environment and
training, etc. are provided, which
results in the Group having
inadequate talent supply (such as
professional Chinese medicine
practitioners, experts familiar with
overseas markets and professional
management personnel) for its
future development, the
development of the Group will be
subject to risks of restrictions on
human resource allocation.
BEADERNGSHRERZ 2 HIEMNE
BMEEE . REEFIEN B S AN5EEH
AFEERNADERERANSRE > 5
ERGEERREAR  HH - BA - TH
BIRRIFIE S EFERMEERFED
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HEHARERBERZBNADEREE
HIRBE

Major Measure(s)
FEEHER

The Group establishes overseas training center to train
various successors abroad through the master-
apprentice learning model as well as strategically train
overseas talents and maintains a backup talent pool to
satisfy the development needs of the Group and secure
the provision of talents.

RGN IEINE L - BB E TS E SRR B IMEA
BERBERAANS  WETHBEEMIATEERERBAT
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The Group works with tertiary colleges in Hong Kong in
personnel recruitment to employ talents with
professional expertise and multiple skillsets that meet
the development needs of the Group; puts greater
efforts in attracting and training local talents of overseas
markets and provides them with trainings on corporate
culture and professional skills, so that the local talents
of overseas markets can better integrate into the Group
and contribute their wisdom to and create value for our
overseas business development.
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Quality Risk
BEREk

Quality Risk can be divided into
four main areas, namely
procurement, production, testing
and sales: If the quality of raw
materials, proprietary Chinese
medicine and herbs provided by
suppliers does not meet the
requirements, risk on quality of
procurement may occur; If there is
inadequate control over the
production process, risk on quality
of production may occur; If there is
lack of testing procedures or if the
procedures are not stringent, it may
result in products in poor quality,
and mixed with other prohibited
ingredients, and risks on quality of
product testing may occur; If there
is quality problems on the sale of
Group’s Owned Products and
Non-Owned Products, the
manufacturers and distributors of
the products will bear the
responsibility. If the products are
not stopped and recycled in time,
there may be a risk on quality
liability for product sales.
BEERMRTMADBRE - £F - B8 -
SHEHDNALHE : BHERRMENE
B FRERRFREFFEER
BEAREERBEERR  BE£E
BEEERR  BERELEEER
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Major measures to address the Risk on Quality of
Procurement: Through materials testing, it prohibits
unqualified raw materials and auxiliary materials from
flowing into the production process; the Group enforces
the suppliers on proprietary Chinese medicine to strictly
implement product quality standards in various
countries and regions, evaluates and reviews export
suppliers on herbs to ensure quality; formulate
procurement and supplier management procedures on
retail outlets in individual regions to strengthen
compliance procedures.

RBEERMNTIZREER  BEYWRETRR > AKE
BEFSHRNEMBRBRRALERE  A5EEBER
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Major measures to address the Risk on Quality of
Production: The production management of the Group
strictly follows relevant regulations, workers in the
production workshop shall undergo training on
production techniques and pass the corresponding
examination. Production team leaders are thereof held
accountable for the production quality. Each production
process is recorded in details to ensure that it is
operated in accordance with established procedures.
SEEERBNTIRRYEER  AEELEEETEREHTE
BERE  £EEBE T X AKBEERMEIMNZZ  HE
SENMBERAELEEREER  LEBRPIFHEFH
i BREZRBHEENIFRERE-

Major measures to address the Risk on Quality of
Product Testing: The quality standards for products are
formulated for every types or products produced by the
Group in strict accordance with the laws and regulations
of the relevant countries or regions. Processes of
product inspection are refined while standard operating
procedures for each inspection methods are in place
and details records are made. The Group regularly
calibrates measuring instruments to ensure the
accuracy and credibility of test results.
ERRIESERABNTIZREER  A5ENEREER
EHZRRBBEARREBIEEERBERE SRS
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Major measures to address the Risk on Liability from
Quality of Marketed Products: The Group keeps abreast
of the changes in regulations on the external packaging
and labelling of products in the PRC; Retail outlets in
certain regions have drafted management procedures
for quality risk reporting, pharmacovigilance and
product recall and destruction to safeguard the quality
of marketed products.
HEERBEEEFERBNEIEZREEE  AREEZREKRH
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Major Risks

Related to ESG

BRI MR

EREREZ Impact
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Major Measure(s)
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Major Risks
Related to ESG
EHIRIE - HER
EREREZ
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Impact

£

Major Measure(s)
TERYHER

Business The Group may cause weak In strict accordance with the requirements of GMP Risk on Risk on intellectual Property Rights Major measures to address the Risk on Overseas
Partner Risk cooperation, affect the (Manufacturing Quality Control Regulations), the Group intellectual can be divided into three main Registration of Intellectual Property Rights. Through the
(Procurement development of the Group’s has formulated a complete supplier audit system, property rights areas, namely overseas registration agent appointed by the Parent Group, the Group
Partner) business, as well as adversely conducted audits and reviewed regularly on production 3 R R B of intellectual property rights, monitors the use of trademark of “Tong Ren Tang”

EREEBHE affect operating performance and

Bk (FREE S 1E financial conditions due to improper

) selection of procurement partners,
poor management and coordination
capabilities, unsmooth
communication of information, or
non-compliance with the
cooperation contract, etc..
AEMUEERESERNEERE -
ERGAENE  EMBEBTESE
RABFEERZNERRE  #5IH%E
FES  HELAEEBRENER B
REZEBERIBBARRIBRE T FILE -

material suppliers, updated supplier qualifications, and
also ensured that suppliers were involved in corporate
management, production management, and quality
management and other aspects which meet the Group’s
requirements. In addition, the Group strictly implements
the review system for the new suppliers who
cooperated for the first time, carries out a small amount
of purchases when conditions permit, operates in
accordance with the normal procurement process, and
explores operations such as import and export
procedures, taxation, customs clearance, and
transportation.

AEEBRBRRBCGMP (EEMEEFRE) ER - FIETE
WAtER ST HE  BAEEMREERETET IFE XX
HEE FHMHENEE  BRUBHELXER  £EE
BNESEEETHBHFEAEEER - B/ HRERE
ENEER  AEBBRRATHHERNERSE » ZERME
RFT  ETNENRE  REESRBRERE RRE
HAFE - B B ERERE-

trademark licensing agreements
and intellectual property rights. In
the event that the trademark “Tong
Ren Tang” is registered by any
other entity or individual or a patent
application is filed overseas, there
will be risks of overseas intellectual
property registration; If the Parent
Group terminates or amends the
“Tong Ren Tang” trademark license
agreement and authorization letter
entered into with the Group, there
may be risks on trademark license
agreement; if competitors copy the
Group’s research and development
results, there may be intellectual
property risks occur.

AR ERRB D BeIMEERR
i - EAREF A - AEEEE=KE
H:A[ECE|BRESIMREME

overseas and sees if the trademark has been registered
by any other entity or individual or if any patents have
been filed overseas.
BINABERIMRARNEIZREER AEEEEREE
ZAENREBERSMIECEIBE  BEAEEIREESR
WHABB A A EMREFIERFOER

Major measures to address the risk on Trademark
Licensing Agreements: The Group closely
communicates with the Parent Group, and promptly
updates and formulates contingency measures where
there is any change to trademark licensing agreements
is made by the Parent Group.

BRI HERRNEEREER  AEEREGERE
B NBEEHEERESHEEMNEE  E-HERES
IR IR o

Major measures to address the risk on Intellectual
Property Rights: The Group cooperates with
professional institutions and commissions them to apply

Price The prices of TCM herbs may The Group controls the cost for procurement in the PRC SRBATMREFHER - SE AL for various intellectual property rights and patents for
(procurement fluctuate significantly due to factors by identifying new suppliers, diversifying supply EAENIREEIRERR | EOEE the Group’s achievement in research and development.
price) risk such as production volume and channels and comparing prices via inquiries. The Group &OF ST B E A > [F 2 AR BN A EE SSRGS AE . B
EEERRE (FE demand for TCM herbs, pays close attention to the market conditions and EEEEA AR BT TR S5 7 S RS £ P % O S A~ R o

fE18) environmental protection and policies of TCM herbs so as to provide timely FESTHEEAR BT TR

contingencies (such as climate
disasters and epidemic outbreaks)
and affect the entire industry chain
and accordingly the procurement
prices of raw materials, auxiliary
materials and proprietary Chinese
medicine, thereby increasing the
Group’s uncertainty in cost control.
EH(RBELE RERB)ERER
» BB EM I EREERIBE AR
B EEBMRERE RE - BRE
R ERNRBEREZRBHE - BN
REBHRAZZNIHEEML -

communication with overseas end-users on
procurement status, the Group can thus have
quotations from suppliers in advance and ensure the
most appropriate price for procurement can be
obtained.

REBEPERANRE  SRBIZIEMAER  AEME
BE ZHAGLE  ZRREEE BB EREMT
1B PEMNBEER REEEBNMRHEREFBERESE
W RAIEMERAE  BRUARSENERETEES -

In order to cope with the increase in the procurement
price of certain scare TCM herbs, the Group actively
purchases such herbs in the international market as
inventory.

BEHEREREMNRBEE LA AEBRBRBEERS
SEREAEBYRMERRRE

Annual Report 2020

SEMBKR BB UREEARER
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Management on Compliance

It is fundamental for the Group to operate in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. The Group understands
that non-compliance with law and regulation will have an impact on the Group at different levels, ranging from business
operations and reputation to penalties and litigations. As various national laws, regulations and policies in the TCM industry
continue to be refined and implemented, the Group will put utmost importance on ensuring operational compliance as it
always does. Our audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s policies and practices formulated as required
by legal and regulatory requirements, while the Board reviews the Group’s compliance on an annual basis. The Group set
out the relevant corporate rules in its “Staff Manual” to be followed by its staff, including certain provisions relating to laws
and regulations. In order to maintain a high degree of transparency, the Group reports its compliance in accordance with
the Guides in its annual report. The Group will continue to review the laws and regulations applicable to its operations and

their impact on the Group.

BHEH

BIMEERNEREREARAEEREETNERER - ARERAEREZERAISAAKETRTEABEANTE - M
ERgE BB NEARFAE WEPBETEXSBEAEIAIARRTEHALER  F2REREERBREESHAREER
BE ERZESAEEEASEARETEAREEERNBERER ESSSFEHNAEEASRER - ARER(E
IFMARTHAEIAETHBENARARE  BE - LEEAEERAEBNMKY - ARESEHE  AEESFEFRY BB
SDERSRBR - AXEBSESREARAEENEERAN  URBEEERAIHAKENTE

Issue(s)
35

Business ethic
[EEFEE

Anti-corruption
RES

Operation

EE

Health and safety of
products and services
EmMNREREEEZ2

Compliance Performance
ERRR

No report, litigation and non-
compliance in relation to
corruption.
BERESHERER FAR
HREEERBER -

There was no cases of non-
compliance in relation to the
quality and safety of products.
BEEFREMMERZENELES
ERMEER -

Principal Laws and Regulations

(including but not limited to)
ERTEAXEEREAMN (BFEETRR)

Areas
]

Employee
BT

Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
KB L B B 1R 51)

Environment
RIR

Chinese Medicine Ordinance
(G- 303D

Regulation of Registered
Proprietary Chinese Medicines
R EE AR

Food Adulteration (Metallic
Contamination) Regulations of
Centre for Food Safety
BERYREZHO(RYBHE (£
BHEZE) R

Pesticide Residues in Food
Regulation

(R RERE HIE 8852 61)
Food Safety Ordinance
(RUZZHRG))

Advertising and
labelling of products
and services
EnRBRBEEERER

No non-compliance in relation
to advertising and labelling, and
no complaints on advertisement
and product labelling.
BERESREBENERESN
TAREEFREEREREERMN
B o

Undesirable Medical
Advertisements Ordinance and
the Trade Descriptions
Ordinance

(TRES (BZ) 6 RBEm
R R 51)

Customer privacy

EFEALE
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No non-compliance in relation
to customer privacy and
intellectual property rights.
EEHTFPABRABERNE
FESUI

Annual Report 2020

Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance

CEAE R (FABE) R A1)

Issue(s)
3

Employment system

ERHIE

Compliance Performance

BRRE

No non-compliance in relation
to employment.
EEREBHELERMBER-

Principal Laws and Regulations
(including but not limited to)
ERETEXEREASN (BFEETRR)

Employment Ordinance
(IR B

e Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance
(EEHEFRG)

e Minimum Wage Ordinance

(RAE T E 55

Labour standard
(prevention of child
labour and forced
labour)
SBIEA(BFLEETR
BWEET)

No non-compliance in relation
to labour standard.
EEES TRANELERMBER -

e Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance and various
discrimination ordinances
CEAER (R RFI) R &L
RARBI

Health and safety of
employee
EIREREZE

Emission

2958

No case in relation to health and
safety of employee was
identified.
BEAEIRERZEZMERRK
HE °

No non-compliance in relation
to emission.

BERERNNELIERMER -

e QOccupational Safety and Health
Ordinance
(¥R 2 REERDD

e Air Pollution Control Ordinance
(Z=R 5 LE SIEA)

e Ozone Layer Protection
Ordinance
CIREREREHRH1)

e Water Pollution Control
Ordinance
KR35 2B HIR A1)

e \Waste Disposal Ordinance

(R R BRG]
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH STAKEHOLDERS HRifn&EiEil

e

b

We believe the participation of
stakeholders is an important part in the
business development. The stakeholders’
opinion helps the Group to establish

a more comprehensive sustainability

development strategy.

HMEGEKRNEERERTE
HRN—BEZTEHD KA
sNERENNEEEYR
BEnosESRRE -

<k

Regular Communication with Stakeholders

The participation of stakeholders® is essential to the Group’s business
development. Understanding their views allows the Group to review
potential risks and opportunities so that the business practices of the

Group can be more in line with their needs and expectations.

The Group is dedicated to establishing an open and transparent
communication mechanism. During the Year, the Group
communicated with its stakeholders through various channels. The
specific types of stakeholders and for communication and the
communication methods are shown below:

Stakeholders Communication Focus Communication Channels
H0E BEEY BRER

BEENGAERENT

BFHEOSHERAKENEBERREREEZD
EE -BEBNENER  EHAKEERER
MEMRERE  SAKENERERERTMMA
WEEMHME -

FEBYNEBLAMEANEERT  XFEB
SEREEFNEER  ARESOEANRES
EEMBENT

The Board, senior The Group understands the needs of its employees e Questionnaires
management and through various channels, such as performance appraisals BERAE
employees and questionnaires, and encourages communication e Suggestion boxes for
EEg SWEEA  among employees and their supervisors to support employees
BRET employees’ career development and create a workplace BIfER
facilitating advancement, health and safety. e Training Programs
REEZEBTRARETHREIRZR  WEARTEREERA EHIRE

@)
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T HEETHIEER  UXBETIMWERRE  UHE o Staff activities

—ERERR RENZ2WNIESAH -

ETIEH
e Corporate Communication
LEBH

“Stakeholders”, also known as “interested parties” or “interest holders”, refer to groups and individuals who have significant impact on the
business of the group, or those who are affected by the business of the group, including the internal Board, senior management and
employees, external customers and consumers, shareholders, suppliers, business partners, trade associations, government and regulators,

community organisations, potential investors and banks.

[HHE] XBIASEES IR EEA] BEH-ACXNEBFEAYE  JSSEBYENRBAEA  BEABNESSE - SR
EBEABRET - HIBNEFREEE KRR HEFXERBME TEHE BSREEHEE HEAS  BEREERBTE -

Stakeholders
BRE

Shareholders and
Investors

RERKREE

Suppliers and
Business Partners
HERRSEBHE

Customers and
Consumers

EEREEE

Trade Associations
TEDE

Government and
Regulators
BN R EEHE

Community
HE

RIF (T EIREREKS

Communication Focus
BEEY

The Group holds regular general meetings and discloses
important information by means of annual reports, interim
reports, financial reports, ESG reports, corporate websites
and other disclosure documents to keep investors and
shareholders updated on the Group’s position, results and
ESG performance.
AEEEHETRRAS  UWEBFR - PHRE - PBER
HEORIR A ERERWME AR E MRS
EZEM BREENRRTBAEENEHNER - XEM

R - HEREREN -

The Group ensures that its suppliers understand and meet
the Group’s expectations and requirements through
screening, auditing and evaluation, and communicates
regularly with its suppliers and business partners to
strengthen partnerships.

REBBBHE BEURILERE BRUEEDTHRNF
EAREENBERER U EREHERRSERHBEN
ISR R R o

The Group has access to feedback from its customers and
consumers through various channels, such as staff at retail
outlets, customer service hotlines, facsimiles, emails and
social media, and has a mechanism in place to handle
customers’ feedback and complaints appropriately.
FEEEBTRARBNEERAKET FTFRBAR £
B EBURERER WREFREEENRE  URI
BHUZZREEF REMIRR

The Group communicates with trade associations on a
regular basis for exchange of any update in the industry in
order to ensure that its operations comply with standards
followed by the industry.

AEEEHRTEBERR  XRTEEM BREELR
TREE-

The Group liaises with relevant government departments
and regulatory authorities to keep abreast of the latest
legal and regulatory requirements and to ensure
compliance of its operations. Any non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations will be reported to competent
authorities immediately.
AEBERNERANPMREERBRIEHE  UERENE
BERERRBEREESHE - WBERMEBEEEERNE
R AEEBIANEEEBIIRE o

To better understand and respond to the needs from the
community, the Group organizes community activities and
services from time to time and encourages its staff to
support voluntary services.
AEFTHEABNELENER  AEEFEHRITHEE
BRRY  UHEE T XIFE TR -

affgis

Communication Channels

BERRE

Questionnaires

BERHE

Regular release of financial
reports and data
EHIBRE R BIE#MA
Shareholders’ meetings and
activities

REARERED
Corporate communication
B

Press releases

HEREMm

Investor relations
communication
REERRER

Questionnaires

BERAE

Regular communication
EHEE

Assessment and evaluation
B2

Information sharing

A=

Customer services hotlines
BRI H#E

Product labelling

BRER

Mails

Egas

Social media communication

HREEEE

Regular exchange

E R

Participation in the affairs of
trade associations

SHETEBEEE

Regular communication
Compliance records
AREH

Policy documents
B

Response to consultation
[B] fE 7%

Fostering community culture
HEX(LER

Support to underprivileged
groups

KB EEE

Community services

L ER®
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Major Risks and Response Measures Related to ESG
Materiality Assessment

To ensure the ESG Report reflects the issues of concern to stakeholders and the Group’s environmental and social impacts
regarding those issues, the Group conducted stakeholder communication and materiality assessment with the assistance
from independent consultant, to identify the important environmental and social issues.

DTG
BRAES HBREARSERMBOERINREURASEAREHATLBAAL RS EOVE - ALEEBH LB
MBI EBBREREHEUREENBA R &UE -

Identification of Key Stakeholders
BRERESGE

[ Step 1 Determining the Subject
! SR1EERE

Review the past results of stakeholders’ participation and the Guide on the
| Stock Exchange to formulate the list of environmental and social issues.
i._-, BREBINFNESHARRERMGES])  URITRERLEREFE -

The Group has reviewed and adjusted its lists of topics and identified 25 issues,
covering four major areas, namely “environmental”, “employment and labour
practices”, “operating practices” and “community investment”.
AEBMBRBECEREFTEELTHAE - WHBI25HZHRE -
BMEMRE | [EERREIER| -[EEEHN I NHERE | HAHE -

v

Step 2 Collect Stakeholders’ Opinion

THAKNERHHERR
; Conduct questionnaires through online platform to enable
stakeholders to score the importance of each sustainability topic.
ZRMLFERMAMEHEE  BRHENSTERETD -

The Group collected a total of 101 questionnaires, among which 77
were from internal stakeholders and 24 were from external stakeholders.
AEFBHKE101BERBES  HA77HREABREHE > 24 BREIBHFHE -

v

Step 3 Identify Material Issues
SHIBAEEMRE
Independent consultant analyzed the importance of each issue upon stakeholders and
the Group’s impact on the environment and community in the materiality assessment.

EEEMFET  BYBRBIMSEREHFNENER K
URAEEHREREENZE -

There are 13 material issues during the Year. Please refer to the matrix below for detail.
AELBIBHEENZE  FEF2RTIEEHER -

v

Senior Management Confirmation

and Continuous Improvement
EREEASRARSEATE
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Material Change over 2019

Issues Issues E242019 F

-1 EEMERE BERL

Environment R

1 Management of greenhouse gas and air pollutant emission *
BERERERSRAVER

2 Sewage discharge and treatment *
BERBERE R

K] Waste management *
BERYEE

4 Energy use and its efficiency _
BORfE A R A&

5 Water use and its efficiency _
AR M &

6 Use of other resources and its efficiency *
HtEREA R M=

7 Management of environment and natural resources _
RERRREREE

8 Response to climate change New Material
EHREEL Topic

it

9 Environmental compliance v *

RIRESHRM

Employment and Labour Practices Ef8 &% TE R

10 Employment management system
EREEHE ¥

11 Diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination 3
Z it - FERERRIR

12 Occupational health and safety v Il
BERRAZ2

13 Training and development v 3
MR

14 Prevention of child labor v 2+
fribET

15 Prevention of forced labor 4 2+
F7 1E58 )55 T

Operating Practices & E 184

16 Supply chain management v
R EE t

17 Management of product quality v
ERERER =~

18 Fair and responsible marketing 4 _
NEMEEENEH

19 Management of after-sale services 4 _
ERRBER

20 Protection of data privacy v 2
ERFRRE

21 Protection of intellectual property rights v
EEALE )

23 Anti-corruption v _

5

23 Operational Compliance v
BEA B

Community Investment #BiR&

24 Understanding towards needs from community 3
THHEERE

25 Support for community development
THEARERE L 4

“Environmental compliance”, “Prevention of child labor”, “Supply chain management”, “Protection of data privacy” and
“Fair and responsible marketing” are new material topics for the Year, whereas “Employment management system* and
“Diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination “ become relatively less material. Except the above mentioned,
material topics for the reporting period are similar to those of previous years. The results of the materiality assessment
have been reported to the Board of Directors for review.

(REEHRME]-THLEET | THERER | - [EHARBRREIRIAFNAEENEH | RAFHENEEURE - [ERE
BHEIRIZR PERSNRER I NEZHRAETE KRtz REPANEEZUZEETFRABAMN - EEH
MtERORXGESEEN -
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Material Issues

With the assistance of an
independent consultant, the
Group adjusted its materiality
analysis this year from statistical
perspective so as to better
reflect the views of various
stakeholders. According to the
analysis, the 13 materiality
issues located at the top right of
the materiality matrix curve are
the most critical "materiality
issues" for the Group.

ETEHE

EBTBABYT  AEERE
FUGHEAEABRHEEM
AR T BE  LERH KB
ERBEER  REDNER
B B 4B R £ #9013
EEEREAYAEERHRY
rEEEE -

T
nS

HEHENEEM

Importance to Stakeholders

Low
&

Materiality Analysis

BEEMA

0@

129
2]

(o
%e®

‘%%l

|2

Tong Ren Tang’s impact on the Environment and Society
E-EHRAERM BNV ERE

Response to Stakeholders’ Feedback

Feedback from our stakeholders forms the basis of this report and provides guidance on how the Group can improve its
ESG strategies in the future. In the past two years, the Group engaged an independent consultant to conduct focus group
discussions from which the Group gained a better understanding of the views of its internal stakeholders. In this Year,
however, focus group discussions are not viable for the Group due to the impact of pandemic. In the future, the Group will
seek to explore more diversified approaches and channels in keeping communication with stakeholders.

Below are some key concerns of stakeholders and the responses from the Group:

mERhEasR

.

=

]ﬂl

FRENER  TERAFEBARENER  ERFEEARRZTERE HERERERRERLD - BEAMEF - AEEERTH
VEBEBRER DTSR URATRABENENRR - &F  FEERRENFEREETEMRDATR - KRR AEEH
BRNESTRNBELERRE  USRESHEERR -

UTABE-LEENENERRER

BAR A S2 B B =) FE

Issues of Concerns

to Stakeholders
BHERTNRE

Disposal of wastes
RV RE

Employment Employee training
EfE and development
BTFIIEERE

Employee benefits
EIREA

Issues of Concerns

Opinions from stakeholders
BFOHENER

Responses from the Group
R EE B[] fE

Areas to Stakeholders
ol BHEBINEE
Environment Greening
RiE FRE

More indoor greenery is recommended
in offices and retail outlets in order
to provide a more pleasing working
environment, such as cacti and
other plants which are easy to take
care of.
BEARBLAZERTELWAEME
RERAL » ALAZER # BHEY
FLIFRE -

Employees working in the Tai Po
Production and R&D Base are
encouraged to commute by public
transport or bicycles.
FRRAARBEEMBE B LHNE
EEEREAAXBIASRAT
BHAT e
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The Group grown a huge mix of
flora and fauna plants in the
surrounding of the Tai Po
Production and R&D Base and a
variety of indoor plants within the
offices of Hong Kong headquarters
to provide a green working
environment.

AEEERAHEERRE L INERE
BAEREMAREBEIPAIER
BRSBENEY - AR THERE -

The Group encouraged employees
to travel by public transport or
bicycles.
AEEGBMETREAABEIADN
BETE -

Opinions from stakeholders
BFRENER

It is recommended that printing of
documents should be minimized for
creating paperless/low-paper
offices.

BEMDMITE  SEETEMAL/
EAKACHA o

It is recommended that the Group
should promote the use of
electronic office automation and
include more document types in the
system.
E%$%lﬁ@ﬁki#%%m§m
MER  URERENHES

It is suggested to review the training
strategies and plans, such as more
sessions of orientation training,
provision of diversified training for
staff and improvement of training
contents.

BERIEIIERR A S g
W ABIE MRS URRHS T
LB BEIRE -

It is suggested the Group should
form a corporate voluntary team to
serve our community on a regular
basis and also organise activities in
collaboration with social enterprises,
such as forming dragon boat teams
to join festival competitions so as to
boost up the morale of employees
and their sense of belonging to the
Group.
ERAEEASCERZTER  EF
RFtE LEEESESHED -
MABEARSEGHLESES
DAEME TR - HER -

RIF T EIREREKS

-
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Responses from the Group

FEEHE E

The electronic office automation
(OA) system was rolled out for the
purpose of promoting low-paper
working.
MHEFLOAZGKEER LR B
ERAAHA o

Communication between offices in
Hong Kong and Beijing was shifted
to an electronical mode by way of
video conference.
ERRLEPRAZCZECARES
BHEFLHNES -

The headquarter offices in Hong
Kong engaged paper recycling
companies to collect waste paper
of confidential documents for
recycling.
BRBRMAZEZHERACBAE
RIBHEER AR EEAR U o

During the Year, the management
and other employees from various
functional departments were
invited to participate in a wider
range of training programs
organized by the Group. In the
future, the Group will consider
gradually including more target
groups in training programs.
FERBFERBERENRERET
SHEFLTRAEHMEE QR TR
B E - REARR - EERB L IR
FHHK -

During the Year, the Group
converted vacant rooms into
nursery rooms for the benefit of
postnatal female employees.
AEREEEZEREEABHAE
FEEBRZET -

During the Year, our staff
participated in the “Hong Kong &
Kowloon Walk for Millions”
organized by the Community
Chest of Hong Kong.
AEEBETIZNHERARESE
WOTES  WNEEBBEBETIST
ERE
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Issues of Concerns
Areas to Stakeholders
i R ERENRE

Operating Communication of
Practices information
& EE | EEREB
Product
Responsibility
EmEE
Community Community
Investment charitable activities
HERE HEBEREEH

Opinions from stakeholders
FHRENER

It is suggested the electronic
systems should be optimized, the
production management system
and the retail system should be
enhanced.

BEEBLEFLRLS LMBEEE
BRAGREERS

It is suggested that the mechanism
for product recall, which covers the
procedure of responding to and
handling any contingency, should
be enhanced.
ERTEEMOWKE  BERGR
BEMHERNBERRE

It is suggested that the Group
should enhance the trainings on the
protection of the Group’s
intellectual property rights, which
may include the knowledge about
the Company’s trademarks.

ERENREAEENEERNER
=3 AR A EER A EERERE

It is suggested to expand the target
group to include teenagers and the
underprivileged in addition to the
elderly.

EEREMEEHR  SXHBREA
o HEBEESOERFHHE -

It is suggested to increase
community investment activities,
such as arranging voluntary
education or book donation in poor
mountainous areas, teaching
Chinese medicine knowledge and
promoting TCM culture.
ERENMHBREFE  ETEH
FREFERLE  ZEFENBK
SHERRBEEL -
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Responses from the Group
AEE R E R

During the Year, the Group
launched a new online product
sale platform “Online Shop” on its
official website for diversifying its
sales channels such that the Group
can be more familiar with and
gather the details of the consuming
patterns of customers.

AE AEERELSHE EHRLHE
LERBEETA (R LN UBEHRE
SZRIENHERE  UTHRREERE
ZEPHERANER -

During the Year, development
strategies focusing on quality was
formulated for the purpose of
enhancing the overall management
on quality control.

RERY TESRREM - UREAR
BESE®EREN -

During the Year, the Group
commenced the upgrading of anti-
counterfeit technologies to protect
customers’ interest.
REXAEBERRTHAERMARE
B UWREEEE RS o

The outbreak of pandemic affected
the Group’s community investment
for the Year as the Group invested
its resources in anti-pandemic
campaigns on a global scale. The
Group will take that suggestion
into consideration in planning
community investment activities in
the future.
REEEANETAEFNHERER
B AFEREFEERIRED
b ERRAELEREZTHE K
KEEREHESEMAZE

BUSINESS ETHICS

B

A business and working environment with
equality, ethics and compliance is the
foundation for the healthy development
of the Group.

a

¥ ERREMENERH
THRRIEENEBERRERE
BIRE -

-

Anti-corruption Practices

Advocating the work attitude of “Virtue”, “Honesty” and “Integrity”, the
Group does not tolerate any bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. The Group has set up an independent internal audit
department responsible for monitoring areas such as the Group’s
business activities, corporate governance and workflow, as well as
independently auditing the effectiveness of internal audit regulations
and internal control system, so as to continuously enhance internal
supervision and anti-corruption management.

Also, the expectations and responsibilities to employees are detailed
on the “Internal Audit Manual” and “Staff Manual” to provide
guidelines to their daily work. The Group does not allow any disclosure
of trade secrets, abuse of power for personal gains, abuse or
infringement of the Company’s property or acceptance of advantages
in the name of the Company under any circumstances. The Group has
set up a supervision office and has an anti-corruption officer in place,
which both are fully responsible for the disciplinary and inspection
work of the Group. In addition, the directors, senior management,
heads of functional departments and relevant staff of the Group
completed the training on anti-corruption and anti-bribery, which
included training on anti-corruption and anti-bribery laws and
regulations, as well as case studies of past violations in which
emphasis was placed on how to properly handle potential and
materialized violations.

BRIANE
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RESPONSIBILITY GOVERNANCE SfEEia OPERATING IN GOOD FAITH: BEING DEDICATED AND STRIVE FOR EXCELLENCE &S : B iwm K ia
Protection of Privacy and Intellectual Property o o
The Group respects customers’ privacy and protects intellectual property rights. In the course of our operation, we are o
devoted to protecting and properly managing all the customer information gathered from purchasing records or medical We adhere to the Corporate motto Of 3:3\7_ fFﬁ L% ]'fﬁ r 9\@ %Lﬂ EE ?}\’f LK ﬁ‘ ﬁk
records, as well as avoiding any infringement of intellectual property rights of other companies or individuals. Our “Staff . x AR = e N\
Manual” and “Rules on Safety Management of Detail” stipulate the staff’s responsibility in keeping information confidential, Never cut corners on labour and quallty, a2 AL oolkeksS KA B
and security training on c.:onficllel.'ltiality are also provided to st.aff with access to,confidential inform.ation.to arous.e thei.r no matter hOW complex the process or !I_m j:l J El"] 3 E]” 5 Ek j:l % % g:t
awareness towards confidentiality. Staff are not allowed to disclose customers’ personal information without prior written
consent of the Company. If customers or third parties suspect that their privacy or intellectual property rights have been how COStly the materials” and devotetothe [E#HRERRZREEHE  BE
infringed, concerns or complaints can be submitted through phone calls, email or written requests, and the case will then Mg g . ™ _i - B
be investigated. optimization of supply chain and product FREZ T « SR2IREMK
: : D A

Prevention of Child Labour and Forced Labour quality management, so as to offer diverse, XKXHMFZER -
The Group respects human rights, rights of employees and business partners, and has no tolerance for the employment of Safe and hlgh|y effective Chinese medicine
child labour or forced labour in our business operations. During recruitment, job applicants have to provide identification
documents for our verification and documentation. Employees are only required to perform their job duties specified under products to customers.
the terms of employment contract and description of job positions with no forced labour involved. According to the
resignation procedure set out in the “Staff Manual”, employees may voluntarily resign with a notice period or payment in # %
lieu of notice prescribed under the employment contract. In the event that there is any employment of child labour or
forced labour, we will report to the relevant government departments in accordance with relevant laws and regulations, and \Zs 70 BRE B3 £
we will cooperate with the investigation to assist the aggrieved employee. Employees who have engaged in non- WHOLE'PROCESS QUALI I Y MANAG EMENT % i mEE HEBE IE
compliance are subject to disciplinary actions. Product safety and quality management EnRERESEHE

= iih == e = Tong Ren Tang adheres to the principle of “honest operation and BECE-UBZEIHBEAS  HEARIFERLE
ik B T A ik 7 e B morality” as core value of quality management. The Group’s modern EEEROER - AEERXRNEBRENRAML
AEFZERFRATRENREE TLEBEY  BMNB I RERZIEEEMARBERKUEHFEMSNEFER Production and R&D Base in Tai Po, Hong Kong obtained the GMP SEMBEMFEERTREGMP (LEEEE
YEREELEMARNMBEANTNEERE AEEMNEIFM R(ZEZLEBRB)MATEIHERRENESE > L@ (Good Manufacturing Practice) for Proprietary Chinese medicine HIRE) RF - BERZE%1S022000:2005 8 @ &
RREZEABTNEIRHRKRBIFREZHE  URSHRABZER - RLEEHT FEEIHTESHIIREEFBAEN - 0E certification, ISO22000:2005 (Food Safety Management Systems) and 2EBREARHACCP(BRESNEEZEHIH) R
FREAME=ZAERECHBAINAEEZERL IRKEBREF SHRAEEFLANER FHERSHEREBAASE - the HACCP (Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points) certifications. & AKEEMNEERLEN PR EER T LR B

. PR All Chinese medicine products produced and sold by the Group are TEETEZESESEM WEREREEEREAM -

BE J_t ==) IE)EEE ﬁﬂ b= registered with the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong and
AEBYEAM  BTRAEBHNES  TAVEEEFERETIRBHET - ERRBRST  AMEREERALHSH complied with relevant laws and regulations.

BRAXHLREFE RPAEEREIBTERSOANKARMEERLTANEE LB LH ETTRE(EIFM)
EFE’J%H&E% ' E{Eﬂ%é%’\] AT B A B A & B Eﬁﬁﬁ ° ﬂEziﬁﬁﬁﬁngIﬁgﬁ HETHRBRIER - AR Major Quality Management System Certification of the Modern Production and R&D Base in Tai Po, Hong Kong
7£f§7£ﬁﬁ]ﬁ§ﬁﬁﬁﬁ”’ﬁ§ﬁ% ’ EE%%E]E ’ Tﬁﬂb%%él ’ jﬁ%‘lﬁiu\iiﬁﬂ'ﬂﬁl?}iéﬂiﬁ%)ﬁﬁ ° E%j{ﬁWﬁ{ﬁ{tigﬁﬁgi&E@IgﬂE%@gﬁ-ﬁ%%
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GMP Certification for 1SO22000:2005
Proprietary Chinese Medicine Certification
BEBHKEGMP R E 1S022000:2005 R 3%

HACCP Certification
HACCP R 3%

To ensure the quality of owned products, we adopt a stringent quality standard. From material procurement, reception and
storage, production and even inspection, we formulate management and operational guidelines in accordance with the
quality requirement of each process, and stipulate the duties of responsible functional departments and key personnel.

ARREFERNRE  BMURABRKESSE - #UNRE  BUREEF £EURRR  RERBNWEEERHTE-F
EEREMFES U AEERENRERTEASHHE -
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The responsible officers receive training regularly regarding all the procedures to ensure a comprehension of relevant
requirements. During the Year, the product quality training covers GMP, materials management, inspection management,
medicine equipment, manufacturing equipment management, quality standard, manufacturing techniques, equipment
operation, cleanliness and hygiene as well as employee discipline.

HERERE  AEASAEREREI UEREXDI THERRE - AF ERRESIREGMP - NHERE BRE

Process Major Quality Control Measures
iz TEEEEEER

Materials e Carry out field inspection for the growing, collection and processing environment of raw
Processing materials, auxiliary materials and packing materials

YR

Production
£ E

Inspection
L3

98

BHEREMH  BRANSEMBNEE REREERE

Upon arriving manufacturing plants, materials are subject to preliminary inspection for its
variety, specification and packaging quality etc., and then quality checks by quality
department after passed

MREEE  VSRBEHAERSKNEHEES SHEABREENETEERR

Distinguish and store qualified materials and unqualified materials separately to prevent
the use of unqualified materials during production
BORBIFHERMASHEODE  BHLERSRYRRALEE

Qualified materials will be labelled with the inspection date, its expiry date and re-
inspection date, and also stored in normal temperature storage area, cool storage area
and cold storage area according to its serial number, nature, toxicity and species, to
prevent the growth of micro-organisms and cross contamination
BBERNIHESECRBEN  EEXIREREY  YRERE B SUHERRESR
B 2RFHREEREE BERFEENLSE  BRRBEMENRIITR

Establish guidelines on temperature, humidity and storage environment requirements for
the storage of different raw materials, auxiliary materials, packaging materials and finished
products

VAT - BE - BRMHNAERNES - B8FRE  REREFREER

Materials will be re-examined one month before the review date and those expired will no
longer be used and will be scrapped and destroyed immediately

MR EEERAA—EANETER - BBRAEXHMNMEETEEER - 7 BHEEHR

Ongoing monitoring on the temperature, humidity, air pressure and air cleanliness level in
different production areas
BFEEETREERENEE - RE - ZREBEIRZRAFE

The production area is installed with cleanroom to avoid contamination during production
TERARERTFE  BRARNEBEI TR

Operators should put on specific work clothes. Different corridors for operators and
materials to enter and exit the production area to prevent micro-organism, particles and
other pollutants from entering the production procedure

BRIEABEZEREIER BEASRYBEAEEEHANEBBAREYRBE » LR
RMEY » ML TRYRAREEBRE

Clean the production equipment and measuring instruments with filtered and purified
water regularly and evaluate cleanness
EHERABRAKEREERBERITERE » RETRFIML

Stipulate internal quality inspection standard, set out the requirements for the qualification
of inspectors, inspection methodology and inspection equipment
RAVABBREESE  JRABBRABER BRI E  BRESRZER

Set up laboratories with different functions to perform inspection on materials and
environment
RETEDENERE  BESETYNRERRER

Conduct a comprehensive internal quality inspection on each batch of finished
products, and will inspect those related safety projects independent third parties
recognized by the government to ensure the products comply with safety and quality
standard in Hong Kong

BEMAVEARGEBEANTINZEEERE  HERANZ2HEELABRFNRATNEL
BE=FERE BREDEIETBNZ2RRERE
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B oERTR NERBEE EERE ALETE . GRBAF BRELRASLESEHE-

Establishing Strategies on Quality Management

During the Year, the Group implemented a “well-established and enhanced holistic quality management system” to
implement zero-defect quality control management, with the aim of materializing the philosophy of “doing the thing
right the first time” (55 — X IE EFE R B 15 MIERE) at the level of functional departments so that the overall
management capability on quality control can be optimized. Envisaging its strategic position of “building a first-
class TCM and healthcare group with global influence”, the Group established its strategies on quality
development, which include objectives, targets, planning and annual plans for quality control, and also formulated
a series of guidelines and measures to guide all functional departments in improving their management system on
quality control on an ongoing basis.

i

VEEHREHE

AFE AEERCTIE2EE2HESEERA | BERTRBESEE  BREFE-RBERNSHEMER]HWE

SEHMEE —EARENE

RAZRESEZR) E[{EAF2RYEINER - RTBERELXEE | 8K

EUMNER L AEERVAEDERREK  BREEEENH B RIARFEFI XFET —RIIE5IFE
B EEERENESETEEEEERA -

Creating a management system
and culture for quality control

BYUEERAMEEEEL

Forming a quality management committee which is
responsible for formulating, assessing and
adjusting the strategies on quality control.
RUBEEEZES B8HE FHNBRES
B o

Enhancing the management structure on quality to
clarify the responsibilities of each working unit so
that a culture for quality control can be fostered.
TEEEEEEE UEIBUNSET MBEE
BB -

Materializing a zero-defect

quality control management
ERTRBEEREE

Forming a competent team
ERATEEK

Strengthening the management capabilities of
quality control-related technical staff and the
training of technical and operational staff.
MBREEEERMAESNEERD  UARKEERE
ABHIEE -

Developing a more comprehensive mechanism for
talent selection and incentives, which includes the
procedures for identifying, training and managing
talents, as well as the employment packages.
TEAABBNZEEG  BEEE  SENEE -
EBREGBERE -

Enhancing the flow of
quality-control related information

maEEEREARE

Setting up a zero-defect management panel which
is responsible for determining objectives for
achieving zero-defect, performing regular
assessment thereof and offering corresponding
remedial solutions.

RUZHRREERNE EERESTRRERES
EMETEYME  LRHBESCESZE -
Developing a recognition system to encourage
functional departments and staff to achieve “zero-
defect” and provide suggestions.

BRRESNE FHBEBENEIER[ZHRE]
RIZHER -

Enhancing and making the good use of digitalized
product management system for statistical and
analytical purposes, and establishing a system on
the reporting and handling of quality control
tracking for the whole product life cycle, quality
risks and pharmacovigilance.
MERZEAFAEREELLEERRETHRITRS
WoBYER2ETBEHNEEEY ZEE2RABRA
EYEMERNEERES
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Enhancing standards on quality control Management of quality risks

EERBER

TEEEBEERE

e Enhancing and adopting a more stringent standard ~ See “Management of quality risks” below for details.
that covers the management and control over TCM  HETX [ZE2REKBERE ] -
herbs and raw materials, selection, cooperation,
assessment and review of suppliers, product
quality control, and management and scopes of
retail and medical services.
TEMRMEBRZNEE  RERENREREE
MERER SF FGNEZ EnEE ZTE
RERRBEE -

In order to enhance the development of independent intellectual property rights, the Group closely cooperated with
well-known domestic enterprises in the PRC in anti-counterfeiting technologies upgrade projects so as to eliminate
counterfeit products, protect consumers’ interests, and further strengthen consumers’ confidence in the Group.

AMBREEARVERMAR T AEEREERAASEE  BEGBRMAREE  HEREER  EFEEER
o WE—SEEREE RN EBMEE -

Management of quality risks

In order to eliminate quality and safety incidents in a more effective way and to enhance prompt response to
incidents for the purpose of minimizing damage to customers, the Group implemented quality risk management
during the Year and formulated “Rules of Quality Risk Management” under which a mechanism, overseen by a risk
management committee, for risk analysis, risk control, communication over risks, review and evaluation on risks
was developed.

EEEREE

REFUMBREERZE2IHRLE  UARMASHBENREEY  BREHEFNEE  ARERAF2EETEE
RBRER  HE(EERBREERRE)  BYRBRONT 26 BERDBENEREY - YHEAREE)AEEEE -

Communication Review and
Risk analysis Risk control over risks evaluation on risks
[ B B B A AR

[ B 5 4 e B 2 EiEE

RIG (T EIREREKS

D EE - HERERE ) REORIE

Combating COVID-19

The outbreak of COVID-19 posted unprecedented challenges globally since the beginning of 2020. For the purpose
of combating the pandemic, the Group followed the regulations and guidance provided by the Hong Kong
Government and formulated its own anti-pandemic guidance, so that its customers and employees could be well
protected and the spread of virus was hindered. The Group will keep abreast of the development of the outbreak
and adjust its services and anti-pandemic measures from time to time to enhance customers’ trust in the Group.

A AR S

B2020 F4) - DRFEBAUREHAFAROYE - BEYEE  ALFEREBRFORERIESLHET B
BRI - BN REB TRER - HLASEE ASERRET NS BLERS  EHBERBRBEREE -
HBEFED o

e All staff must declare their physical condition and ensure that they have no travel history within 14 days
FEEBIXEARBRERRRRER 14 XANBIMNELHE

e All staff must wear masks
FIEEIXEARAAS

e All staff must measure and record their body temperature regularly on a daily basis, including during
their duty hours and before and after entering and leaving the shops
FEEIXESHRRIEBERTHE  BEEEHBAREAEHEZ

e All staff shall clean their hands regularly with alcohol-based handrub before and after entering and
leaving the shops, and touching objects

FEEBTAARKAERREBYRAE  EBEFRERSREF

e Staff shall measure the body temperature of customers entering the shops
ETRABMEAFEACETYNERE

e An appropriate safety distance shall be maintained between staff and customers
ETRERZEARFEER2ER

e Patients shall measure their body temperature and complete a health declaration form before visiting

A systematic mechanism
is in place to identify
known or potential risks
inherent in products,
equipment, systems and
operation and to evaluate
the extent of the
exposure and the impact
thereof
ERAGHEANER R
B A5 BRELHERESD
EECHMFEENRRM
B UNEEBRRABREE
REHZE
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An appropriate response
is made with reference
to the extent of the risk
exposure and previous
control measures

REBREERBEZEE
e #IFTEBEHELHITE

Communicate with relevant
functional departments to
have a whole picture for
adjusting and enhancing
responsive measures, and
facilitating risk management
HEAEBENEER B

BEXHENEMNARER
FREERYER  RE
RREENER

Annual Report 2020

Supervises the process
of management of quality
risks management and
has a phasal evaluation
mechanism in place so
that the standard of risk
management can be
further enhanced
EREERBEEB
B BIRBRMHEEZR
ENHES FERAR
R B K F

our medical centers
EZEREDRANLBIERAREEREREE

Chinese medicine practitioners shall clean their hands and disinfect objects they touched before and
after the medical consultation with alcohol-based handrub

PEMEDANREEREREFRAETFREDKEBBZRETERRES

1:99 diluted bleach is used to clean and disinfect frequently touched objects

A1 09RBRAKDIMBERR BEESEERB 2N M

Cleaning and disinfection of waste containers, and waster separation are enhanced
IERNRBERBBFLERES - URDERBIR
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CREATING A BETTER EXPERIENCE FOR CUSTOMERS

Improvement on Customer Consultation and Product Return

The Group produces its product with great dedication and places emphasis on after-sales management, while continuously
values customers’ feedback on the products. The “After-sales Product Consultation and Complaint Handling Management
Rule” and the “Product Return Management Rule” are in place, which stipulate the procedural standards for after-sales
management.

If there is any query about product information and usage after the purchase, or complaint on product quality, durability,
reliability, safety, effectiveness or defects in design, customers are able to make consultations and complaints through
phone calls, emails, written request or visit our retail outlets in person as well as return the product.

For the purpose of enhancing our retail service quality, the Group stipulates the requirement to be complied with by staff at
retail outlets in the “Rules for Management on the Quality of Retail Services”, which covers courtesy, reception, hospitality,
knowledge of customers’ needs as well as introduction of products. The Group also provides relevant training to its staff at
retail outlets on a regular basis in order to provide excellent customer services. Preparing for the new retailing and
consumption patterns of the digital era, the Group diversifies its sales channels, including the establishment of an online
shop on the Company’s official website to provide customers with seamless experience both online and offline.

The Group received 17 complaints on products and services for the Year. Following our investigation, it was confirmed that
there was no problem with our products, and we had taken appropriate actions and replied to relevant customers.

REGULATE PRODUCT INFORMATION

The Group takes its responsibility in its advertising and product labelling to ensure that product advertising and promotion
comply with relevant regulations. Also, we do not tolerate any misrepresentation of drug labels and description. The labels
and description attached to the proprietary Chinese medicine we sold and exported are in compliance with the Chinese
Medicines Regulation, Guidelines on labels of proprietary Chinese medicines of registration regulation of proprietary Chinese
medicines and Guidelines on package inserts of proprietary Chinese medicines. The package insert and description for
proprietary Chinese medicine must be supplied with information such as the names of the main active ingredient, the
dosage and method of usage, functions or pharmacological actions, storage instructions, contra indications or side effects
and the expiry date. Hence, customers can choose suitable Chinese medicine products to safeguard their health and safety.

Should we receive complaints related to product advertising and labelling, we will identify the causes and formulate
solutions and improvement measures to prevent recurrence of similar complaints. During the Year, the Group did not
receive any complaints in relation to advertising and product labelling.

In the future, the Group will continue to review and optimize relevant policies relating to product responsibility.

RAZFRER

TEEFBHARERDR

ARBALRES—HES ERREEAER  SANIEFHERNER - ARMRE(EREABNRRRARERR
B R(ERBUERAE)  THERESERNEFRE -

EEFRBERYUERENREAFAEMSERD  IRYEREE - MAM - UHEME - 2% BRURRFT LWRBEEEE
EHBARRS  IUERERE B8 EHNAARHEZEL KRR - RFHRE -

ARAZERBER  FAEENZERBEEEERB)IPHTELXRETINER  OFBEEE REEG SFEE-T
BEFFERERNA -AEETEFRRZTELXARETRMEREI . BEREHASHENTPRE - AUWEHHBLHFFANEE
MHEBES  ARERAESTNEERE  SERAQAEARG L ERALEN  QEERUESLATHERRR -

RE - AEEEEIU7TRERERRRBERSG - £ELKR SEHERLRIBE  YCSXEREREBEEA -

AR & = Ga S5l

AEEBETESREMEBRSFEANER BREDESRESEREREIR  FFAFEINEHAEYERERAPNERBRAL
BMEERHOMNTREMBNRERHAZTIEREB(PERL)  PREZMERNTRERBIESI RPRERBERE

o FRERBHERRIAEEEBIEANARN AEREALE  DRREBER  TFER ZSREER - X%A
HELEN BEFENSETREER  REHEERZZ -

HREEHERESRERNRT  BRMASEARE  BIIBRIERAERRUBLRERFBREE - AF - XEERE
EEAREESRERBBRIIRNR -

RERR  ARERFERTRTEHERETHBHNEE -
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AFTER-SALES MANAGEMENT AND |
PRODUCT RECALL PROCEDURES » .fi )
EREHEREmDKER | ',;f

When the after-sales service hotline and mailbox, or the retail terminal receive enquiries, complaints, or
request for product return or exchange and etc from customers

ERBEAR ERBEBERTERRBZITENEZA R - REIBRELEHFER

e

Queries about product Queries about product Regarding the complaint of product
prices, discounts, sales or indications, usage method quality, request for product return or
business-related matters will and quality will be directly exchange, the quality assurance
be sent to the designated replied by after-sales department will conduct examination
staff of each store to directly service personnel or be sent and formulate measures based on the
reply, or be sent to the sales to the quality assurance actual situations which include sample
and business department to department to follow up check, product recall and etc..
follow up and reply. and reply. FHEREENRYE -  REBREHE
EHERER B e | FHERBEE  fRALER mEREBHEERETERE
EBAHENZR  SREME | RESEH  SHELRESE RARERGIEEEEHE -
EFASEEOBERERHSE | RASEEROEIEREAMRE BIEMRBRIRENERS -
ERFHEHMRERE - = REHIBPIREDE

S

If the reason of return is If the complaint is related to a product causing a customer to

related to delivery or order have adverse reactions, the quality. assurance department will

error, product will continue to handle the complaint in'accordance with the “Adverse Drug
be sold after passing'of quality Reaction Report and Monitoring Procedures”. If the case'is
inspection. confirmed to be serious or unexpected adverse reaction,
EREFREABERTEER meeting will be convened and'investigation will be conducted,
ERERESEBRERR including inspection of the batch of production record; product
ERABETESHELE - samples:and etc..
ERFEEFHEMELTRRESH B HEE2RAFEBRE (EaT
RREREMENETRR) LR - SERCHRBRENERS
HWARRER KEREBZEREAE  EEREEMEERSE . —
ERERS
N K

v ]

If the product is .confirmed.to have potential If corresponding-adverse drug reactions
safety hazards or quality problems after are established and updated, solutions
investigation, the case will be reported and the and preventive measures will be formulated,
product will be recalled and destroyed in including revision of product instructions

accordance with laws and regulations. and etc.
FEMRREARBEFERZBENERHEE - & EHREERTRRERYENREZ  BHERRT
RARERETRRRERDKHRTE - RRFEMER . SE ST ERRBES
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FACILITATING RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AND INNOVATION

Keeping up with the development of general health industry, we have been focusing on the scientific development of TCM
to promote our organic growth and continuous upgrading of technologies. During the Year, the Group continued to
develop new products adapted to more diversified market demand, such as nourishing of body condition for the prevention
of diseases. In addition, the Group actively advanced its scientific research on key product categories to facilitate further
product upgrades and future product development. The Group will continue to collaborate with world-renowned
universities for joint research on key product categories, ranging from their safety to mechanism of action. It is expected
that the results of scientific research will contribute a large amount of quantitative data for the future global expansion of
the Group’s TCM, and will be treated as a foundation for the public in overseas to further familiarize with, accept and
consume TCM and as technological and data support for the Group in further expanding its presence in overseas markets
and reducing potential market risks.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group mainly procures raw materials and auxiliary materials for medicine production from suppliers. In respect of
supply chain management, the Group has formulated “Procurement Management Rules” and “Suppliers Management
Rules” to illustrate the requirement and procedures of supplier assessment and approval.

The Group evaluates supplier performance regularly. The preliminary review on new suppliers covers areas including
corporate and production capacity, supply capacity, material quality and reputation. For new suppliers of raw materials
and auxiliary materials, we will ask for a small batch of samples from them and send the samples to our Quality Inspection
Department to undergo a comprehensive test for ensuring that the active ingredient content, physical and chemical
indicators, heavy metal content, pesticide residues and beyond meet the Company’s quality standards before we proceed
with the official purchase. In respect of the Group’s suppliers of major raw materials and auxiliary materials and suppliers
of packaging materials that may have significant influence on product quality, the supplier evaluation team will conduct
sample testing and field evaluation to ensure the material quality meets the Group’s standard.

The audit team is responsible for reviewing the suppliers every two years by reviewing various legal licenses, professional
qualified certification documents, etc. of suppliers, as well as assessing the supply capacity, production management level
and quality management level of suppliers. If there is problem in quality, we would perform re-assessment on the field and
request improvement from relevant suppliers. For the continuous enhancement of supply chain management, the Group
has updated the “Procurement Management Rules” to improve the internal process of procurement management. Looking
ahead, the Group will continue to review and optimize relevant policies regularly while gradually implement more
management policies for environmental and social risks in the supply chain.

During the Year, the Group had a total of 199 suppliers for procurement, which are located in Asia, Europe, Oceania and
the Americas to provide stable supply.

Field audit and
assessment of the

Sample testing quality of suppliers

HEEN B 3% Bl

BEARERABRRED  BM-—EUNTBENSZLEAZENH  HDLEREDINRERRNTEAR - £F - FEEH
BEHEMMARTAE LBSHBARBEE HRARNEZTSER B FEEBRBHENERREETHTIE £
ERREARRERARER AEELHEHRERASSSRREHF  HREEHERRENHANT  BEZ2ME - FAK
BEFEME FAHEHNNARR  $ARRAEEFBEEARCERRENELCLEHE  REIRRE-—PEBPEE &
ZTHhEE FATEERHERNER  RE-SEALKEESITENFENNREEEDT SRARRABENRMREE
HIEXHE -

HEgEEE

FEBEZERHEERBRENEMRRER - StHHEREE  AEECHE(RBEERR)N(HEREERR) - ARk
HEBNFIERERSERRRRE -

FEBEEHIRMEHRE  HHEENETRECENEERD - #EED WHNEEREESHE - YR AREENERM
B GUER  RMSERRBHEIMESRR  HEERBMETHANRE - BRAYRLSISE  FHELES ELBES
B REREESHUNAAQNREERESIETERNRE HUAFKERHIZEAME  #HH  URHEREEXLERAN
BEMBMGEY  HERRTMASETERBINRASEST  UBRKPHNEEFSAEERE -
EFNAEAEEMFUHUERETES  ENMREHUERNSESERR EXEEABXMHS A HERNHERD
EEEAFNEEEEKTY ELREEME  RMEBRETRSEN  LERFHAMBEFLER - AENRAEEE
B AEECEF(RBEERR) URERBEEADRE -REAR  AEEHKLETHRNREEHBERE - X ES
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We are committed to the concept of
“people-oriented and mutual benefits for
employees and the Company”. People-
oriented thinking, team culture and
corporate responsibility principles urge us
to pay close attention to staff development
and create a friendly, equal, healthy and safe

working environment for the employees.

4? Execution
1T

HMEBRIPAARA » AFE
HE | pNER - AREME
BEX(EIREEESTEHE
2 KBEMETE T EE -
RETRIERE¥EF &
RIRE2NIFIRIE -

o

STAFF HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group provides a safe and healthy working environment for
employees and adheres to the production principle of safety and hygiene.

Planning
RE

STERERE

AEERETEIRRZENIFEERR  BER Investigation
EREENEESS - B

Health and safety hazard assessment

BREEZ2BETME

Labour Department and Department of Health conduct regular health and safety inspection
and check-up on employees at Tai Po Production and R&D Base.
BIERBEESEHARNFEEMBEMETETRERZEZNERRRE -

Workplace and storage layout

TERBRESHHE

All workplaces, including retail outlets and warehouses, shall have fixtures required for safe
working practices and have conspicuous safety signs in place. For instance, items shall be
stacked at a safe distance from heat and electrical switches. Adequate firefighting equipment
shall also be available in the warehouses and operation staff shall be familiar with the
equipment and its usage. Firefighting equipment shall also receive regular inspection and
maintenance performed by designated professional.

FEEERS  BEZELAWRRAEERAZ2FENGENERNZ2ERES 6l ¥
mEERAREARR ERHBERSREER REARREANEBLRN  BEAETERZE
BEEBSEMMERL L - BBV TIETHEATHETRENRE -

Inflammable items, poisonous and hazardous substances in the Tai Po Production and R&D
Base are stored in designated space and labelled. The storage space is equipped with good
ventilation, smoke exhaust and fire safety systems in compliance with safety standard. A
valid license has been granted to the Group and annual safety and electricity inspection has
been conducted through Fire Services Department to maintain safety.

ABEEMBEMN IR RESEENEFTHRNEENEBZE > L EER - ZFHRER
RAEEZEFEEREMHE MARZ2HARE - AEBFEERER 8- FEBHEHEE
TRERENRE  UXKZE -

Safety rules and guidelines

ZEHRERES

Based on the requirements of different workplace and job nature, safety rule for our
employees has been developed to stipulate the safe operation procedure for each position,
aiming at minimising the risk of injury and occupational diseases. In respect of retailing, the
Group formulated the “Rules on Management of Retailing Safety” this Year, stipulating the
requirements for safety management in workplaces and warehouses.
REIESFIRIBEER  RE2RBEAREIHE  BBEIHMUREZBRERES > UEHLZE
REBRAMERFNRAR ZZEFE  A5EREAFHET(ZER2EERRE)  JIBITHE
SHRERERZEZEENRE
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Establish safety culture, enhance safety education

BERREX MERE2HE

To enhance employees’ health and safety awareness, we develop annual training plan which
includes monthly training with different themes in accordance with the requirements of the
Hong Kong’s Department of Health. Before the end of training, employees are required to
complete relevant assessments. We will also keep record of the training sessions and
assessment results for each employee to ensure each employee obtain necessary safety
knowledge for the position.

RIMEETHRERZRZER  RMSFUREBFELEEERHTZFEIGE  EREEEZR
HITFEEEMNZI - ERIFNA > ETHARZHBAZER -RMNTFSABNEIRHEMSH
HEd - EREREEEARNE  BREICAGBUMFTNREZM[T IE -

Production employees are exposed to relatively high risk during the operation of the Group.
To ensure that they have sufficient knowledge about factory safety, regular safety production
training will be conducted including standard operation on equipments, safety and
emergency management, fire safety knowledge and system usage as well as traffic and
security management.

SEETRAEELETHERSERNENL ARREMEGHRENZ2AH  RE2LEES
AEESEHET UREEREERE Z2RESEE  HHAARREER  URTBEM
BERELZE -

Regular inspection and accident investigation

EHRERBHAE

Labour Department and Buildings Department conduct regular inspection on safety and
environment in Tai Po Production and R&D Base every year.
BIERETFESFEEHNABEEMBENANETIHATKERERZEZRERERR

Health management and promotion

REEERRE

During the Year, we have arranged occupational health seminars for employees at Tai Po
Production and R&D Base and our Chinese medicine practitioners were invited to teach our
employees on the prevention on cervical diseases.

RE BMHARBEEMBEH ST RH THBERRERE  BFEAATEMOE I HERIH
20 B B SEMERR IR ©

During the Year, there is no case of work-related death and work-related injury. The work-
related injury rate was 0%.
AE S AEEWEBRERIRTHIGER  THERH0% °
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Safety measures for our staff in combating COVID-19
RETIRHEEHIRFESHZ2HEE

Flexible working hours are allowed so that our staff can commute in off-peak hours

RYEEME LTINS UASEETHARESE

BHASHORBETE

Training on anti-pandemic knowledge is offered for our staff
[ 8 T 12 B & AR F

E Work from home and work in shift are allowed
b
FAAS

o MEIRBOE  SSEBZHEYE

B3
healthcare products
] P

BETREFEBBERNRER  PEMRREREERTNEE

EMPLOYMENT SYSTEM

To retain capable staff and enhance our competitiveness, the Group
believes that a friendly, equal and diversified working environment with
mutual respect helps the employees to capitalize on their strengths.
The “Staff Manual” stipulates the requirements related to
remuneration, promotion, working hours and holidays, which provides
the staff with an overview of the employment terms and human
resources policies. To ensure the Group’s policy meets the highest
standard, the Group updated the “Staff Manual” during the Year to
provide guidelines and principles to the daily work conduct of staff.
The “Staff Manual” provides that our staff are allowed to communicate
with their departmental managers or the Human Resources
Department on employment related matters. The Group will handle
complaints, if any, in confidence. In the future, the Group will continue
to review and update the “Staff Manual” from time to time to ensure
our staff of a high standard and compliant employment system.

Remuneration and Benefits

The Group provides a fair and competitive remuneration and benefits
to our staff to attract and retain talents. We regularly assess and
review the remuneration and benefits policies with reference to the
industry level and practices of each regional market. Also,
performance-based bonus and awards will be issued according to
staff qualifications, performance assessment and individual or team
performance for the year to support, recognize and motivate staff.

Apart from local statutory leave for the employee benefits, we also
provide additional paid holidays, including marriage leave,
compassionate leave and home leave. During the Year, the Group
exercised flexibility and gave prime consideration to employees’ safety
which included additional holiday, flexible working hours and workplace
with allowance and keep reflects the Group’s care for employees as
usual. Meanwhile, we care for the physical and mental well-beings of
staff and their relatives. We provide comprehensive and regular medical
check-up upon staff joining the Group. Staff and their direct relatives
are provided with free TCM consultation services. Basic medical, dental
and accident insurance are also offered to employees. During the Year,
the Group further increased the compensation of medical insurance for
the benefit of our employees. The Group also distributed shopping
coupons for different company products to staff and their immediate
family members. The Group also converted vacant rooms into nursery
rooms for its postnatal female employees.

Furthermore, we care about the leisure life of employees.
Unfortunately, due to the outbreak of pandemic, during the Year, the
Group merely arranged our staff to participate in the “Hong Kong &
Kowloon Walk for Millions” organized by the Community Chest of
Hong Kong before the spread of pandemic.

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2020

N Anti-pandemic items such as masks and disinfectant sprays are distributed to our staff

“Fuzheng Biwen Decoction” formula and Chinese herbs are provided to our staff in addition to discounts on our

{f& f= il =
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RIS (L BIRERKRS

KARIK:-BEAT AFEHREA

Diversity and Equal Opportunity

The Group promotes equal opportunity and does not tolerate any discrimination or harassment. On the principle of fair
competition and “merit-based selection”, the Group established the qualification and selection requirements for different
job positions, and assesses the skills, knowledge, experience and qualification of employees during the recruitment and
employee promotion. The Group follows the principle of “distribution based on contribution” and “equal pay for equal
work”. Employees are not paid differently due to their race, gender, age, religion or other factors that are not related to their
ability, qualifications and experience.

We recognise and embrace the benefits of a diversified working environment. Currently, the Group has adopted a board
diversity policy. Selection and appointment of new directors will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
gender, age, cultural and educational background, qualifications, skills, knowledge, business and related experience as well
as commitment. For details of Board diversity, please refer to pages 138 to 139 of this annual report. During the Year, the
Group selects trainees for learning and training through resources sharing and talent platform sharing within the Group as well
as the newly-established professional strategic overseas talent training center so as to train different talents for succession
and conduct strategic overseas cultivation and reserve of talents. In July this Year, the Group held a contract signing
ceremony with the School of Chinese Medicine of Hong Kong Baptist University for internship partnership in which the Group
will offer internship for students from the School of Chinese Medicine of Hong Kong Baptist University and Hong Kong
Institute of Vocational Education (Chai Wan). However, the internship was switched to the online mode due to the outbreak of
pandemic. Looking ahead, the Group will consider implementing more diversity and integration related policies and measures.

ZftRYTEHE

AEERETERE BTEREALARBETS AERATHFR(EENDR KA ERBNEABLE  AEEH
RSN ER AR RERER SPRATORE AN CRAEE  AEENTRESR - BDIEMI Y T8
BETHMER 18 R REC RREED  AEANCHRBNEE A TEHOHEHEGE -

EMToREAEERZ A EIERENGSE - B 2A5ECEMNESERESALEE  BEFESHEERS NS
BRE flmEs - Fi - XEREEES - EE - KL A8 XBEREREHRNEE - FREZS S UNHE 28
REMEI1BBE1B9H - AF  AEEBEBRANERAE - AT TFEHE IRIEXRMBHIATFIERSES  BRES
ETEEEI EMBNSREEAAT  ETEREBIANTBERREE ARERAF7TAETEREASPREZRET
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Adhering to the concept of “business growth driven by talent”, Tong Ren Tang supports talent sustainability and career
planning to nurture talents and strengthen their sense of belongings. The Company formulates a promotion system and
clear guideline is given to employees through the “Staff Manual”. In order to formulate a suitable development direction for
employees, we evaluate and give feedback on staff performance through regular performance appraisal and assessment.

In order to continuously enhance the knowledge and skills for employee’s career development, we specifically design
training programs based on the requirements of every position. We also maintain detailed training records for each
employee to assist and review their training and assessment results. We regularly collect opinions from employees to
review and update the training programs to further enhancing our targets of training.

ERIRIEl
FESHAEB[AARERR] 922 TESTRERERNEAD SUEEESAT ERAIHEES - FATHE
T-EEARRHE  LEE(ATFMHATEANRES - REENETATEREE  AAFEATHIARAR
RIHRE - BRTHTABNBRRES -

REEIRHERABMXBRENFTNIBREE  AMREIFEUTE  SFSENEIFE - SAEITHHEFMAEIER - B
BERRMSENZIREZER - BREHREETER  KMBTREFBIRER » URZFIGTEH -
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- ERA TR ],972. N
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T8 HE 8 TIEIIRH P AR H
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| INEF | INEF
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BHET E 4 /NG

ZHET
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FHBEETEIIRE
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TREBYFUTES
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Focus of
training
EHIE B

Working
skill

THERRE

Product
Quality
EmEE

Health and
safety

RREZE

New Staff
HABAE

RIF 1t EBIREIGKR

KARK:-BEAE

During the Year, the Group provided following trainings for its staff:
RE - REBRHETRHAUTIEI

Description of training
35 3

The staff’s knowledge on products and work tasks, their professional skills can be enhanced through
different kinds of skill training. For example, training on the management of equipment and sampling are
provided.

BBTRENREINR - MEETHERR THENZE - EERESHAE @ fINRHEERENEERIEEI -

The staff’s understanding towards production procedures and the respective quality requirement can be
strengthened through various trainings on product quality. During the Year, the Group organized
trainings related to the addition and amendments to microbiological examination in the Pharmacopoeia
of the PRC (ver. 2020) and trainings on basic procedures for handling microbiological.
BERTEMNEREEREI  MRAETIHEERBRESERN 7 # o AF » REMMBEY T BN 2020 it B %
SR A )RR ER YIRS FT SR A M) E A RE R AT MY 53

The Group has offered various training on health and safety for their staff to ensure they can be healthy
and safe. Apart from talks on anti-pandemic knowledge, the Group also organized a seminar sharing
spine issues during the Year.

REREINEREZ2  AEERHETENRERZZIIR RTBENBBE A5 ZEEFRHET
BEHREREEIZE °

The Group are endeavored to providing an inclusive working environment. As a result, the Group
provides induction training and workplace training for new staff every year to give them a hand in
adapting to the culture of Tong Ren Tang and its core values with the aim of familiarizing them with the
new working environment and integrating them into the organization.

AEEFERUEBNITHESH - Bt SFHRMUFAREIRIRBSIR  HBHHET THRIBERER
CEHME - ZOEES  FEHMAE TRABRIINIFRE  BARES -
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ENVIRONMENT MANAGEMENT: COMPLIANCE AND PREVENTION, ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

RIF (T EREBEKS

RIGER : Tkl RERIS

Forging the self-discipline of “Dedication comes from the heart in the steps
that no one else can see for Tong Ren Tang”, while we pursue excellence

in Chinese medicine research and development, we are committed to
protecting the environment.

b

-

DN

ACERZEERAR  FLOEANINERRE  EMEPEERTIHER
moRiEMER - INARRERIENS(E -

+h

Complying with the environment-related law and regulations, the AEEBRBERBEHEBNERER  SIE(EER
Group implemented “Measures on the Administration of Environmental — #hIRBRETEE)  BEBEEMBE BN
Protection of Production Bases” to regulate the emission of Tai Po HFRYER - RMEBHEHRYEEZE
Production and R&D Base. Through standardising the emission THYNERBERRESEIR®E  LERBFER
management, implementing resources conservation measures and ERRRE -

raising employees’ awareness, we monitor and continuously optimise

our environmental performance.

EMISSION MANAGEMENT
Carbon emission and air pollutant

During the Year, the Group also engaged an independent consultant
to conduct a carbon assessment for quantifying the greenhouse gas
emissions (or “carbon emissions”) generated from its operations. The
quantification process is carried out based on a set of guidelines
drawn up by the Environmental Protection Department and the
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department™, the “Greenhouse
gas protocol: a corporate accounting and reporting standard”,
ISO14064-1 and other International standards.

HEK E 18
fix HE X T2 22 5 2 A+ 40

NE REEREABIERETHRIMG  UE
tEEEENBREREHER (B MmERD &2
tNBRESEEERRBENLSIEERENIE
Sl CEEREXERR  CEREHEBEEZE)
R 1S014064-1 S HMEIRZ LT ©

CARBON EMISSION #z8Emk

scope fH scope S8 scope N 8= Total

2

Indirect emission
of greenhouse gas

i 2 im = SR BE HE X

1,944.4

2020

Other indirect
greenhouse gas

Etfthfal iR = sm B HEAX

17.7

2020

Direct emission
of greenhouse gas

B in=mEEHK

168.8

2020

Total greenhouse
gas emission

mERAEHIKAE

2,130.9

2020

175.6

20192

metric tonnes of CO2 equivalent

2,339.0

20192

metric tonnes of CO2 equivalent

71.7

20192

metric tonnes of CO2 equivalent

2,586.3

20192

metric tonnes of CO2 equivalent

NE_SLHEE

AM—EBRER DAE-EHER AE-SELHER

Intensity of greenhouse gas

(metric tonnes of CO: equivalent/HK$’ million of revenue) 1 .6 1.8

i =REBHKEE cu-—gitugs TR 2020 2019
Notes Fff &F :

"’ “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional
Purpose) in Hong Kong”. ‘
(BEBEEY (BE FEALHAR)NAZREFRARABRNZENREES]) -

@ Due to the failure of providing raw data at some operating sites for the Year, it is impossible to calculate and cover their greenhouse gas emissions.
HRBOEEHRERHERABBBCRETERREABREREHR -

@ Scope 1 includes direct greenhouse gas emissions from stationary source fuel combustion and mobile source fuel combustion.
HENVEFEREEERRERERABDRERERHNERBEREHER -

@ Scope 2 includes energy indirect greenhouse gas emissions from purchased energy.
HE2EFERARIMNBERNBERE BN -

® Scope 3 only includes the electricity consumption derived from water and sewage treatment by the Water Supplies Department and the Drainage

Services Department, and the other indirect greenhouse gas emissions arising from plane business trip of Hong Kong business® of the Group.
HEIALERATBEBORBEABEEERAREBERESKEEAE)  RASERBEBRTHACEEREREIN -

© Hong Kong business includes Honour Essence Trading Limited, Beijing Tong Ren Tang Tong Xin Tong Le Company Limited, Hong Kong
headquarters (factory, offices, retail outlets and warehouses), and Union Health International Limited (Fook Ming Tong).
EREBEBEARESERAT  LRECERVCEBLERAE EBAN(BE  RLE TELGHNRE) URIBRBEBERAE (BHE) -
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During the Year, the Group’s total carbon emissions were 2,130.9 tonnes of CO, equivalent. The Group’s carbon emissions
were mainly from the use of purchased electricity in Scope 2, which accounted for about 91.2% of the total emissions,
followed by burning of fossil fuel in mobile combustion units in Scope 1, which accounted for about 8% of the total
emissions. Total carbon emission for the Year decreased by approximately 17.6% as compared to that of the last year,
mainly because of the decrease in electricity consumption as well as the reduction in carbon emission from air travel on
business trips as a result of the pandemic. In response to the major sources of carbon emissions, the Group will continue
to assess, record and disclose annually its greenhouse gas emissions and other environmental data, so as to review the
effectiveness of ongoing measures and help further development of emission reduction targets in the future.

RE AEENABRERB2I09B _ALtREE - ARENRFRETERBHEE2ZIHNBEENER  ERAFRED
91.2% » HXRAHE1 2BEENLARBRE  DEAEKRENSY - AFELARFRRL-—FERIN176%  TEEHE
EERE REZBERARS ABBRREEENRIER - SHHRIRNEIEZRE  AREREETL CHEREFREHLR
EREHRRHEGRERE  #MRSRTERRY  EHERE-SHERHEER -

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (By Sources)

im 2= 5r B HE K & (IR BERCIREI73)

Air pollutants are mainly generated
from emissions from gasoline and
diesel burned from vehicles operating
in each operating sites, liquefied
petroleum gas consumed by cooking
herbs in Asia, natural gas produced by
cooking herbs in the Americas and the
burning of natural gas in Europe for
heating purpose.

@ Fossil Fuel Combustion — stationary source
e RREHRE — BER

@ Fossil Fuel Combustion — mobile source
L RRHRE — BER

@ Purchased electricity
SNBE S

@ Water consumption
RKMEA

@ Sewage discharge

S5IKHERR

. Business travel by air
FALRTE DB

For the purpose of reducing carbon
emissions, the Group encourages its
employees to replace business travel
with video conference or
teleconferencing and to use public transport. Air pollutants for the Year reduced as compared to that of the last year mainly
because of reduction in consumption of gasoline for vehicles.

ZRERMEIEREZEBHNERMBE TR H  ENEEHNFEMERRCABR  ENLERNBENRERR
R URBMNEERERARSEENHER -

RELHRER  AEEBBETIUARGREFTERNANEEBLT  FTHREISREAARBIR - AFEZRTRY
RE-FERLEIREAREHVHERERD ©

Nitrogen oxide

sa b

Sulphur oxide
=R {uk ]

51.6 | 939

Respirable suspended particulate

Ol A\ R&FH+

37.5 | s

488.5 | 7002
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kg 5= kg T
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RIFE (I BIREIBKS
IRIREE : Tk - RERIE

Waste

The Group, being well aware of the potential impacts of waste on the environment, employees and the public, cautiously
treats solid waste arising from its production. Based on our business nature and operational requirements, solid waste
generated during the operation is divided into hazardous waste and general non-hazardous waste. In this regard, we have
implemented regulatory actions and treatment measures for each category. This Year, a total of 0.55 metric tonnes of
hazardous waste such as acupuncture needles and cotton generated by the Group were handed over to and handed by
qualified companies. At the same time, 767,960 liters of non-hazardous waste such as domestic waste, about 384.0 metric
tonnes in total were handed over to, as well as collected, cleared and processed by the local government.

e

AEBRABEYHERE BTN RNEBEERE  ZHEBELETELNEREY - BRMESEXBUHEMEETR  KEE
EENERERNIAEEERYR —RETERY  UHHZERVITLEEREERE - AF  AEBEENH RN
MELEHEEERMA 0L 2M  IXMEERARERE  ANELENETUREEEERYWH 767,960 7  £4384.0 20 -
RHEEMBABIIWE BFEMEE -

8= Total 8% Total

Total non-hazardous
waste generated

FEEREBRRE

384.0

Total hazardous
waste generated”

frEtEEERmas”

0.55

Intensity of
hazardous waste

BEBRMEE

0.0004

Intensity of
non-hazardous waste

REBFRMER

0.3

2020 2020 { 2020 ! 2020
0.37 0.0003’ 3384 0.2
2019 2019 2019 ‘ 2019

tonne/HK$’ million of revenue
AW BEBTRA

Hazardous waste EEEEY

Limited chemicals and other hazardous wastes are generated from the Group’s production process while a small
amount of medical waste is generated from the Chinese clinical services at retail outlets. Paying attention to the
risk of improper disposal of hazardous waste, waste will be disposed of with proper supervision and disposal.

tonne/HK$’ million of revenue
AW BEBTERA

metric tonnes AR

metric tonnes AW

AEENEEBRESVBLIERERETERY  MEEKHNTEDERETIRAEL D BB REY - KMBEETE
REEEERYNEAR ZBXZEEREE BEREBHERY -

Medical waste
BEEY

The acupuncture needles used in Chinese
medical consultation fall within the scope of

Chemicals and other hazardous waste
tERREMESEEREY

Understand that the chemicals we use in experiment and
production pose a potential threat to the staff and public

health and pollute the environment. Therefore, the Group
implemented control measures, which are administered and
supervised by laboratory management, in accordance with
“Hazardous Chemicals Control Ordinance” of Hong Kong.
RALENETERBEANLERHYETIRARBERN
WEERKE  TEHREER TR - ALt AEEKBEE
(ESEEREFGRAGIEZSER LHERZEEEAS
BEHITREE -

Chemicals and other hazardous wastes such as chemical
containers and waste oil are disposed to specially-marked
collection containers, which are stored separately in the
leak-proof and explosion-proof facilities. Licenses from the
relevant government authority were applied and waste is
sent to qualified recyclers for handling. The amount of
recycling for each time will be recorded.
LEREESHEEEEY  NMEERRE  BHKE  EHE
ZENFIEENRERSE  BYFHRERBRE - BHRRF -
Bh R 5 &% B7 1R 5 T BE YRR e o F M E 1 48 B8 BT #4448 R AB R
B WERMEEEYESERBKRENEE  §RETER
RiEEKE -

medical waste Group 1 — Used or Contaminated
Sharps. The “medical waste treatment methods”
prepared by the Group complies with “Waste
Disposal Ordinance” and “Codes of Practice for
the Management of Clinical Waste”. Our staff at
retail outlets are required to recap and properly
placed used needles in disposal bin with special
marks to separate from other waste and avoid
contact with human. The sealed medical waste
will be transferred to a licensed medical waste
collector for disposal. Meanwhile, we will submit
a relevant application to the Environmental
Protection Department for follow-up actions.
REFEDERBESH RAANG BERENE —
A — REARZTRFIE] - AEBRBEEE
(BEYEBRID) R(EREYERE TR HH
(BREEVEBERE) TELARETAEEREMN
SEEN  ZETHNERER TSR W
HthEYoRE HOBEAZBIKE EISHE
BEDE BXEMERBEYREREE - B
ETTRARMRRBERMEEAAE - UMERE -
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Non-hazardous waste EZEE Y

The waste generated in the Group’s daily operation mainly includes non-hazardous waste, such as packaging
materials and domestic wastes. By reducing waste at source, the Group supports recycling and reusing resources,
and strives to reduce the non-hazardous waste generated by the operation. During the Year, the Group recycled
12.6 metric tonnes of paper cartons and discussed with recycling companies and had access to data of wastes so
that we can further enhance our relevant disclosures.

4]

FEBNAREEELQRBHNRETUREREERY - RMNBEBFTRERE  XBREBAREREW @ B
EEMFRNBEZTERY - AF AEEERKRT 126 DMHAR » WEHEKARAEN @ IMSEEYEE  E—-Fx

ZEREAIREE -

Waste generated from the

production process and packaging
EERBERBIE

The Group adheres to the approach
of “purchase on demand”, where we
purchase packaging material based
on the production volume.
Employees at Tai Po Production and
R&D Base are encouraged to reuse
and prevent willful discard of
recyclable waste such as
newspapers and paper box.
Employees are required to collect
and separate recyclable waste,
which will be sent to waste collector
for recycling.
AEBBERFBEINERE  RE
mEEERBHEHENEEME -
AEEHBABEEMREHBETE
REA BLEEEETEWRESE
W MBMERAKFE B FERE
TWERSEAEWEREY  BXH
W EBEEIWERE -

Domestic wastes

EEW R

Kitchen waste generated from the kitchen of the Tai Po Production and R&D
Base is collected and stored at designated bins to be sent and disposed by
collector. Qualified collector will regularly collect and handle sewage and
waste oil being discharged from the kitchen to the grease traps.
AEEUNEBURRBERBEABEEMREBRENELS  YAKESD
ZE - HEHRETREIT AR AHSERRENEHRERERERE -

Meanwhile, office staff are required to reuse and recycle:
B SERAZETINREARSEEUL :

e Establish new electronic system, adopt paperless communications
to reduce printing
BUNNEFRS  BITEFLEE BRI

e Use double-sided papers and reuse single-side printed paper
EREED  EREEMR

e Collect paper, ink cartridges and used battery for further treatment
by independent professional recycler
WEFR  BKE  BESHE  XABYSXEWREFERERE

e Reduce the use of disposable products
WA —IRERmER

Data was not comprehensive and only included several countries and regions, and we will consider to further improve relevant data collection in the future.

FBELR2E RERTHEAERREE  $E—SPZETZRRDHEWE -
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PACKAGING MATERIAL® ft415}®

BRIFE (I BIREIBKS
RIREE : T SRS

Total Packaging
Materials

@ 'T j -F:I 7o E

Paper £t iR Metal &8 Plastic 281

135.8 178.8 129.7

2020 2020 2020

68.0 152.3 76.9

2019 2019 2019

444.3

2020

297.2

2019

metric tonnes AR metric tonnes AR metric tonnes ‘AW metric tonnes ‘AW

Intensity of packaging materials
(metric tonnes/HK$’ million of revenue) 0. 3 0.2
SR 2B E aw mEEtin) 2020 2019
Note ffi & :
® Only includes the operation sites involved consumption of packaging materials.

REEIREEMERNEER -

Wastewater

Polluted water discharged by the Group is mainly sewage from production and domestic sewage. In order to minimise the
impact of sewage discharge on the environment, we perform sewage tests at our Tai Po Production and R&D Base every 5
years to ensure the standards are complied with. Sewage is discharged to specified sewage treatment system via
government pipes, and it is collected, sampled and tested by government authorities on a regular basis.

The production equipment, containers and tools are cleaned and sterilized with self-produced purified water and
formulated alcohol. The cleaning and disinfection of medicine containers are processed without the use of detergents. The
water discharged are “residue-free, pollution-free”, which minimise the pollution damages to the environment from the
production process. We adopt food-grade lubricants on production equipment which are easily degraded and
environmentally friendly.

RESOURCES EFFICIENCY

Energy Consumption

During the Year, the Group’s total energy consumption was 4,542.2 MWh equivalent, and the power consumption was
3,720.4 MWh. Other energy consumption included liquefied petroleum gas, natural gas, gasoline and diesel. The Group’s
electricity consumption is mainly derived from its business in Hong Kong, of which the electricity consumption of Tai Po
Production and R&D Base accounted for approximately 63.0% of the Group’s total electricity consumption. Total energy
consumption for the Year decreased by approximately 12.6% as compared to that of the last year. Apart from the increase
in consumption of natural gas in Europe which resulted in the increase in the total consumption of natural gas, the
consumption of other fuel were on downward trend.

a7k
AREFBEANSKIERELERETEK BRESKEHNEREERNEE  RMUSSERBLEEWMRE MG - BR
AFEE - RFEBUN SN EEHENSKZERAESKEERRS  YHBNHBEKEETHRERBERR -

EENRE R IAYFEAREERAKRECARTRENBRETERRES EBEMNRETRARESBERS
;Fﬁﬁﬁ'fiﬂlﬁ:gm BRFEONAKIZESE  Z5R ] CHEBRURESEANEEEERIER MEERELIEKAS
DR RERERBEBE LIRSS -

‘H‘J?xké
RENR R

RE AEENEFRAEER 45422 KRREE AREERI,7204kRK - HBEREACERLELAMA - RAR - 7
MG c ARBWAETERATBER  HRONBLEENBELNAELEEREEEN63.0% - AFERFRAEER
F-FERLH12.6%  BRTBNEBEZEIEERAREBERARERERMI  HRRAEREY 2 TRBE -
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8= Total

Total energy
Natural gas Electncnty consumptnon

¢ quueﬁed
uasolme Diesel petroleum gas

S BILEMR
2221 17.8 21.2

2020 2020 ‘ 2020

351.5° 1800 2%

2019 2019 2019

%%f_(— EL’ l]?\ il f\ii

T
5

5607 M 37204 B 45422

2020 2020 2020

|
ST (S |
406.3 Wl 4398.8° W 5198.8

2019 2019 2019 ’

MWh equivalent MWh equivalent MWh equivalent

MWh equivalent MWh equivalent MWh equcvalent
I LB JKE R JKFLBF

KB JKF BT KB

Intensity of energy used
(MWHh equivalent/HK$’ million of revenue) 3 5 36
BENRBE kme mEBTlA) 2020 2019

Water Resources Usage

The Group’s total water consumption for the year was 18,883 m?, and the water consumption intensity was 14.4 m¥/HK$’
million of revenue.

IKEIREH

RE S REBEWBEKES 18,883 K BAKBREB 144K BEBTHA -

)

‘Total water consumption . Intensity of water
BITIKE , consumption

MEIKBR

18,883 14.4

2020 2020
22,329 15.6
2019" 2019"
m?¥HK$’ million of revenue
m® metric tonnes M 753K . STHE¥ EEBTWA
Notes Fff3F :
© Only includes the operation sites involved gasoline, diesel, liquefied petroleum gas and natural gas consumption.

REEFRAM - 508 - RIEABERRRARFEENEES -

Due to the failure of providing raw data at some operating sites, their electricity consumption cannot be calculated and covered.
AR EERRERHERBHBERRETERREEE N HRE -

Due to the failure of providing raw data at some operating sites, their water consumption cannot be calculated and covered.

HRE D EEHRERBEREBEBCREAERREHIEKE -

(10)

a1
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BRIFE (I BIREIBKRS
RIREE : T SRS

Resources Reservation

The Group fully understands that energy and water are valuable natural resources shared among humans. This Year, each
operation sites of the Group obtained water from the local government, and had no issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose. We pay great emphasis on electricity and water conservation and require the employees to be prudent in the use
of electricity and water resources without wastage. The Group has implemented a series of measures to enhance
resources efficiency. As energy consumption is the primary source of the Group’s greenhouse gas emission, we will
continue our focus and strive to enhance the energy usage efficiency at the Tai Po Production and R&D Base, office and
retail outlets.

BIFEIR

FEERAERRBADRABBENEERRER  TRAENHAZEER - AF  FAEESLESMAXKKAEHBN - XE
REBEAKE EEEMAME - EMERTOAERAK - BEREIFRFAERER HERENFRAY - AEBECER-RIRA
BEFRMENER - A - BERERERERFAEERZERBHRNEIZRE  RABEEBRIUB HREANBEENHE N - B
DRERTBELHNEREANR -

Primary measures to enhance resources efficiency and minimize carbon emission

RABRMGERBDBRERNEZHEE

Tai Po Production e The air conditioning and lighting system of the Production Base are set at day or night
and R&D Base modes to reduce the energy consumption during night time
RIBEERBEE M SEEMNZARRARSARABREEER - B REERERE

¢ Install timers along the corridor, the surroundings and the concourse of the Production Base
REEEMER  ARRAERIKEE

e Maintain energy consumption at a reasonable level based on the production requirement
RBEEER  GEMBTHASE

e Turn off all electrical, air conditioning and lighting appliances before leaving for the day or
when not in use

RTURBEAEABBEMERE ZARRBARS

e Regularly check and maintain energy-consuming production equipment to sustain its energy
efficiency

EHRERELEEERS  URFEERNE

e |nstall information card for production equipment to make it easier for professionals to
perform regular monitoring and follow-up
REERBRERBERES  HESXEASEHEIRRE

e Taking into account the actual needs, timers are installed for outdoor advertising signs so
that the signs are only turned on for a designated period at night
ZERSR[TE  AFNBREHRIKEE  RETREFRER

e Maximise the use of natural light and adjust lightings based on sunlight conditions
BERAAAKX AEBRARBHAGRZEZE

e Adopt energy-saving lamps with higher energy efficiency
EASRERNENEHREER

e Regularly perform inspection and maintenance to ensure proper functioning of water
equipments and pipes
EHRENREAKREREE  BREFERE

e Regularly collect and inspect the electricity and water usage for analysis and response
TE HA U SR MR AR P % FA K B BAME B 4T e 88

e Deliberately selected and planned the plant species for greening Tai Po Production and
R&D Base
REBERFERABEERRELDRBECEYNESR
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Primary measures to enhance resources efficiency and minimize carbon emission
RAERMEREIBHERNEZEE

Hong Kong office e The air conditioning and lighting system of the office are set at day or night modes to
and retail outlets reduce the energy consumption during night time
BERAER MAZNEARBHRGRAEARKREER » BORERERIERE
TERm
e Air-conditioning temperature of office is set at 25.5°C
REZRARABRERFENRIRE 25.5°C

e Regularly educate the employees on the importance of energy and water conservation and
saving

EHEE TEBSREHKNERME

¢ Place different green plants in office to adjust the air quality and relieve the monotony and
weariness from work

RPAEREZELCEY  URTEZRRER TFEFROERDRE

e Remind employees to turn off all electrical, air conditioning and lighting appliances before
leaving for the day or when not in use

BREIRTHRBEAERASEEMERE ZARKRARS

e Maximise the use of natural light and adjust lightings based on sunlight conditions
BERFAAKX AERRARBHEAGERZEZTE

e Adopt energy-saving lamps with higher energy efficiency
EASRKRABENEHEER

e Regularly collect and inspect the electricity and water usage for analysis and response
EHWENBREAERAKELES M RE

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

In compliance with the laws and regulations, the Group regularly supervises each operation site in its daily operation to
ensure the emission complies with statutory requirements. During its daily operation, there is no direct impact of material
nature on the environment and natural resources. The Group, in view of the growing attention of all stakeholders in
community on sustainability, intends to lower the ecological impact of product life cycle by reducing waste generated from
the use of products.

IRIGIRAAEIR

FEBTHREETETERRENEARER  EHERSLEN BREAFRYFESEEER - BEAKEANAFEER
FERUBRERAAREREREAYE  ORELT LEFOEARVEITHERR  AREANHIARERESBRAE -
ZERBEHERRANSE MBS ERREEENERY -
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SERVE THE COMMUNITY: HEALTHY LIFE GLOBAL CHOICE

We are committed to the corporate
spirit of “Nurturing kindness and virtue,
Preserving tranquility and wellness” to
promote healthy life and TCM culture in

the community.

P

BPRATEIECHE » it
B INEEREM  RiLE
HERREEGREHIDE
FEXAE -

4

As a time-honored enterprise with centuries of history, Tong Ren Tang
has always upheld the mission and vision of “Healthy Life Global
Choice” to improve the wellness of the community and actively
promote TCM culture across the world. While providing quality
medicine products to the Chinese medicine market, the Group also
actively participates in social welfare business. The Group fully carries
out the responsibility of a corporate citizen and gives back to the
community. We leverage our expertise in TCM to facilitate cooperation
among different sectors of community and encourage employees to
care for and serve the community. We promote community investment
in four aspects, including “caring for public health”, “supporting the
grassroots and the underprivileged”, “promoting TCM culture”, and
“boosting TCM education”.

This Year, the employees of the Group participated in community
activities for around 99 hours, and charitable donations (including
supplies) with a worth about HK$17.0 million. Due to the pandemic,
the Group reduced its investment in community this Year. Instead, the
Group prioritized one of its targets, i.e. care for public health, and
allocated resources for anti-pandemic campaigns on a global scale. In
the future, the Group will continue to understand and focus on the
needs of the community, improve policies related to community
investment, and create shared value for society and the environment.
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ER-—XEFEFR  RCE-—BEUTAERE
2RAZ | AEGES  RALEREKT  X&
BREMERFEEL - AEEEATEHEE
THERHEEERNER  GEBRINES A
BEX 2HIETLEARFMBEEANEME 26
HE - BMEATBENER  EEBEHSR
RoOSRHETAZNBRELE KMBEODSEE
BHERE BETHEELRER| [HKEER
ERE] [AEhEEX N ESHEERE -

RE - AEENETIZRGEZHHHI99/N
B ZEBRRVELENI7T0EEET - AR
EENEER AFERLTEBLERENE
B WIEERRBEEZRELUBEARREE
BAFEEERZ— o R REESHEET #
REIHERE  mEHEREMEBER - Bt
ERBRRAEAEEE-

Care for Public Health B %

RIFE (I BIREIBHK
BRSS i 8 : RIS A 2

o A

Promoting Chinese medicine healthcare, spreading health knowledge and enhancing health awareness
EEPESL  EREREIBRESRESRE

L]

The Group established a “Tong Ren Tang global coronavirus prevention and treatment expert team” for the
pandemic, which publicized 100 sets of “Fuzheng Biwen Decoction” formula to 50 countries and regions across the
world this Year with an aim to provide a Tong Ren Tang solution for the control of global pandemic
AEEREREPARFACEZRFEMAFAERA ] AEM2RS0EERMNBELZEFG100E KR ERER]IHE
NEAS > REREENHERHRCERR

The Group urgently mobilized its retail outlets in 20 countries and regions to set up “Epidemic prevention medicine
counters” and provide services such as free online medical consultations and mailing of medicine, and donated
various types of anti-pandemic products to the Mainland China, Hong Kong and overseas
AEEZSPHERYE0ERINBENZTELR R  REIBEAESE] BREELLBDRYE  BEERRKS
WEPERA EBREIZHIBREZERRER

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Toronto) distributed “Fuzheng Biwen Decoction” formula to Chinese organizations in Canada
for anti-pandemic purpose
TREECE (M%) BR [HREBRER]I B OAMERRERBHE

The Group initiated a campaign named “Care for others and fights the epidemic” and donated anti-pandemic kits

AEBEBECEAEROIE - WEBREES

The Group held online healthcare talks, i.e. “Guojiao Club” (BIZ®), for enterprises
AEMERGIOEREEE — BES

The Group disseminated healthcare information and maintained the “TCM Healthy Lifestyle Column” by means of
newspapers, Facebook, WeChat platform, its official website, store brochures, etc. throughout the Year. It also
organized online health seminars to deliver health information, as well as to promote the Tong Ren Tang brand and
TCM culture to the public and present gift sets to them

AEEEBRAER BE HUETE BEHFRY PEEMEREAREELEARMRBR B ERERETER] 255
B O BREIRERE GERRES DAREERCERMEPEBEIVERBEAEER
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SERVE THE COMMUNITY: HEALTHY LIFE GLOBAL CHOICE RS : RIISRE RIRRE

Supporting the Grassroots and the Underprivileged $%+¢ & [ 5L g

Boosting TCM Education #: 8 &2 F

Providing assistance to people in distress and performing acts of kindness Promoting TCM education and development

REBR - FREE D EEFEEAE  XEBERE

e The Group participated in the charity event, i.e. “Hong Kong & Kowloon Walk for Millions” organized by e The Group provided internship for students from the School of Chinese Medicine of Hong Kong Baptist University
the Community Chest of Hong Kong, before the spread of pandemic and Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Chai Wan), however, it was switched to the online mode due to the
REBEHA  AEESNATEARSETNRNEBE NEBBEBTILSTERED pandemic

RUBRTERBEEASBTBEERNEBEXRFERNEIREL  EEABHENMEARNR LEE

Promoting TCM Culture 5A%; 52301k

Promoting TCM Culture to benefit mankind
ShiZ R EEEE N fL - ERBARE

e An expert team formed by TCM Masters prepared Tong Ren Tang’s kindness herbal tea for distribution in
Singapore
BEEAMEREAAFMERERD CEROOBRESR
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CONTENT INDEX

Subject
Areas
TEHRE

Description
AR

A1: Emissions

23287

General
Disclosure
— MR =

Information on:
Relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
FHABERRAZREHN mAkRI S BEREETEEYNELESE
"y :
(@) the policies; and
BE R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BFUHBTABERZENEEEERRGINER -
The types of emissions and respective emissions data.
BRMEE R AR EE -
Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity.
BERERASNERTE -
Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.
FELEEREPRERTE -
Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.
FEEBEEZEYEEREE -
Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved.
HAUREER BN IERRIERR -
Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled,

reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HIREEERBEEREYNG L REELEENBRREMAEBHE

Page Index
BERB#EL|

47,74

75

74

76

76

75

76-77

A2: Use of Resources

EREA
General
Disclosure
— MR E

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other
raw materials.

BRERER(BHERR - KREMEMBL) HBEE -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity.
REHIAINEER SBEERAEEREE -

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BREKEREE °

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
A RE AN ST B RAEHRE o

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

B SREGE AKR LB EARE  UREFABKREFEIRFERR
Total packaging material used for finished products and with reference to
per unit produced.

HRGEAABRMBNBERBEEENUHLE -

74

79

79

78

80-81

78

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BRERRXRER

General
Disclosure
—RIFE
A3.1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment
and natural resources.
BEBITABRERRARERERERFENEER -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and

natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.
MR EHHRERAAERNEALEREKNEETHALENTE -

74

81
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Subject
Areas
TEHRE

RIg 1 8IR

Description
AR

B1: Employment

&

General
Disclosure
—RIEE

B1.2

Information on:
Relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.
ERATMRMAE BEREA  ITHERKH - B FTEES . 2l RER
UREMSERERNN
(@) the policies; and
BER R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BFUBRTABEALENHEBERRBGINER -
Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical
region.
MR EREER  FRARNRGERSNWESLH -
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.
BB FRANRMES SNESRKLE -

Biawks

HERBE R

Page Index

BB RS

47, 68-69

70-71

71

B2: Health and Safety

REEZR

General
Disclosure
—RIEE

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3

Information on:
Relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.
ERHRMZE2IFRERREEERRBELREN
(@) the policies; and
BER &k
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BIFHBITABEAZENEELEREHNER -
Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
HAIFEEREMETHWARRLE -
Lost days due to work injury.
EIEERIEASY -
Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they

are implemented and monitored.
ML FTER AN R R R 2100 - URMEBHATRERLSE

47, 66

67

67

66-67

B3: Development and Training

BRERIEZI
General
Disclosure
—RIKE
B3.1

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training activities.
FRRAREBITIHEREN AR RENBR - HAIEIES -

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category.

ZEURIREERMNE D  BREETHZ N TR -

72

72
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Subject
Areas Description
TEHR AR
B4: Labour Standards
2 TR
General Information on:
Disclosure Relating to preventing child and forced labour.
—RIKE ERABIEE TEEGIL TH :
(@) the policies; and
BER S R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BFUBRTABEALENHEBERRBGINER -
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.
AR REEANNERAREE T REBHLET -
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.
B ERRERBERGEEREEBERAMEKRNTER -

Page Index
BERB#EL|

47, 56

56

No such case was
identified in the Group's
operations during the
Year.

AE AEENELEFR
BRBEBEER -

B5: Supply Chain Management

HEEER
General Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
Disclosure [=giltyicdAivbzg: 9 R0 326 4
—RIKE
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

ZimEE D A EEEE -

64-65

65

B6: Product Responsibility

EmEE

General Information on:

Disclosure Relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters

—RIFE relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
FEFRHEERABRBENRERZS  ES ZERILBEEURERS Z
B
(@) the policies; and

BE Rk

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BIFHBTARERZENHBEZERRAHANES -

B6.1 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they
are dealt with.

EEERERMRBBHNRFHE AREH TG E -

B6.2 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

W ERAERRENBERETHEVED -

B6.3 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
HiEEREREREREKER
B6.4 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are

implemented and monitored.

FHOHBEEANRERLRBRE  UREEANTREREL X -

46, 56-57

62

56

62-63

56
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RIG (T EIREREKS

Subject

Areas Description

TEEHE AR

B7: Anti-corruption
REF

General Information on:
Disclosure Relating to anti-bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
—RIEE BB - $R - BEFAEREN
(@) the policies; and
BE Rk

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.
BIFHBITABEAZENEELEZREHANER -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERBAHBTASHEERLLCEENESHARGNEE RFAER ©

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how
they are implemented and monitored.

B EERRBRER  UREERITRERGE -

HERBE R

Page Index
BB #EL|

46, 55

55

55

B8: Community Investment

HERE
General Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
Disclosure communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
—RIFE consideration the communities’ interests.
FHUHEZHER T REEMELEEENRREESEDSZERULEF RN
UK o
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution.
X ERtEE -
B8.2 Resources contributed.

EEIHEABHAER -
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82-85

82
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INVESTOR RELATIONS REPORT

MULTI-CHANNEL INVESTOR COMMUNICATION STRATEGY

We believe that expanding our diversified channels of effective communication will help us to streamline our
communication with individuals, institutional shareholders and public investors (collectively named as “Investors” in this
investor relations report), facilitate, open and transparent exchange of information. Investors’ understanding and
understanding of the Company’s corporate mission and vision, development strategy, industry competition and operational
and financial performance will enable investors to make investment decisions in informed circumstances. The Company is
responsible for fair, accurate and timely disclosure of company information to ensure a high degree of transparency,
enhance the Group’s attention, stabilize our relationship with investors, and strengthen the mutual trust of each other.

In 2020, the Group continued to maintain a positive and effective communication with investors who are concerned about
the business development of the Company in a positive and responsive manner. The Group is committed to providing
investors with convenient communication channels and endeavored to ensure that all published data are true and accurate
and clear and balanced. The Group also collects feedback from investors and analysts and reflects the views to the
management and the board of directors. We are committed to maintaining healthy and two-way communication to ensure
that investors can fully understand the Group’s long-term development, strategy, industry competition and financial and
operational performance.

INVESTOR RELATIONS ACTIVITIES

The Group strictly follows the principle of fair disclosure to ensure fair communication with investors and the media and
does not selectively disclose significant non-public information to any person. We are very supportive of investor relations
activities. To facilitate the two-way communication with investors, the Group has adopted different ways, including local
and overseas non-deal road shows, investor meetings, annual general meetings, corporate meetings, conference calls and
e-mail consultation, to closely and frequently communicate with shareholders, analysts and potential investors.

This Year, despite the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic which caused large and small investment summits and on site
roadshows cancelled or changed to telephone or video conferences, our management actively met with investors in
various countries through telephone, email and video conferences to discuss the Company’s development and direction
with investors, provide them with a deep understanding of the Company, and also strengthen investors’ confidence in the
company’s sustainable development. We actively receive many institutional investors and individual investors in a one-to-
one way to conduct company research, maintain close contact and updates on the capital market.

The Group has made use of a number of channels to interact with investors and keep them abreast of the Group’s latest
developments.

Non-deal roadshows and investment forums

We hold non-deal roadshows after the interim and annual results announcement so that investors can obtain first-hand
information on the latest release from the management. The Group also actively participates in several investment
conferences organized by investment banks of which the management of the Group directly talks with investors and
analysts to share our financial results, business strategies and etc..

Major investor conferences participated and roadshows held in 2020 are set out below:

Month A 4% Event =518

XEERERRS

TRENREERBERIE

EMBEARZACNAERNEBRE  BPRREEMEGA  BEBERRRAZRKREE (R
BREERFREABIREE DETHE 35 - AHMNEBANERIRN  ERMRRE
EHAEEzLEFGRES  BRER EARFIERUAZLERVBRRIAIAER
B RMBEREERENBZBERTFERERE - AEEULQT ERREFREQT
ARBEME UBRRARSERE  BRAFXKENREIE REXMEREENEE UK
RELHTHRIBNEE -

2020 AEEREFRAER UEEKENRE BEEE  BARSHEEIQRDEL
BROREENFEENER - ARER N AREERAFEENBERE X/ IREMD
N EHRHEIRHEEERLBHFEHLES  TERERE - AEBTREREERD T
BENRESR  IRZERRRRAEEERESE - RMNBINREREREANEE -
BRAREFEZEYURBHEERAEENRBBEMRR - TH  TERFHARAZHBERE
BRHE

X B &R RIEH

FEEBRKBEATRERD  BRUATHAXNEREEREREER  BTTEEMLM
EAALBEERFAMER - BRMYREZFBRIED TOXE  RREEREE 2 BNE
BEE AREEBAMREANMIERZHRE REESSE RRBFAE 258HE -
EFERREREASTRANRE  HERR - IMAIREBEEREEFERERAENIR -

E BEXBRESRENFEMERAKNNMWREZEEGRIEERSSHHAEIUE
FRUEFRGELNET  ARRAEEENEBEBER EBRNESRSZEHL AR
EEEHNREEEEH  BREARARREAD  BREZRABEEQATANER - MEREEY
REAFABRRNVED - HMEBESREUBREZREAREEN-H-NITXYIRE
THRMNER  REXATE-—EREREHE -

FEEZBZEREAREELDN  SREEBELEEBRHNNBRE M -

HIRZBERREEHNE

EMRAPBRFEXABRMRETIREIRE  MEREENEEENSERRNBMEE
MER - AEEEBRBSNARERITABNREEZEE - AEEEEERELERREE
RAWE B0 EAKREMBRE  EBEREHNEN -

R2020F2EH 2 RBREEEERETZHBENT :

March = A Post-results non-deal roadshow ¥4 % 3R 5 88 &
Post-results non-deal roadshow 4% 3 X 5 i &
Post-results non-deal roadshow ¥ 4& % kR 5 8 &
Post-results non-deal roadshow 2 &#% 3R 5 B &
Post-results non-deal roadshow 248 % 3 X 5 B &
Post-results non-deal roadshow ¥4 % 3 X 5 388

June N A 2020 Asia Healthcare Virtual Conference Z2 it B2 B4R 2 15 # & 5% 2020
August \ B Post-results non-deal roadshow 3£ &% 3 X 5 B8 &

Post-results non-deal roadshow 348 % 3E X 5 1§ &
Post-results non-deal roadshow #4& % JERX 5 i &E
Post-results non-deal roadshow $£4&% JE X 5 i858
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Organizers ¥ B H#1E Location i # / Form 2=

Morgan Stanley EE4R £ £ %I Telephone conference EsE & &%
HSBCEZ Telephone conference & &%
CICCHEAT Telephone conference EA &%
GF Securities B3 & % Telephone conference E:E &%
First Shanghai 55 — L% Telephone conference E:E &
Industrial Securities Fl 3 3% % Telephone conference BFE &3
Credit Suisse ¥s 15 Telephone conference B &%
Morgan Stanley EE4R £ £ K Telephone conference E:E &
HSBCEZ Telephone conference EA &%
CICCH£ AT Telephone conference ExE &
First Shanghai 5 — L8 Telephone conference &5 &%
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INVESTOR RELATIONS REPORT

Ongoing communication with the investment community

The Group actively arranged various investor relation activities, including telephone conferences with analysts and investor
meetings and etc., in order to keep investors abreast of the Group’s latest updates and business operations. Through such
activities, we not only maintain close contact with investors so that investors can get more in-depth and meticulous
understanding of the Company’s situation, but also collect valuable advice from investor’s on the Group’s business
strategy.

Timely response to investors, analysts and media

Our investor relation representative provides detailed and accurate information in a timely manner in response to various
forms of enquiries from Shareholders, investors, analysts and the media via email, fax or telephone.

Factory visit

Factory visit is one of the best ways for our investors to understand our business operations. Upon receiving requests of
investors from time to time or at the annual general meeting, the Group will arrange the relevant itinerary and reception as
soon as possible, facilitating investors taking full advantage of this opportunity to understand the Group’s products,
historical development, shop display and sales management and other first-hand information.

Besides the above systematic communication activities, the Company website also contains an updated investor relations
section to reach out to the investment community and public with the latest information on the Company. We also promote
proactive communication through direct contact with our investor relations team via email at ir@tongrentangcm.com.

Share Performance IR BXRIH

Closing price as at 31 December (HK$ per share) 815 1176 1232 10.62 10.48 9.88  10.78 10.18
M12A31 AW THE (BRER)

Highest price during the year (HK$ per share) 1450 15686 17.94 1200 1220 14.82 12.50 14.90
EERSE(BRER)

Lowest price during the year (HK$ per share) 7.75 9.88  10.54 9.98 7.55 7.71 9.09 4.70
FEREE(BRAET)

Average daily trading volume (thousand share) 1,531 854 925 469 424 883 1,120 4,200

SAVPYRRE(TR)

MARKET DIVIDEND PER SHARE
CAPITALISATION @ AND DIVIDEND PAYOUT RATIO
mfEm SRRERIKBL =R
HK$’billion HK$ %
TEET BT Bt
12.00 030 40
11.00 025
10.31
10.00 0.20
9.00 0.15
8.00 0.10
7.00 0.05
6.00 0.00
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
M Market capitalization are calculated [ Dividend per share @ Dividend payout ratio
based on the closing share price of the Company FRERE TRE L=

as at 31 December of the respective years.
TERBREEZBIEEF12B31 BNAQTWHREE o

@ Not included 2019 Special interim dividend (HK$0.72 per share).
TEFE2019F /B HHRE (BR0.728TT) °
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REERGRRS

REERERER
AREIBHRAEHAREAEBETY  EANPEERY  RAZOWS  REORA
ENERNSFBFDONCESR - BBRETEH  AMBETRRAERFRTHE - BR
BEEMFAABBORAADER  PTRERAEY A EAXBAMHREER -

REDRREE « Al ERENRS
REEHFRREAZBER FAFEFLHN  REEERR REE IMERERNE
BEH WREBEAARERFRNEN -

THEE

BEZ2BIREREEERAMNEBLEEBRNRER A2 — - AREAESFRRAERT

BRIREESBIRNERE  SHFEABRZHERTRERS  EPREEZINA
ERE BERAKENER BLBER JEHRY  #HEEESE-FEH -

BRTUERGHNEBREHN AL RARABNREEFAEABEHETEEN  BBARAT[
REERABALTREAQRIAZIEEBERENELREIE - B BT HEANSHBEEER
EEEH  AQAINBEBRIREEBESE FEFir@tongrentangecm.com E2 3% & & 1 17 H 125
% REENES -
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM is a platform for face-to-face communication with Shareholders. Our Board members, senior management,
lawyer and external auditor will attend and answer questions on the performance of the Group raised by the Shareholders.

The 2020 AGM was held at 3 Dai King Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, New Territories, Hong Kong on 12 June 2020, for
approval of, among others, the re-election of retiring Directors and the general mandates to issue and purchase shares.
Particulars of the major items considered at the 2020 AGM are set out in the circular dated 28 April 2020. All proposed
resolutions were passed by way of poll voting at the 2020 AGM.

The 2021 AGM will be held at 3 Dai King Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, New Territories, Hong Kong on Friday, 28 May
2021 at 10:30 a.m..

EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Connecting with shareholders has always been important to the Company. To foster openness, shareholders’ meetings are
held to ensure Shareholders can participate in or appoint proxies to hear from and put questions to Directors regarding the
Group’s business performance.

This Year, the extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) was held at Room 1405-1409, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on 17 December 2020 for the purpose of considering and passing the resolutions of
the renewal of exclusive framework agreement dated 6 November 2020 entered into between the Company and Tong Ren
Tang Ltd. and Tong Ren Tang Technologies, and also the resolution of revision of annual caps under the existing PRC
distribution framework agreement dated 2 December 2019 entered into between the Company and Tong Ren Tang
Holdings, details of which are set out in the circular dated 27 November 2020. All proposed resolutions were passed by
way of poll voting at the EGM.
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REERGRRS

BRREFAS

BRRBEFASR—EARFERRIANTE  KMNESEHE  SREBASE - AREM
ROMBEZHMISHE  TURRRELERAAEERRWEEFELERE -

2020 FRRBFRAEN2020F6 A 12ABREFEHA RN I EMASAH I LT - 2020
FREBFAGLBBACSE  HHEEERRAESURBTRBERMA 2 —REESS
H2020 FRRBEAG LEZE 2T EEHFFANBNE2020F4 A28 ZBRA
FIER20200 ERRBAFAGLREZRER  WUREFNEBEB -

2021 ERMRBFEARERN2021F5 828 A (EHR) R L10RBI 0D BEESBHRHIE
TWPASH 3GELEIT o
RESRIAS

EM-—OERERRREHE - BREZVE  BHERRASTERRBREIAZIRARES
ETHRAGEERRR  XPESFHAERBIRER -

AE AEBR2020F 12817 ABRERBEFBLE1RERESH O KIE1405-1409
FRTRREIAG(TRREINAE])  UZELEBFEALAFERCERAL2ARAE
CENEATAR2020F 11 A6 HEFTBRCHEELRGE  URHAQAAHRCEEB AR
MIRBENR2019F 12 A2 AT Y MHPE D HIERBEFE LRVETHRER » #1858 2020
F11H27TEMBR - FTARBRREINAGLRERECREYUREAXNESEB -
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ding Yong Ling, aged 57, is an executive director and the chairman of the Board of the Company. She is mainly
responsible for leading the Board to determine the development strategic direction of the Group and the high-level
oversight of the management. Ms. Ding was appointed as a managing director (now namely as chief executive officer) of
the Company in September 2004 and the chairman of the Board of the Company on 11 March 2019. Ms. Ding resigned as
the chief executive officer of the Company on 18 April 2019. Ms. Ding joined Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group in 1984 and
was formerly the head of the foreign trade division of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, manager of the import and export branches
and the executive director and the deputy general manager of Tong Ren Tang Technologies and the director of Beijing
Tong Ren Tang International Co., Ltd., and also is currently the director and the deputy general manager of Tong Ren Tang
Holdings. Ms. Ding graduated from the Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China in August
1997 with a bachelor’s degree in major of economic management, and she further completed an on-the-job postgraduate
course in international business administration at the Business School of the University of International Business and
Economics in April 2002.

Chen Fei, aged 50, is an executive director and the chief executive officer of the Company and is mainly responsible for
our day-to-day operation and management. Mr. Chen was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company on 24
March 2020 and was re-designated as an executive director and was appointed as the chief executive officer of the
Company on 11 March 2021. Mr. Chen joined Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group in August 1994 and formerly served as the
manager and the deputy manager of Operational Management Department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, the deputy
manager of Pricing Department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, the deputy manager of Economic Operation Department of
Tong Ren Tang Holdings and the general manager of Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Thailand) Co., Ltd.. Mr. Chen obtained a
bachelor’s degree in Chinese medicine from School of Chinese Medicine of Beijing Union University in August 1994.

Lin Man, aged 45, is an executive director and chief operating officer of the Company and is mainly responsible for the
sales and business management of the Company. Ms. Lin joined the Company in 2004 and was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company in 2005, the chief financial officer of the Company in 2008, and a Director on 1 February 2011.
Ms. Lin was appointed as the chief operating officer of the Company on 21 May 2020 and ceased to be the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of the Company on the same day. Ms. Lin is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Lin obtained a bachelor’s degree in arts in Polish from Beijing Foreign Studies University
in July 1999 and a bachelor’s degree in accounting and finance from the University of Lancaster in July 2004.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper, G.B.M., G.B.S., J.P., aged 73, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 12 September 2017. Mr. Tsang is Honorary Professor of the Faculty of Social Science of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and the Convenor of Hong Kong Vision Research Programme. Mr. Tsang currently serves as an
independent non-executive director of Kunlun Energy Company Limited (Stock code: 135) and DTXS Silk Road Investment
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 620) which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Tsang held a number of posts
in public service, including the President of the Fourth and the Fifth Legislative Council of the HKSAR from 2008 to 2016.
Prior to his election as President of the Legislative Council of the HKSAR, Mr. Tsang served as a member of the Legislative
Council from 1998 to 2016, representing the Kowloon West constituency from 1998 to 2008 and the Hong Kong Island
constituency from 2008 to 2016. He served as a member of the Executive Council of the HKSAR from 2002 to 2008. From
1992 to 2003, he served as chairman of the Democratic Alliance for the Betterment of Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang was actively
involved in the establishment of the HKSAR. He served as a member of the Preparatory Committee established by the
Standing Committee of the Chinese National People’s Congress in 1996 and a member of the Provisional Legislative
Council of the HKSAR from 1997 to 1998. Mr. Tsang was a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference from 1993 to 2013, a non-executive director of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission from 2001 to 2007, a member of the Executive Committee of the Commission on Strategic Development from
2005 to 2008, a board member of the Airport Authority Hong Kong from 2005 to 2008, a member of the Independent
Commission Against Corruption Complaints Committee from 2003 to 2008 and a member of the Disaster Relief Fund
Advisory Committee from 2002 to 2008. Mr. Tsang also served as a member of the Council of The Open University of Hong
Kong from 1996 to 2005 and a member of the Standing Committee on Language Education and Research from 1996 to
2000. Mr. Tsang obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree at The University of Hong Kong in 1968, Certificate in Education at the
University of Hong Kong in 1981 and a Master of Education degree at the University of Hong Kong in 1983. Mr. Tsang was
appointed as a Justice of the Peace (J.P.) in 1998 and was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star (G.B.S.) in 2002 and the Grand
Bauhinia Medal (G.B.M.) in 2015.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Zhao Zhong Zhen, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 15 April 2013.
Mr. Zhao is currently a professor of the School of Chinese Medicine of Hong Kong Baptist University. Mr. Zhao has been
an associate professor of Hong Kong Baptist University since April 1999. Mr. Zhao is currently a member of the Chinese
Pharmacopoeia Commission. From 1985 to 1987, Mr. Zhao was a research assistant of Institute of Chinese Material
Medical China Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences. From 1987 to 1988 and 1991 to 1992, Mr. Zhao was a visiting
scholar of Tokyo University of Pharmacy and Life Science. Mr. Zhao was a research director of a laboratory for Chinese
medicines in Japan during the period from October 1992 to April 1999. From July 2009 to January 2010, Mr. Zhao was a
visiting scholar of Osher Research Centre of Harvard Medical School and was a member of Chinese Medicine
Development Committee from February 2013 to January 2019. Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree and a master’s
degree, both in Chinese medicine, from Beijing University of Chinese Medicine in March 1982, and from China Academy of
Chinese Medical Sciences in December 1985, respectively. Mr. Zhao obtained his doctorate degree in pharmacy in Tokyo
University of Pharmacy and Life Science in March 1992.

Chan Ngai Chi, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 15 April 2013. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Chan had more than 20 years of financial management, compliance and auditing experience.
Mr. Chan worked in the audit division of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong and various Hong Kong and U.S. listed
companies. Mr. Chan worked in Tong Ren Tang Technologies as the financial controller and company secretary from 2004
to 2007. Mr. Chan worked as the principal financial officer of Gushan Environmental Energy Company Limited, which was
a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange in December 2007 and privatized in October 2012. Mr. Chan is
currently the principal financial officer of China Metal Resources Utilization Limited (Stock code: 1636). Mr. Chan is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, and also a Chartered Financial Analyst Charterholder. Mr. Chan graduated from the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in business administration in accounting in 1994 and obtained a
master’s degree in Science from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2003.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Li Xia, aged 54, is the chief engineer of the Company, and joined the Company in 2008. Ms. Li has been in Beijing Tong
Ren Tang Group since 1990 and is mainly responsible for research and development of Chinese medicines and healthcare
products. Ms. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in Chinese medicine from Beijing University of Chinese Medicine in July
1989.

Wu Wei, aged 50, is the deputy general manager of the Company and is responsible for the production. Ms. Wu joined
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group in 2002, transferred to the Company from Tong Ren Tang Research Institute in 2014, and
was mainly responsible for product, technology development and project management. Ms. Wu obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Biochemical Engineering from Shanghai Jiao Tong University in 1992 and a master degree’s in Medicine from
Beijing University of Chinese Medicine in 2007.

Tsang Fung Yi, aged 45, is the chief financial officer and the company secretary of the Company. Ms. Tsang joined the
Company as a deputy chief financial officer in October 2012. Ms. Tsang was appointed as the chief financial officer and the
company secretary of the Company on 21 May 2020. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Tsang worked as a senior audit
manager in PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong. Ms. Tsang graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology with a bachelor’s degree in business administration in accounting in 1998 and is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The change in the information of the Directors of the Company since the publication of the 2020 interim report of the
Company which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules is set out below:

Name of Director Detail of Changes

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Fei Appointed as a non-executive director of the Company on 24
March 2020, and re-designated as an Executive Director and
appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company on 11
March 2021

Mr. Zhang Huan Ping Retired as an Executive Director and the chief executive officer of
the Company on 11 March 2021

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper Appointed as an independent non-executive director of DTXS Silk
Road Investment Holdings Company Limited on 1 September
2020, a company publicly listed on the Stock Exchange

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules. The updated biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out in the preceding section headed
“Directors and Senior Management”.
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The Directors are pleased to present the report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing, retail and wholesale of Chinese medicine products and
healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the consolidated income statement on pages
158 to 159 of this annual report.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK$0.24 (2019: HK$0.23) per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2020. Such final dividend will be proposed for approval by shareholders at the AGM to be held on Friday, 28 May 2021 and
if approved, will be payable on or before Wednesday, 30 June 2021 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members of the Company on Monday, 7 June 2021.

Details of the dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of the dividend policy of the Company are also set out in the below section headed “Corporate
Governance Report”.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the following periods:

(i) from Monday, 24 May 2021 to Friday, 28 May 2021 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell
Centre,183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 21 May 2021;
and

(ii) from Thursday, 3 June 2021 to Monday, 7 June 2021 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement the proposed final dividend. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at the address as set out in sub-paragraph (i) above
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 2 June 2021.

During the periods mentioned in sub-paragraphs (i) and (ii) above, no transfers of shares will be registered.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of the segment information of the Group are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had borrowings of HK$2.3 million (2019: HK$1.1 million), details of which are set out
in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out
in notes 32 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements respectively and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 164 to 165 of the annual report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the reserves of the Company available for distribution amounted to HK$2,090.7 million (2019:
HK$1,772.1 million).

DONATIONS

Cash charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to HK$2.0 million
(2019: HK$0.1 million).

EIGHT YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last eight financial years is set out on pages
12 to 13 of the annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue received/receivable from the top five customers in aggregate and the
single largest customer accounted for approximately 59.1% (2019: 51.7%) and 26.4% (2019: 22.6%) of the Group’s
revenue, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, purchases paid/payable to the top five suppliers in aggregate and the largest
supplier constituted approximately 53.2% (2019: 54.2%) and 23.7% (2019: 28.4%) of the Group’s total purchases,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, among the Group’s top five customers include subsidiaries of the ultimate holding
company, a subsidiary of the intermediate holding company and the immediate holding company. In addition, the Group’s
top five suppliers include the immediate holding company, the intermediate holding company and their associates.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any interest in any of the top five
customers and suppliers.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group values the contributions of employees. The Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract and
motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard. Details are set out below under the section “Emolument Policy” and note
2(u) to the consolidated financial statements.

To maintain its core competitiveness, the Group aims at delivering constantly high standards of quality in the Chinese
medicine products and service to its customers. The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its customers and suppliers to fulfil its long term goals and carefully select (including and taking into
account their financial position, credit history and other factors) our suppliers to ensure that our commitment to customers
of quality and ethics. As at 31 December 2020, majority of the Group’s trade receivables are due within 90 days from the
date of invoices, and credit periods granted to customers, including the immediate holding company, fellow subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates, normally range from 30 days to 90 days. Details are set out in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements. During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its customers and/or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Ding Yong Ling (Chairman)

Chen Fei (Chief Executive Officer) (re-designated as an executive director and appointed as chief executive officer on
11 March 2021)

Zhang Huan Ping (Chief Executive Officer) (retired on 11 March 2021)

Lin Man (Chief Operating Officer) (appointed as chief operating officer on 21 May 2020)

Non-executive Director

Chen Fei (appointed as a non-executive Director on 24 March 2020 and re-designated as an executive director on
11 March 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper
Zhao Zhong Zhen
Chan Ngai Chi

In accordance with Articles 97 of the Articles of Association, two directors, namely, Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper and Mr.
Zhao Zhong Zhen shall retire from office by rotation respectively at the forthcoming AGM and, all being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election as the Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors, a confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent. A full list of the names of the directors of the Group’s subsidiaries can be found in the
Company’s website (cm.tongrentang.com) under “Investor Relations”.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Executive Directors, Ms. Ding Yong Ling and Ms. Lin Man, entered into service contracts with the Company for a fixed
term of three years commencing from 15 April 2019.

Executive Director, Mr. Chen Fei, entered into a service contract with the Company serving as a non-executive director of
the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from 24 March 2020. On 11 March 2021, Mr. Chen Fei entered
into a service contract with the Company for a fixed term of three years serving as an Executive Director commencing from
11 March 2021.

Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper, Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen and Mr. Chan Ngai Chi, being all Independent Non-executive Directors,
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from 12 September
2020, 15 April 2019 and 15 April 2019, respectively, unless terminated by either party giving at least two months’ notice in
writing.

None of the Directors has entered or proposed to enter into any service contracts with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on pages 96 to 99 of the annual
report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with reference to market terms and the performance,
qualifications and experience of the individual employee. The remunerations of the Directors are determined with reference
to the economic situation, the market condition, the responsibilities and duties assumed by each Director as well as their
individual performance. Details of the fee and emolument of the Directors are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates various retirement schemes. Particulars of these retirement schemes are set out in note 2(u) to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interest and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong)) of Directors
and chief executives of the Company which would have to be notified to the Company pursuant to of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and required to be entered
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules of the
Exchange, to be notified to the Company and the Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in shares

Types of interests

RERME
The Company A2 7]
Ding Yong Ling T k¥ Personal B A
Zhang Huan Ping 3R J&F Personal B A
Lin Man # & Personal fE A

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests and short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the section “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in shares” above, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2020 was the Company, any of its subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or their respective associates has any competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

To ensure that the business classification between the Company and the Controlling Shareholders are properly
documented and established, each of the Controlling Shareholders entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of
Non-competition”) in favour of the Company on 18 April 2013, details of which are set out in the Prospectus, mainly to the
effect that at any time until their collective beneficial interest in the equity interest in the Company is less than 30%, each of
them shall not, and shall procure their respective subsidiaries (except through its interests in the Group) not to, without
prior written consent of the Company, directly or indirectly:

(i) engage in the research, development, manufacture and sales of any products containing ganoderma lucidum or
ganoderma lucidum spores as raw materials in the Non-PRC Markets;

(i) engage in the research, development, manufacture and sale of any products with “Tong Ren Tang” brands in
Non-PRC Markets, except for the manufacture of the Chinese medicine products for the two independent third
parties in Japan; for the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the Deed of Non-competition,
except for the current excluded business in Japan, engage in arrangement with any other parties in the Non-PRC
Markets similar to the excluded business in Japan;
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(i)  carry out any sales or registration (new or renewal) for Angong Niuhuang Wan in the Non-PRC Markets;

(iv)  engage in the distribution of any Chinese medicine products in Non-PRC Markets, except for certain existing
arrangements as disclosed in the Prospectus; and

(v) carry out any new overseas registration of “Tong Ren Tang” branded products ((i) to (v) are collectively known as
“Restricted Business”).

In addition, under the Deed of Non-competition, each of the Controlling Shareholders has also undertaken that if each of
them and/or any of its associates is offered or becomes aware of any project or new business opportunity (the “New
Business Opportunity”) that relates to the Restricted Business, whether directly or indirectly, it shall (i) promptly and in any
event not later than seven (7) days notify the Company in writing of such opportunity and provide such information as is
reasonably required by the Company in order to enable the Company to come to an informed assessment of such
opportunity; and (ii) use its best endeavours to procure that such opportunity is offered to the Company on terms no less
favourable than the terms on which such opportunity is offered to it and/or its associates.

The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors) will review the New Business Opportunity and decide
whether to invest in the New Business Opportunity within thirty (30) business days of receipt of notice from Controlling
Shareholders.

Tong Ren Tang Holdings has also granted the Company rights of first refusal to acquire its interest in Beijing Tong Ren
Tang Hong Kong Medicine Management Limited, Beijing Tong Ren Tang (UK) Limited and Beijing Tong Ren Tang Tai Fong
Co., Ltd. on terms which are not less favorable than the terms it wishes to sell to other parties.

In this connection, the Group adopted the following corporate governance measures to manage any potential conflicts of
interest arising from any future potential competing business and to safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the
Company:

(i) the Independent Non-executive Directors shall review, at least on an annual basis, the compliance with and
enforcement of the terms of the Deed of Non-competition by the Controlling Shareholders; and

(ii) the Company will disclose the review by the Independent Non-executive Directors with basis on the compliance with
and enforcement of the terms of the Deed of Non-competition in its annual report.

In monitoring the competing business of the Parent Group, an executive committee (the “Competition Executive
Committee”) comprising two disinterested Directors, namely Mr. Chen Fei and Ms. Lin Man, has been established with the
following major responsibilities:

(@) conduct quarterly inspection of the distribution channels of the Parent Group, including retail stores and wholesale
customers, to check whether any products containing ganoderma lucidum or ganoderma lucidum spores as raw
materials (other than GLSPC) is sold in Non-PRC Markets; and

(b)  conduct quarterly communications with representatives of the Parent Group to confirm whether their research and
development portfolio has any products which contain ganoderma lucidum or ganoderma lucidum spores as raw
materials.

A supervisory committee (the “Competition Supervisory Committee”), comprising three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper (Chairman), Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen and Mr. Chan Ngai Chi, has been
established, with the following major responsibilities:

(@) meet quarterly and review the quarterly inspection record and daily communication records by the Competition
Executive Committee (if applicable); and

(b) report findings during its review of the records provided by the Competition Executive Committee to the Board which
will be published in the Company’s annual report.

To the best knowledge of the Competition Executive Committee, they are not aware of the distribution channels of the
Parent Group selling any products containing ganoderma lucidum or ganoderma lucidum spores as raw materials (other
than GLSPC) in Non-PRC Markets for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS TERR

R2020F 12831 B AXRRARDREBRO THEEREZSZRBERMNEXVHEHS
ARBRBXAREBLRARBAREESZRBERFEBREFELHNEERANER
DRANEENAL(ESHEARAETBTHAERMN AOT ¢

At 31 December 2020, the interest of the persons, other than Directors or chief executive of the Company, in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO and entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to
the Company were as follows:

Long Position in Shares RNHE

Approximate
percentage of
issued share capital

Name of shareholder Capacity Number of shares HERTRAN
RREB 54 g 4= BB
Tong Ren Tang Technologies [E{=& &% Beneficial owner B G A 318,540,000 38.05%
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. ® E{=Z & O Beneficial owner B A A 281,460,000 33.62%

Tong Ren Tang Holdings @ E{ZZ&£E A 7@
Notes:

(1) Tong Ren Tang Ltd. directly holds 46.85% of the issued share capital of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Accordingly, Tong Ren Tang
Ltd. is deemed to be interested in 318,540,000 shares of the Company held by Tong Ren Tang Technologies.

) Tong Ren Tang Holdings directly holds 52.45% of the issued share capital of Tong Ren Tang Ltd. which in turn directly holds 46.85%
of the issued share capital of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Tong Ren Tang Holdings also directly holds 1.65% domestic shares and
H shares in total of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Accordingly, Tong Ren Tang Holdings is deemed to be interested in 318,540,000
shares of the Company and 281,460,000 shares of the Company held by Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Ltd.,
respectively.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall under
the provisions of Part XV of the SFO to be disclosed to the Company, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements, certain of these transactions also constitute connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into a number of connected transactions/continuing connected transactions with the connected
persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of GEM Listing Rules (applicable to the Company prior to the
Transfer of Listing and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (applicable to the Company immediately after the Transfer of
Listing). Details of the non-exempted continuing connected transactions of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2020 are as follows:

(1) PRC Distribution Framework Agreement with Tong Ren Tang Holdings

On 2 December 2019, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings entered into a PRC distribution framework
agreement (the “PRC Distribution Framework Agreement”) that Tong Ren Tang Group (collectively refer to Tong Ren
Tang Holdings, its subsidiaries, its jointly controlled entities and its associates, other than Tong Ren Tang
Technologies and its subsidiaries) act as a non-exclusive distributor of the Group and would purchase the Owned
Products (as defined in the announcement of the Company dated 2 December 2019) from the Group and then
distribute the same to retailers or end users in the PRC for a period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.
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Tong Ren Tang Holdings is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company and is therefore a connected person
of the Company under Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the PRC Distribution
Framework Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2020 and the years ending 31 December 2021 and 2022
are HK$273,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), HK$296,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the
PRC) and HK$322,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), respectively.

As the market demand for the Owned Products in the PRC exceeded the original projection, the aggregate amount
of the Owned Products procured by the Tong Ren Tang Group from the Group under the PRC Distribution
Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020 was expected to exceed the original annual cap. With
the continuous business development of the Group and market demand for the Owned Products in the PRC, the
Board decided to revise the corresponding annual caps under the PRC Distribution Framework Agreement. Except
for the annual caps, all other terms of the PRC Distribution Framework Agreement remain unchanged.

The revised annual caps in respect of the transactions under the PRC Distribution Framework Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and years ending 31 December 2021 and 2022 are HK$363,000,000 (exclusive of
value-added tax in the PRC), HK$430,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC) and HK$470,000,000
(exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), respectively. As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other
than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 5% and the annual caps are more than HK$10,000,000, the PRC
distribution framework agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements as well as the independent shareholders’ approval under the Listing
Rules. Details of the revision of the annual caps under the PRC Distribution Framework Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 6 November 2020.

The revision of annual caps under the PRC Distribution Framework Agreement was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company in the EGM held on 17 December 2020.

PRC Distribution Framework Agreement with Tong Ren Tang Technologies

On 13 May 2020, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Technologies entered into a PRC distribution framework
agreement (the “TRT Tech PRC Distribution Framework Agreement”) that Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group
(collectively refer to Tong Ren Tang Technologies and its subsidiaries (either directly owned or indirectly owned,
other than the Group) act as a non-exclusive distributor of the Group and would purchase the Relevant Products (as
defined in the announcement of the Company dated 13 May 2020) from the Group and then sell the same to
distributors, retailers or end users in the PRC or for the purpose of production for a period from 13 May 2020 to 31
December 2022.

Tong Ren Tang Technologies is our controlling shareholder of the Company and hence a connected person of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the TRT
Tech PRC Distribution Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the years ending 2021 and
2022 are HK$50,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), HK$57,000,000,000 (exclusive of value-added
tax in the PRC) and HK$65,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 0.1% but
less than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions contemplated under the TRT Tech PRC Distribution Framework
Agreement are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing Rules. Details of the TRT Tech PRC Distribution
Framework Agreement are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 13 May 2020.

Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreements with Tong Ren Tang
Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Ltd.

On 8 November 2017, the Company entered into exclusive distributorship framework agreements (the “Exclusive
Distributorship Framework Agreements”) with each of Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Ltd.
whereby TRT International Natural-Pharm, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was appointed by each of
Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group (refer to Tong Ren Tang Technologies, its subsidiaries and its associates (other
than the Group)) and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group (refer to Tong Ren Tang Ltd., its subsidiaries and its associates
(other than Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group and the Group)) as the sole distributor of Tong Ren Tang branded
products in Non-PRC markets for the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. TRT International Natural-
Pharm would purchase Tong Ren Tang branded products from Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group and Tong Ren
Tang Ltd. Group and distribute them to the Non-PRC Markets.

Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. are both the controlling shareholders of the Company and
hence are connected persons of the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules. The annual caps in respect of the
transactions under the Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreements with Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group
for the years ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 are HK$58,400,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the
PRC), HK$76,400,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC) and HK$99,200,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in
the PRC), respectively. The annual caps in respect of the transactions under the Exclusive Distributorship Framework
Agreements with Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group for the years ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 are
HK$87,600,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), HK$114,600,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the
PRC) and HK$148,800,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), respectively.
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As the Exclusive Distribution Framework Agreement expired on 31 December 2020, the Company entered into new
exclusive distribution framework agreements on 6 November 2020 with each of Tong Ren Tang Technologies and
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. (the “New Exclusive Distribution Framework Agreements”) to renew the procurement
arrangement for a further term of three years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. The annual caps for the
transactions under the New Exclusive Distribution Framework Agreements for the years ending 31 December 2021,
2022 and 2023 are HK$53,700,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), HK$61,800,000 (exclusive of value-
added tax in the PRC) and HK$71,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC) with Tang Ren Tang
Technologies, as well as HK$86,200,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), HK$99,100,000 (exclusive of
value-added tax in the PRC) and HK$114,000,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC) with Tang Ren Tang
Ltd., respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 5% and
the annual caps are more than HK$10,000,000, the New Exclusive Distribution Framework Agreements and the
transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements as
well as the independent shareholders’ approval under the Listing Rules. Details of the New Exclusive Distribution
Framework Agreements are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 6 November 2020.

The New Exclusive Distribution Framework Agreements were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company in the EGM held on 17 December 2020.

Procurement of Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder from Tong Ren Tang Ltd.

The Company and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. entered into a renewed Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder master purchase
agreement on 6 December 2018 (the “Renewed Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder Master Purchase Agreement”)
whereby the Company would purchase Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder, being the raw materials for production of
Angong Niuhuang Wan, from Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group for the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021.

Tong Ren Tang Ltd. is our controlling shareholder of the Company and hence a connected person of the Company

for the purpose of the Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the Renewed Angong
Niuhuang Wan Powder Master Purchase Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 and the year
ending 2021 are HK$31,000,000, HK$42,000,000,000 and HK$55,000,000, respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 0.1% but
less than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions contemplated under the Renewed Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder
Master Purchase Agreement are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules. Details of the Renewed Angong
Niuhuang Wan Powder Master Purchase Agreement are set out in the announcement of the Company dated

6 December 2018.

Master Lease Framework Agreement with Tong Ren Tang Holdings

On 30 December 2019, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings entered into a renewed master lease framework
agreement (the “Renewed Master Lease Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which, Tong Ren Tang Holdings has
agreed to lease and procure other members of the Parent Group to lease certain premises to the Group for its
productions and operations so that any member of the Group may continue, amend or renew the existing leases
with any member of the Parent Group from time to time and as necessary for the future business needs of the Group
for a period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.

Tong Ren Tang Holdings is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company and is therefore a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the Renewed
Master Lease Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the years ending 31 December 2021
and 2022 are HK$21,000,000, HK$16,000,000 and HK$11,200,000, respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio and equity capital ratio) of the annual
caps exceed 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions contemplated under the Renewed Master
Lease Framework Agreement are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing Rules. Details of the Renewed Master
Lease Framework Agreement are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 30 December 2019.
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(6) Advertising Agency Framework Agreement with Tong Ren Tang Century (B) HE{CZEHIESFIVESHEERGE

Advertising
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On 28 April 2020, the Company and Beijing Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising Co., Ltd. (“Tong Ren Tang Century
Advertising”) entered into the advertising agency framework agreement (the “Advertising Agency Framework
Agreement”) that Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tong Ren Tang Technologies
act as a non-exclusive advertising agent of the Group, to provide the Advertising Agency Services (as defined in the
announcement of the Company dated 28 April 2020) to the Group in the PRC for a period from 1 May 2020 to 31
December 2022.

B CEREDARDAMNERKR  WRBELTHEIBERAATNEEAL - HZE2020
F 2021 FR2022F12A31BLEFE - BEREBERBEMIREGNFEELRS
Bl 56,200,000 T(FEHEELEF) 7,600,000 T(FTEFEAEER) R
8,900,000 8 T (T & FEIEEFR) °

Tong Ren Tang Technologies is the controlling shareholder of the Company and hence a connected person of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the
Advertising Agency Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the years ending 31 December
2021 and 2022 are HK$6,200,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), HK$7,600,000 (exclusive of value-
added tax in the PRC) and HK$8,900,000 (exclusive of value-added tax in the PRC), respectively.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the annual caps exceed 0.1% but ARFELRN—ELZHEERATILRCEFILLERIN) 1TBB01%EBERE%
less than 5% on an annual basis, the transactions contemplated under the Advertising Agency Framework HEEREERBRERAIRSHEBT LTRANSER  AEREEFEZ BF
Agreement are subject to reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but exempt from the EEBIRERAE -

independent shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing Rules.

Details of the above continuing connected transactions are further summarised as follows: TEHERESSHEE— ST

Transaction amount Annual cap
for the year ended for the year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2020

B ZE 2020 F B ZE2020F
12A31H1E 12A31 A1
EEXSHE EEYEELR
Name of connected party Nature of transaction HK$°000 HK$’000
BEEE S 218 RHME FHET FET
(1)  Tong Ren Tang Group Sales of the Owned Products 338,024 363,000
B{EEE HEBBEM
(2)  Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group Sales of the Relevant Products 8,668 50,000
BE{ERKEE SHEMBEM
(8)  Tong Ren Tang Technologies Group Purchase of Tong Ren Tang branded products 36,708 99,200
E-EREER BERICEREER
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group 49,762 148,800
BICERGEE
(4)  Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group Purchase of Angong Niuhuang Wan Powder 22,290 42,000
B{EROEE BEZE4FERN
(5) Parent Group Lease of premises 14,551 21,000
FEE MHEEE
(6) Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising Provision of the Advertising Agency Services 1,235 6,200

B{-EHLES

REESAERE

The price and the terms of the above transactions have been determined in accordance with the pricing policies and
guideline set out in the relevant announcements.

PR ZNERRERCRBEREQIEMHEEBREESIEE -

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHTESER

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
these continuing connected transactions have been entered into by the Group:

BYFNTEFCEN LABERERS  URAZERERERZDAKE

(1)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (1) MNEAEEAER—BREBKBREFTL;
(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and (2) H—REERRIBEEGRARTL R
(8)  inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the B) RBRERLAFAEIFTEALNARREEAZNEBHRET -

interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Company’s auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group on pages 110 to 117 of
this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Exchange.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the
Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries. There is no contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Details of Directors’ interests in contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business are set out in the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual report. Other than as disclosed above, there was no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries, or its holding companies or
any of its fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity connected with the Director was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting during or at the end of the year ended 31 December 2020.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. A permitted indemnity provision (as defined
in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in
force throughout this year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs and believes business development and environment affairs
are highly related. This year, the Group implemented certain environmental protection measures to save energy and reduce
the consumption of resources. These policies were supported by our staff and were implemented effectively. The Board of
the Company has also reviewed the 2020 ESG Report. For more comprehensive information, please refer to the ESG
Report on pages 34 to 89 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As a listed company engages business in Hong Kong, the Group is subject to various laws and regulations including
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622), Business Registration Ordinance (Chapter 310), Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter
112) and Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57). Our Group has put in place internal controls to ensure compliance of the
same. In addition, as the Group also engages business in certain jurisdictions, compliance procedures are in place to
ensure adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have significant impact on the Group. Any
changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units in the Company and subsidiaries from time to time.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD REHAE SR
The Group does not have significant event occurred after this year need to disclose. AEERERAF2ABENEREEHEZERE -

T\ 3 25\
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PEER
The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards of corporate governance which it believes is RABBNERREFSKFLESES  YEGHBEHAEERBREERRERATARRZFE
crucial to the development of the Group and safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the Company. Information on THOEE - BEAALQARMZEEERERRTAEHEIRAFRE122FE151 B E
the Company’s corporate governance principles and practices is set out In the Corporate Governance Report on pages ERWE -

122 to 151 of this annual report.

AUDITOR 1% 8% G

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual BEEFKEETMERAANSRE BFEERREERRBFASERES - AQARHERN
general meeting. A resolution for their re-appointment as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming EERRBFASRZEREERKESTMEEMARDAREMOARE - XOFABE
AGM. The Company has not changed its auditor in any of the preceding three years. 3F I B E R BED o

On behalf of the Board RRESE

Ding Yong Ling T Xk

Chairman FE

Hong Kong, 11 March 2021 &% 2021F3H11H
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES PEEBEHE
The Board as a whole and the management of the Company are EZELREEIRAVAEEBHHILAFTREN
ggfﬁgngiGOVERNANCE SHAREHOLDERS committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance CEERERERF - AEEEE BIENDLE
EERRIE practices and procedures. The Group firmly believes that strict ERABINMBAEENEERBERAE  HMR

— corporate governance can enhance the Group’s credibility and ARRRBREEHREBNEL °

transparency, thus strengthening the confidence of the shareholders
and investors in the Group.

/AT R AN G AT For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had complied with BZE2020F12A31ALFE AEE—HET

EEE T ANELE all applicable provisions of the CG Code. CEERTRNABEAMKI
BOARD OF DIRECTORS §$§ COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQU'RED Ld’.l:ﬁﬁ;ﬁ/\ii% {758
STANDARD OF DEALINGS IN SECURITIES #ZHXRZzMIEESTHI
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF
| | LISTED ISSUERS
e = The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities AARCHRMEETRBMEE10IRNESEST
ES 5 2 E I\ é S8 % EE Transactions Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of BEXGMEESTR - KB EEHE 2RES
0 el E=S N A E R the Listing Rules of the Exchange. Having made specific enquiries to BRREABANCET TRETHAINHNEER

all the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they had complied RATRMNBERESETESRINITHA -
with the required standard of dealings and the code of conduct
responsible for oversesing the regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by the

day-to-day management and Company during the Period.
operation with Board’s delegated

a'm

responsible for the communication with. -
" external auditors and review of the
Group’s financial information, financial
) AUD” . _reporting systém internal control
5 COMMITTEE v o :
- 2 - procedures and risk management §tem
' = EUIN P %}E}ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ ‘
- HTSER S MISImERM « A
| EFREBEENE

[

authority, and implementation of
the Group’s strategy and policy
REEESEFHENEE
EEAREEREE > Bif

NG B RIS R BUR

i*Directors

e

responS|bIe for revnewmg the structure
' size and‘composmon of the Board, '
assessmg themdependence of the'

: |ndependent non- -executive Directors

NBM;NATItiN' Executive Directors Ding Yong Ling (Chairman) T K¥& (£fE)

R S | and makmg recommendatlpns to the S =~ .
; g’g%‘;ﬁ A7 Board on thp appointment and ; ROES Chen Fei R

 re-appointment of Directors it > Lin Man me
ﬁ;@ﬁag%m -~ KB4
S IR E BB R

| RECEEAEFSRLRE i
-\ 3 K ‘ Independent Non-executive Directors ~ Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper = 8RR
BYFHTES Zhao Zhong Zhen it R

T The Chan Ngai Chi R 28 5t

respon5|ble for malﬂng recommendatlo-ns N
to the Boardon the policy and structure

iy of the remuneration of all the Directors
. REMUNERATION . .

‘ s - . and senior management for approval
> gﬁﬂdgéfﬁf S | by 'the Board A ! n u T e
E = o Y
T | ;;;ﬁgﬂisém Audit Committee : Nommatlon C mmlttee . ?Remunerauon Committee
CmpEEEME BKEE L REEEE HESe
Chan Ngai Chi® RR 3% 5ty Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper® & &EgK () Zhao Zhong Zhen™ RO
B : = e Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper  &&ER, Chan Ngai Chi (GE] Chan Ngai Chi PR 3% Bt
Jesponsnble for review of findings. by the - Zhao Zhong Zhen R 28 it Ding Yong Ling TK¥®E Ding Yong Ling TK®E

COMPETITION
COI'T'I et”tlon executlve fele] mltte ‘on
SUPERVISORY - - - .

N £ competing business of the Parent Gl’bup
‘ mg’xgggﬁ SESUEFHTEREANASHEE
e I PRBEBIRS

Competition Executive Committee

BMEHITEEE

OMPETITION, ol e - o - ; : .
CEXBCUTIVE ) : ponslble for momtdrlng af the . Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper(" =R O Chen Fei B

 COMMITTEE competing business of the Par ent Gro“p Zhao Zhong Zhen R R Lin Man He
HBUTTAE AEERASEEREEE Chan Ngai Chi CEL)

™ Being the chairman of the respective committee

AREEEXERE

122 Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2020 IERFECERZERRAR | ZTTFF®R 123



m
14
oK
e
Of

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS 55

Board composition =EE8HM

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of 6 Directors, comprising 3 Executive Directors and 3 Independent BEAERANLE EESHRESAR > BESEITEERIBBELIHTES &
Non-executive Directors. Details of the composition of the Board and the Directors’ biographical information are set out on SRR REEEREFB A BREAFREBEVE EVEEE=H 2 —NHERE
pages 96 to 99 of the annual report, respectively. At least one-third of the Board is Independent Non-executive Directors of VHPTES FIL1EREEGEHESEER  SHREBYEEEEENE - XAFT
which more than one have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise. HREAESENER A -AREZalt BREBAQAGAEENEEEANE  HERK
The structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board are reviewed from time to time to ensure that it has a balance of BHFEH AARARBELTRINWEERAERSEFEBLFRTESNE LK -

expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors is assessed according to the relevant rules and requirements under the Listing Rules.

The composition of the Board, by category and position of Directors including the names of the chairman, the executive AATERERATRBNREZSHIRBE (BFEXE HTESERBIFITESNESR)
directors and the independent non-executive directors, is disclosed in all corporate communications by the Company. The BEESENAEAR - ARARSBIEARAQAARERBEIMPUEEFE () —DRFTESEE - 5IH
Company maintains on the Company’s website and on the website of the Exchange, (i) an updated list of its Directors EZAC BEHEBREYTPRSBIIATES RN ESZESEMREHE > UEF
identifying their respective roles and functions together with their biographical information and whether they are BRRTHEBIIHAITEETNIIEESZEZIETHNRI -

independent non-executive directors; and (i) the terms of reference of the Board committees to enable the shareholders to
understand the roles played by those independent non-executive directors who serve on the relevant Board committees.

Board and Committee Meetings E5EREEE8H

Regular Board meetings are usually scheduled towards the end of the immediately preceding year to give all Directors EESEHERNERREBERA —FELARAZH  UE2HESEZRHAREY
adequate time to plan their schedules to attend the meetings. At least 14 days formal notice would be given before each BB EHNSRCHAEREED UXRERBH - EESENH (BEIMEBPAREESE S
regular meeting. Board meeting documents including supporting analysis and related background information are normally MBERNESESTHERBHAELIREE -

sent to the Directors at least 3 days before regular Board meetings.

The Board meets regularly and held 9 meetings during the Year. In consultation with members of the Board, the company ETSSFEHEFER YRAFABHIREZE HEZGHEREE  AQAAAW
secretary of the Company assists the chairman of the board in preparing the meeting agenda, where applicable, matters EHPEEEIEFNITERZRE  HuESRENBESIAER (WER) - BE2020F
proposed by other Directors are included in the agenda. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has 12A3MBLEE  ARACRHESESIREIITES (BREBUFHTESR)ETIR
arranged for 1 individual meeting between chairman of the Board and non-executive Directors (including Independent Non- BYER NEFETEBFAEEAESNESEERUNBESTHEEBHRIR -

executive Directors). The senior management members are also invited to join Board meetings if necessary, to enhance the
Board and management communication.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors actively participated in meetings and a summary of the Directors’ BZE2020F 12831 ALFE  SESBESMER  HER 2020 F HES BN MM
attendance records in 2020 are as follows: mE

Attendance/Number of Meetings HERXE &5 X
Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual General Extraordinary

Members of the Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting General Meeting
E=ElE EREE" FHEES REZER RRBFRE BREREEI RS

Executive Directors ${T &%

Ding Yong Ling T k¥ 9/9 - 11 1/1 1/1 11
Zhang Huan Ping 3&RJ& (retired on 11 March 2021 82021 3 B 11 HE{F) 9/9 3/3 - - 11 1/1
Chen Fei B¢ (appointed on 24 March 2020 and re-designated on 11 March 2021 X 2020 4 3 5 24 HEZ (LR 2021 F 3 B 11 H58(F) 8/8 - - - 1/1 1/1
Lin Man # & 9/9 3/3 11 11 11 11
Independent Non-executive Directors B I {TEE
Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper &£ 9/9 3/3 - 1/1 11 1/1
Zhao Zhong Zhen i F #x 9/9 3/3 11 - 11 1/1
Chan Ngai Chi PR32 5t 9/9 3/3 11 11 11 11

The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions or minutes and keeps records of substantive matters discussed and NGE e 2k A E At 1ok At E -t VR E bt L =t

decisions resolved at all Board and Board committee meetings. These meetings minutes/resolutions: BERSAMNEE  ZEERON RS

. contain sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board/Board committees and decisions reached; o BEEEe EEREOfEEEESBERERE

. are sent to the Directors for their comments; . W REELETS ;

o are sent to all Directors/Board committee members within a reasonable time (generally within 14 days) after such . REEEZAAERER (—RE4ER) EX2RES E=Z88RE . 1

meeting; and
o are available for inspection by Directors/Board committee members. . AR EE EEEEeREEY -

124 Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2020 IERFECERZERRAR | ZEZTFF®R 125



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Important matters are dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than written resolutions only. If a Director has a conflict
of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be
dealt with in accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if appropriate, an independent Board committee will be
set up to deal with the matter. Directors must declare his/her interest in the matters to be passed in the resolution, if
applicable.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities undertaken for the Company. During the year ended 31 December 2020, no claim was made against
the Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Ms. Ding Yong Ling, the chairman of the Board, leads the Board in terms of formulating policies. The chairman of the Board
determines the board strategic direction of the Group in consultation with the Board and is responsible for the high-level
oversight of the management. With the support of the executive directors and the Company Secretary, the chairman of the
Board ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on all key and appropriate issues in a timely manner. The chairman of the
Board promotes a culture of openness and encourages Directors with different views to voice their opinion and be fully
engaged in the Board'’s affairs so as to contribute to the Board’s functions, and she may meet and/or communicate with the
independent non-executive directors without the presence of the Executive Directors. During the Year, an individual meeting
between Ms. Ding Yong Ling, the chairman of the Board, and Independent Non-executive Directors was held without the
presence of the Executive Directors.

While our chief executive officer, Mr. Chen Fei (who was appointed on 11 March 2021 as the chief executive officer), is
responsible for business strategic planning and day-to-day management and operation of the Group. The Board believes
this segregation of duties helps to supervise and balance the power and authority of the Board and enhances the
independence and accountability of the Board.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

The procedures for appointing and re-electing Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The appointment of a
new Director must be approved by the Board. The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorship taking into account factors such as appropriate
professional knowledge, industry experience, personal ethics, integrity, personal skills, gender, age, cultural and
educational background.

Pursuant to Article 97 of the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those Directors
who have been Directors longest in office since their last re-election or appointment.

In accordance with Article 97 of the Articles of Association, two Directors, namely, Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper and Mr.
Zhao Zhong Zhen shall retire from office by rotation respectively at the forthcoming AGM and, all being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company has entered into service agreements with each Executive Director and also appointment letters with
Independent Non-executive Directors. The tenure of all Directors is 3 years.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for sustainable development of the Group. The Board is responsible for
formulating the overall strategies as well as monitoring and evaluating the operation and financial performance of the
Group. The Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering overall Group strategy, major acquisitions
and disposals, annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors’ appointment or reappointment, approval of
major capital transactions and other significant operational and financial matters. All the Directors carry out their duties in
good faith and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and pursue excellence in the interests of the
shareholders at all times.

Our Executive Directors, together with our Independent Non-executive Directors offer diverse industry expertise, serve the
important function of advising the management on strategies and ensuring that the Board fulfils high standards of financial
and other mandatory reporting requirements as well as providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding the
interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole.

The Independent Non-executive Directors not only exercise their independent judgment and advise on the future business
direction and strategic plans of the Company, but also review the financial information and operational performance of the
Company on a regular basis.
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Every executive director has hands-on knowledge and expertise in the areas and operation in which he/she is charged
with. Appropriate attention to the affairs of the Company is measured in terms of time as well as the quality of such
attention and the ability of the Directors to contribute with reference to his/her area of knowledge and expertise, and his/
her global perspective. There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of their appointment and from time to time thereafter the number
and nature of offices held in public companies or organizations and other significant commitments, identifying the public
companies or organizations involved.

Continuous Professional Development of the Directors

All Directors receive comprehensive information on appointment, so as to ensure understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and Directors’ responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

The Company also updates the Directors on the latest developments and changes of the Listing Rules and the applicable
legal and regulatory requirements in the discharge of their duties.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, all the Directors actively participated in continuous professional development,
by attending external training or seminars, attending in-house training and/or reading materials on the various topics
covering regulations, corporate governance, finance and business, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills,
which ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Directors have provided records of
training to the Company.

Directors
=3

Ding Yong Ling T k¥

Zhang Huan Ping 5&& Y (retired on 11 March 2021 3¢ 2021 F 3 A 11 H3E{E)

Chen Fei R ¢

(appointed on 24 March 2020 and re-designated on 11 March 2021 182020 % 3 A 24 A EZ L) 2021 €3 A 11 H&(F)
Lin Man # &

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper & £E 5K

Zhao Zhong Zhen #E 1k

Chan Ngai Chi [ k&t

Independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company complied with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 independent non-executive directors representing more than one-third of the Board and they
possess professional qualification and experience in the three areas of financial accounting, social science and Chinese
medicine industry, respectively. All independent non-executive directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Each of the independent non-executive directors makes an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company is of that view that
all the independent non-executive directors meet the independence guidelines set out in the relevant requirements of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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Supply of and Access to Information

Board/Board committee meeting documents with adequate and reliable information are circulated not less than three days
before the regular Board/Board committee meetings to enable the Directors/Board committee members in making
informed decisions on matters to be raised at the Board/Board committee meetings.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as the advice and services of the Company
Secretary and senior management of the Company, with a view to ensuring compliance with the Board procedures and all
applicable laws and regulations.

The Company Secretary acts as the bridge between the Directors and business units of the Group to ensure that queries
raised and clarification sought by the Directors are dealt with and that further supporting information is provided, as
appropriate.

Directors have been advised that the Company Secretary can arrange independent professional advice at the expense of
the Company should such advice be considered necessary by any Director or any Board committee.

Delegation to Management

Executive directors are in charge of different businesses and functional divisions in accordance with their respective areas
of expertise.

For matters or transactions of a material nature, the same will be referred to the Board for approval. For matters or
transactions of a magnitude requiring disclosure under the Listing Rules or other applicable rules or regulations appropriate
disclosure will be made and where necessary, circular will be prepared and shareholders’ approval will be obtained in
accordance with the requirements of the applicable rules and regulations. Specially, the Board has had in place Guidelines
for Investments stating the authority approval limits and procedures.

The Board led by the chairman, is responsible for the Group’s future development directions; overall strategies and
policies; evaluation of the performance of the Group and the management and approval of matters that are of a material or

substantial nature. Under the leadership of the chief executive officer, management is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DUTIES

The Board has delegated the responsibility of performing the corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee, and is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties according to the Code Provision D.3.1, which includes:

(1) developing and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group;

(2)  reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management;

3) reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors
and employees; and

(6)  reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company.

130 Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2020

M
e
mg
Ef
0

RHREEER
EFE EFERERENSABMATONS MR INEE AR TRESNESE EF
EEEXH  UEES EFEESHERESE EFEESSREESLEUANAE -

2RESUITZARSINEAEEBEN  TUESARAMERSREEASRENERA
WE - MREBIFEFSRFRAEEREEIESR -

RAMEREESEAEESHM2BNBR  BRESRUNSARE[EBUER - Wi
g — S FAM (WEA) -

ESRT MESRNESZEERAAXERARBUES  AORNEVTRHERNBYEXR
R BRARQERE-

SINEHEE
HTEFRESOERARTAEBERBABIINTS -

—PEAZSEIRZYRHESEEMR - BRELTRAREMBEANRARRFIMERE =
EESHYRS  YEFHBEERE  YRALENREBEARAREGIER  FIBRRER
BREME ESEHEEMNREESIFIAETHERRER

EXTTHIFRE EEYEAEEARRBRESD BREKAREK  EAEEREEE
RERERHEZREASTH HAHFUTENEET  EEEREFAEERARELEE -

IPXEERNE
EFRCENBLEECMOCKEARENEE  AERETUATEDI FRTLR
EAWE - 2

(1) HITRERAAEENDEELHRERER |

(2) HHAREBESNSREBAENBIIRSESERE

() HHREEASEEEETIEREEERNBRNESR

(4 HIF -  EHRERESNESERNTATIRGRFMR(WAE) I R

(6) BERALAETTANBRRADACEERBREANKRENES -

ERACEREARAR | —Z-TFFHK 13



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established an Audit Committee, a Remuneration Committee and a Nomination Committee on 28 March 2013
with written terms of reference which are available for viewing on the websites of the Company and the Exchange. Board
committees report to the Board of their decisions and recommendations at the Board meetings.

Audit Committee

The Board established the Audit Committee with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 to 3.24 of the
Listing Rules and the CG Code. As at 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee has 3 members (all of them are the
independent non-executive directors) comprising Mr. Chan Ngai Chi (Chairman), Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper and Mr. Zhao
Zhong Zhen.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to communicate with external auditor; to review the remuneration,
terms of engagement, independence and objectivity of the external auditor; to review the accounting policy, financial
position, the financial reporting system, internal control procedures and risk management system of the Company and
making recommendations thereof.

Minutes drafted by the Company Secretary are circulated to members of the Audit Committee within a reasonable time
after each meeting. Audit Committee meetings were held in March, August and December of 2020.

The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee during 2020:
(1)  Reviewed the financial reports for 2019 annual results and 2020 interim results;

2 Reviewed the findings and recommendations of the internal audit department on the work of various departments
and related companies;

(8)  Reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems;
4) Reviewed the external auditor’s audit findings;
(5)  Reviewed the auditor’s remuneration;

(6)  Reviewed the control mechanisms for the risks of different business units and advising on action plans for
improvement of the situations;

(7) Performed the corporate governance functions and reviewed the corporate governance policies and practices; and
(8)  Reviewed the connected transactions with the Parent Group.

On 4 March 2021, the Audit Committee met to review the Group’s 2020 consolidated financial statements, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, in conjunction with the Company’s external auditor. After
review and discussions with the management, internal auditor and external auditor, the Audit Committee endorsed the
accounting treatment adopted by the Company, and the Audit Committee had to the best of its ability assured itself that
the disclosure of the financial information in the Annual Report 2020 complied with the applicable accounting standards
and the Listing Rules.

The Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2020 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee therefore resolved to recommend for the Board’s approval the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The Audit Committee also recommended to the Board the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for 2021 and that the related resolution shall be put forth for
shareholders’ consideration and approval at the 2021 annual general meeting.

No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing auditing firm of the Company during the two years
after he/she ceased to be a partner of the auditing firm.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 to
Rule 3.26 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee has 3 members comprising Mr. Zhao Zhong
Zhen (Chairman and Independent Non-executive Director), Mr. Chan Ngai Chi (Independent Non-executive Director) and
Ms. Ding Yong Ling (Executive Director).

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to make recommendations to the Board and review the
terms of the remuneration package of each Director and member of senior management of the Company and making
recommendations to the Board regarding any adjustment thereof in accordance with the Group’s corporate goals and
objectives; and to review and evaluate the performance of individual Directors. No Director shall participate in any
discussion about his or her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee did consult the chairman of the Board and/or the executive director about proposals relating
to the remuneration packages and other human resources issues of the Directors and senior management of the Company,
including but not limited to, succession plan and key personnel movements as well as policies for recruiting and retaining
qualified personnel. The human resources department provides administrative support and implements the approved
remuneration packages and other human resources related decisions approved by the Remuneration Committee.

The remuneration of the Directors was determined with reference to their respective experiences, responsibilities with the
Group and general market conditions. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee had held 1
meeting to review the remuneration package of the Directors and senior management of the Company. Details of the
remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code
Provision A.5.1 and Code Provision A.5.2 as set out in the CG Code. The Nomination Committee has 3 members
comprising Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper (Chairman and independent non-executive director), Mr. Chan Ngai Chi
(independent non-executive director) and Ms. Ding Yong Ling (executive director). During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Nomination Committee held 1 meeting to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board, and also recommend the re-appointment of the Directors standing for
re-election at the upcoming annual general meeting.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually and to make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become the Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection and/or
re-appointment of individuals nominated for directorships of the Company and to assess the independence of Independent
Non-executive Director. In reviewing and recommending the appointment of new Directors, the Nomination Committee
would seek to identify the competencies required to enable the Board to fulfill its responsibilities. The resume or document
of the nominee or candidate would be given to the Nomination Committee for consideration.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the approach to diversity of members of the Board and the
Nomination Committee reviews such policy periodically. The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity
of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members.
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CRITERIA FOR NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the following criteria should be considered:

. Character and integrity.

. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy.

o Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the Board.

o Requirement for the Board in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate would be considered
independent with reference to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

o Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,

independence, gender and cultural diversity.

o Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board

committee(s) of the Company.

o Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s business and succession plan and where applicable,
may be adopted and/or amended by the Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for nomination

of directors and succession planning.

NOMINATION PROCEDURE OF DIRECTORS

EEREIER

Nomination Committee and/or the Board

REZEER RESE

Appointment of New Director ZF#HE=E

e May select candidates for directorship from
various channels, including but not limited to
internal promotion, re-designation, referral by
other member of the management and
external recruitment agents.

AREEREBBEESAR  BEETRRR
MEA BE AEREEEMKEMINIEE
RIEANIERE -

|1 2 3 ‘4|

| r"

Re-election of Director EREE

e Should review the overall contribution and
service to the Company of the retiring director
and the level of participation and performance
on the Board.
ERAREESHANANEREMRREL
UREESENSHREERRR -
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DIRECTORS
CANDIDATES

e Upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new director and
the biographical information (or relevant details) of the candidate,
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out above to
determine whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.
ERIEZEHESHEBRBZREANEBAES (RABBEFHB) & - &
BEMERFEZREN  UREZRBARTSERERES -

e |f the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should rank them by

order of preference based on the needs of the Company and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable).
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Nomination Committee R £ ZE&
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Should recommend to the Board to appoint
the appropriate candidate for directorship,

as applicable.
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Shareholders I8 &
e Proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect a
candidate as Director at the general meeting.
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e Should make recommendation to shareholders of the Company
in respect of the proposed election of Director at the general
meeting.
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By Gender
BOARD DIVERSITY }g,ﬁﬂuém

Selection and appointment of new directors will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, qualifications, skills,
knowledge, business and related experience,
commitment, ability to contribute to the Board
process and such qualities and attributes that may be
required by the Board. The ultimate decision will be
made upon the merits and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

O Male B @ Female

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors are provided with a review of the Group’s major business activities and key financial information on a regular
basis and the management provide all members of the Board with monthly updates of the Company’s performance.

The Board has included the separate statement containing a discussion and analysis of the Group’s sustainability strategy
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Stable and sustainable returns to Shareholders to be our goal of the Company. The Board considered that it would be
prudent and appropriate to target a dividend payout ratio not less than 30%. In deciding whether to propose a dividend,
determining the dividend amount as well as to provide relatively steady dividend payout ratio, the Board takes into account
the Group’s earnings performance, financial results, cash flow position, investment requirements, business conditions and
strategies, future operations and earnings, future operations and earnings, and any other factors that the Board may
consider relevant.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the
Company and the Group. The Board has prepared the financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting policies
have also been used and applied consistently. The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 152 to 157 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

Details of Directors’ interests in the shares of the Company are set out in the Directors’ Report on pages 106 to 107 of this
annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lin Man, was appointed as the chief operating officer of the Company and ceased to be the chief financial officer and
the company secretary of the Company with effect from 21 May 2020, and Ms. Tsang Fung Yi, was appointed as the chief
financial officer and the company secretary of the Company with effect from 21 May 2020, as well as a full-time employee
of the Group, discharges the functions of company secretary of the Company with her professional skill and extensive
experience. To update their skills and knowledge, both Ms. Lin and Ms. Tsang complied with the relevant professional
training requirements under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2020. The appointment and
removal of the Company Secretary is subject to Board approval in accordance with the Articles of Association. The
Company Secretary reports to the Board and also to the Chief Executive Officer on day-to-day duties and responsibilities.
Company Secretary is responsible for supporting and advising the Board on governance matters. All Directors have access
to the advice and service of the Company Secretary to ensure that board procedures, all applicable rules and regulations
are followed.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of the services
rendered for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out as follows:
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Amount £%8
HK$’000 T8t

Serviced rendered to the Company 5742 &) iz R #E

Audit services ZZ iR
Non-audit services FE#% B FRTE
Total 5t

Fee paid/payable to other auditors were approximately HK$1,067,000.

Non-audit services mainly include tax consultancy services.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Internal Control and Risk Management System

The Group has set up a risk management regulation and internal control procedure to establish a clear structure and
procedures for risk management with a systematic and rigorous approach. The Group’s risk management and internal
control systems are aligned with the internal control framework of international body consisting of the five elements,
namely, the control environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and communication, and monitoring. The
Group’s risk governance structure is based on the “3 lines of defense” model comprised of day-to-day operational
management and control, risk and compliance oversight, and independent assurance.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and reviewing its
effectiveness. The management is responsible for implementing and maintaining a robust risk management and internal
control systems to protect the Group’s assets and interests of stakeholders. The Board annually reviews the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, and staff training programs together with its relevant budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal auditing and financial reporting, and also the satisfaction with the adequacy of the parties concerned.
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Identification, Evaluation and Management of the Significant Risks Procedure

The Board is responsible for determining the Group’s risk profile within the acceptable tolerance levels for significant risks,
overseeing the Group’s risk management framework, reviewing the Group’s significant existing and potential risks and their
response and ensuring risk management effectiveness. The Company has set up a risk management committee. The risk
management committee discusses and collects risk monitoring report through meeting to review the management of these
risks and effectiveness of response, and to constantly monitor the changes in risks.

Risk assessment is the identification and analysis of existing and emerging risks which identifies, filters and prioritizes the
significant risks faced by the Group by the likelihood and degree of impact of the risks to identify risks. The Group has
adopted a top-down approach to review and assess if risks are comprehensively identified and prioritised, and properly
addressed by the management to accomplish the Group’s objectives.

This Year, ten significant risks were identified by the Group, which included strategic risk, market risk, operation risk, and
legal risk. Certain response measures for significant risks were established, and the relevant functional departments and
operation units performed daily monitoring on the identified risks pursuant to the established risk management workflow
and response measures, and then submitted a “Risk Control Report”, which summarised the overall status of the risks and
risk management activities, to the risk management committee. The risk management committee prepared “Risk
Management Report” in accordance with the monitoring status of the significant risks and the internal audit department
reported to the Audit Committee.

The Group’s risk management programme is a structured mechanism and a continuous process of identifying, evaluating,

responding, controlling, monitoring and reporting of the risks that the Group faces. The significant process of the Group’s
risk management is illustrated below:
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Distribution of the
Significant Identified Risks
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Risk
Identification

J e 1

Identify risks which affect the
Group’s goals achievement
through seminars, interviews or
questionnaires as well as the
Group’s strategic direction and
business development condition
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Risk
Assessment

JE B Ay

Evaluate, sort and prioritise the
risks faced by the Group
according to the possibility and
degree of impact
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Response

J i e

Formulate the response
measure to the significant
risks assessed
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Risk
Monitoring
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By monitoring the implementation
of risk management, examine its
effectiveness and improve in a
timely manner based on the
change of risk as well as the
deficiencies in risk management
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Reporting
J i

Prepare the risk management

reports in line with the risk
monitoring results
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@ Strategic risk
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@ Operation risk
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@ Market risk
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@ Legal risk
SEERE
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Major Risks of the Group  Description of the Risks Control Measure(s)

AEBEEERRER [ B $E TEREHEN

Investment Risk
RERR

Macroeconomic Risk
LB RERK

Investment Risk can be divided into four aspects: project decision-making, project
implementation, effect evaluation, and suspension and quit. If the Group lacks of risk
awareness and risk control mechanism when making decisions on investment
projects, feasibility demonstration and lacks of scientific demonstration or formality
when due diligence, and fail to perform the correct decision-making on approval and
filing procedures, decision-making risks on investment projects may arise. If the
Group lacks in-process supervision and control procedures in the investment
process, lacks remedial measures when the decision-making environment and
specific circumstances change, and fails to perform the decision-making change
procedures on approval, it may generate investment project implementation risks. If
the Group’s failure to analyze, summarize and evaluate the purpose, execution
process, benefits, realization of expected goals, rationality of the project and the
realization of benefit indicators of the completed investment projects, it may result in
investment effect evaluation risks. If the Group has not made a prudent investment
decision on quit, and the investment quit method is not selected properly, there may
be a risk of investment suspension and quit.
REBBAIADHBEREK - BB B - XRAE - PILERBEHORGE - E4XEEH
ETREBEARSRZARBHMNERENKS - TiITHRBIERRAERZRIEZ
RN REBTERNEARBRRER  BETREEREBBRKR
B EAKEEREBERPREBINEENZHERF  EARRENARBREE
SRR - REBTEMARERREF BB RELREEBEBBERERE -
EAXEEAEHETRREEANEN  FITERE & HHEENER  HAMN
BEMRMBEEEERSETON BERTE  BEUREERERNRTEERR -
EAEEARAEEMETRERIAE  RERHANBETE  #EURELERE
FRUER R o

Macroeconomic Risks can be divided into three major aspects: changes in the global
economic environment, economic inflation, and the impact of public emergencies on
the macroeconomic. If there are major changes on national economy of the area
covered by the Group’s business, risks of changes in the global economic
environment may arise. Inflation risks may result in inflation, currency depreciation,
and a decline in purchasing power; unexpected social incidents and health incidents
may cause the retail environment to become quieter and cause the retail business
environment to deteriorate.

ZBRBRBAMAD HEREERREL KEBRR  REAASHHEBLESE
H=ZKFH BFARENXBEEEENEREBEHEERNE L TRELERHEE
RIFSLEE  QERREARBTHRECRERE SE¥ERE . MBEH TR - =i
SEANFLESEN  SIBZERRENEL  BUTELEREZL -

144 Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2020

The major measures to Decision-making Risks on Investment Project: Before making investment decisions, the
Group compiles decision-making documents such as feasibility reports and processes approval procedures in
accordance with relevant investment regulations; conducts in-depth research on project product registration,
overall arrangement of medical personnel, overseas market industrial policies, political economy, and
epidemics. Preparation in advance to reduce the risk of investment project decision-making effectively.
REFERRKREBNEZREER | RETRERKN - ARERBREMERE - HEITITHHRESREX
HURBFIBEL  SEEEEREM  RETHERAA BT SELEBE  BUAKE - RESHER
AFH RAER - BROREREEBRERE

The major measures to the Implementation Risks of Investment Projects: The Group’s investment projects are
carried out in an orderly manner in accordance with relevant investment management systems; a reporting
mechanism for changes in project has been established; the system’s systemic requirements for demonstration
of projects are followed to ensure that the project is based on scientific demonstration.
REBAERRBHIZREER AREREBAERRETEABHERFBET B SHER SN
ERET  BREIEHRIBEENRAMER  BREVYENZRE2ZL -

The major measures to the Effect Evaluation on Risk of Investment: The Group issues and implements relevant
measures for the management of post-evaluation of investment projects to ensure that the risk of subsequent
project investment effect evaluation is truly controllable.

REMRIERBHEIZREER  ARESERYERIREEEZTETEAEINE  BREBEERENRR
AN EREE A -

The major measures to the Risk of Investment Suspension and Quit: The Group strictly implements the
decision-making and implementation procedures for project quit in the investment management, “San-Zhong,
Yi-Da” system, and strictly implements them in practice.
REPILRERBNEZEEER  AEBBEHITREERE - ASHERHERREINARER - &
HBRFNER  EEEPEEHT

The major measures to the Risks of Changes in the Global Economic Environment: Under
strengthening epidemic prevention and control, the Group will resume work and production as
soon as possible, scientifically assess market risks, make prudent investments, and strengthen
internal management and control to minimize the impact of macro risks on itself.
PREBRRECEABNIEZRERER  AEEEMNBEBHENAIRT  BREEITEE  NEFMAD
SR ZERE UMNRAANKLEER  IFECEABRYESNETERIHE -

The major measures against Economic Inflation Risks: The Group speeds up the return of funds
while increasing the procurement and reserves of expensive raw materials required for
production, reasonably controlling the cost of capital, improving the efficiency of capital use,
and alleviating the risks of inflation and rising raw material costs.

REBREABNIZEREER  AEENRESOEFSENEEMZTEMAEMBNRBNER &2
ERHESHAE  RALEERANE  ERBEFRREMBEA EABERE -

The major measures to the Macroeconomic Impact of Public Emergencies: The Group pays
attention to national and regional import and export regulations, actively responds to
endangered species raw materials policies, prevents and controls excessive heavy metals and
pesticide residues in raw materials and finished products, and ensures that packaging
instructions meet policy requirements to reduce product import and export risks effectively.
RENASHYURBRBESERBNEIERYEER  FAESERBHEHEEXR 2R HEER
B RESHEEIREREREZZ HX FAEESHIHRESRTENER  LENEBEER  HAR
THREIBUESERBIRX  BIREBELERRTIEENEEDEE -
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Major Risks of the Group  Description of the Risks Control Measure(s)

AEBEEERRER [ B $E TEREHEN

Policy Risk (Impact on Policy Risks can be divided into four major aspects: Regulations on Chinese medicine
the industry as a whole) and Chinese Medicine Industry, Regulations on Food and Health Products, Access
BERE R (HEEERN and Registration, and Product Import and Export. The Group’s TCM products, TCM,
®E) healthcare consultation, and food or health products are subject to regulatory
supervision. If the Group fails to meet the requirements of laws and regulations, it
may cause regulatory risks in the TCM industry or food and health products. If the
Group misunderstands or is unclear about the market conditions, standards and
approval procedures, or fails to meet the registration/filing requirements, it may cause
access and registration risks. The Group’s import and export activities of the products
are regulated by the laws and regulations of different jurisdictions; failure to meet the
requirements may result in product import and export risks.
BEREBR RS RPEFETEER SRRBRER - EAREMRERELD
REH - AKENPEES  PE RELZARSRIRBRIEZREE  55EK
BT AEERER  BAELPHEINBTELIARARIBRRBRERER - &
AEBHEMEASETSNEYS - BEREREFTEE - TEWMIAREFEE
B BRER  BUREEEAREMER - AKEFEERNELEBHZ RER
EREERRE  MRERESER BEURELEERELODRR -

Evaluation on the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems twice a year, covering the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks, the ability to
respond to changes in its business and the external environment of the Group, the effectiveness on the measures of
significant risks, the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems,
the duties of internal audit department and its effectiveness, and etc..

Based on the results of the above review, for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board considers that the risk
management and internal monitor systems are well effective. Such systems of the Group are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Internal Control

The Company has set up an independent internal audit department which regularly reports directly to the Audit Committee.

The internal audit department is responsible for reviewing all aspects of the Group’s activities, risk management, corporate
governance processes and constantly supervising the work flow and risk assessment of each department of the Group,
and to independently assess the effectiveness of the internal control systems and risk management programme in order to
seek continuous improvement.

Being an integral part of the risk management to provide assurance on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
programme and system of internal control, the internal audit department carries out assessment on the risk management
programme. When developing the annual project plan, the internal audit department identifies, prioritises and formulates
the audit works by a continuous risk assessment of the Group’s business activities with significant risks. The Audit
Committee reviews and approves the annual project plan and approve all subsequent major changes (if any) during the
regular meeting. In the individual audit project, the internal audit department will further assess the key areas of strategic,
market, financial operation and legal risks to evaluate the control effectiveness and the response measures adopted by
management.

The internal audit department reports significant risks, material changes and the associated response plans and highlights
to the Audit Committee regularly to enhance the accountability and quality of the risk management programme. The
internal audit department will communicate with management in details on all findings and recommendations on internal
control deficiencies identified from each audit work. Management will establish remedial plans to improve those internal
control deficiencies within a reasonable time period. The internal audit department will report significant deficiencies of
individual engagement to the Audit Committee. During the Year, the Audit Committee held 3 meetings with the internal
audit department. The Audit Committee reviewed and discussed the works done and reports submitted by the internal
audit department and reported the results of review and discussion to the Board.
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The major measures to the Legal Risks of the Chinese medicine industry and the Food and Health Products:
The Group prevents risks by collecting and mastering the laws, regulations and policies of the country/region
where the project is located, improving the management system of overseas companies, strengthening the
construction of overseas product quality control systems, regular auditing and monitoring, enhancing
compliance awareness, introducing talents, and treating contract terms carefully.
FEMBTELZRABRERRBREAREBRNEIZREEE AEEBEBREEREL TEER it
BEREARBE  ZEBNAAEEFE - NRERBIEMREEHRE  THEGFEE £RS
BREE - AASIE - BEESSRABRRESABERR -

The major measures to Access and Registration Risks: The Group dynamically grasps the access regulatory
policy of the country where the project is located, adjusts the product varieties sold in a timely manner; carries
out risk assessment, product registration, packaging design, brand use, etc. in advance; establishes an early
warning mechanism for product access policies.

BEARGZMEABNEIZEREER  AEEHEEEREMEEEANEERR  BERARHEERRE
MREAR G RAMRRERDEM BERF REEAEIF BEYEREABRNEEHS -

The major measures to Product Import and Export Risks: The Group pays attention to national and regional
import and export regulations, actively responds to endangered species raw materials policies, prevents and
controls excessive heavy metals and pesticide residues in raw materials and finished products, and ensures
that packaging instructions meet policy requirements so as to reduce product import and export risks
effectively.

EmEHORBNTIEZEHER  FAXEBBRAIEZNMEBEELOEE LR BEREHESYERM
BOBE BERMREGHNESBRERESREREEFIBHAEBRERSHER  FUREERE
O R e

iRe EREERABEERAERENEZR
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong and the Listing Rules that inside information should be announced to the public as soon as reasonably practicable.
The procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information are as follows:

o The Board shall take reasonable precautions for preserving the confidentiality of inside information and the relevant
announcement (if applicable) before publication;

. Before the relevant information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group should ensure that all inside information
must be treated strictly confidential; and

o Disclosure must be made in a manner that provides the public with an equal, timely and effective access to the
inside information disclosed, such as through the electronic publication system operated by the Exchange.

EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s performance and position in
all shareholder communications. The Board is aware of and updated with the requirements under the applicable rules and
regulations about timely disclosure of inside information or matters regarding the Company and will authorise the
publication of such announcements as and when the occasion arises.

The Board adopted a Shareholder’s Communication Policy on 8 May 2013 which provides that the Board should
endeavour to maintain an ongoing dialogue with the shareholders and in particular, use annual general meetings or other
general meetings to communicate with the shareholders and encourage their participation. Such policy is being reviewed
from time to time to ensure its effectiveness. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company establishes different
communication channels with shareholders and investors, including:

(i) printed copies of corporate communications (including but not limited to financial reports, notices of meetings,
circulars and proxy forms) required under the Listing Rules;

(if) the annual general meeting and other shareholders meetings provide a forum for shareholders to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board;

(i)  updated and key information on the Group is available on the website (cm.tongrentang.com) of the Company;

(iv)  the Company’s website (cm.tongrentang.com) offers a communication channel between the Company and its
shareholders and stakeholders;

(v)  meetings with analysts are arranged from time to time to update on the performance of the Group;

(vi)  the executive directors and senior management of the Company hold meetings with institutional investors and
analysts through telephone calls, email and video conferences, and attend investor forums in the Mainland China,
Hong Kong and overseas countries from time to time;

(vi)  the Company’s Registrar deals with shareholders for share registration and related matters; and
(viii)  the investor relations department of the Company handles enquires from shareholders and investors.

In 2020, the Board members, the Company’s senior management, external auditor and legal advisor attended the annual
general meeting, and were available to answer questions. The Company’s notice to shareholders for the 2020 annual
general meeting of the Company was sent at least 20 clear business days before the meeting.

VOTING BY POLL

At the annual general meeting held in 2020, the chairman of the meeting (i) explained the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll, and answered questions from shareholders; (ii) exercised his power under the Company’s Articles of
Association to put each resolution set out in the notice to be voted by way of a poll.

Representatives of the Share Registrar of the Company were appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes
cast at the annual general meeting held in 2020. Poll results were then posted on the websites of the Company and the
Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening a general meeting

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for communication between the shareholders and the Board.
An annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may be determined by the Board.
Any general meeting other than an annual general meeting shall be referred to as an EGM.

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the Listing Rules and the Company’s Articles of Association, an EGM
can be convened to consider proposals in accordance with the following provisions:

The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an EGM, and EGM shall also be convened on such requisition, or in default
may be convened by such requisitionist(s), holding at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the members having a right to
vote at general meetings. If at any time there are not sufficient Directors capable of acting to form a quorum, any Director
or any 2 shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at a general meeting may convene an EGM in the same manner
as nearly as possible as that in which a meeting may be convened by the Directors.

The requirements and procedures as set out in section 566 to section 569 of the Companies Ordinance are summarised as
follows:

. The requisition must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting, and may include the
text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting, and must be signed by
the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the Company which is presently situated at Room
1405-1409, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists.

o If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting for a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the notice convening the meeting is given, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from
the said date.

o Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to convene a
meeting shall be repaid to the requisitionists by the Company.

In addition, shareholders are requested to follow section 615 of the Companies Ordinance for including a resolution at an
annual general meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out below:

(i) Any number of shareholders representing not less than 25% of the total voting rights of all shareholders having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the annual general meeting to which the requisition relates, or not less
than 50 shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting to which the requests
relate, may submit a requisition in writing to put forward a resolution which may properly be moved and is intended
to be moved at an annual general meeting.

(ii) The Company shall not be bound by the Companies Ordinance to give notice of the proposed resolution to
shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of an annual general meeting unless a request (a) is sent to
the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form; (b) the resolution of which notice is to be given is identified; (c)
is authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (d) is received by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks
before the annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or (i) if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The Company welcomes shareholders’ views and concerns relating to the Group’s management and corporate
governance. The Company’s website (cm.tongrentang.com) provides email address (for enquiry purpose only), postal
address, fax number and telephone number by which Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board.
Shareholders may also put forward their enquiries to the Board at the general meetings of the Company.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no change to the Articles of Association of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

o
pwec

To the Members of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 158 to 259, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is impairment of goodwill.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Key Audit Matter

Impairment of goodwiill

Refer to Note 4 (Critical accounting estimates
and judgements) and Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a
goodwill of HK$49,419,000 and it was significant
to the consolidated financial statements.

Management prepared the value-in-use
calculation based on cash flow forecast of the
cash-generating unit that included this goodwill
to determine whether there was any impairment.

Management has concluded that there is no
impairment of goodwiill.

We focused on this area due to the size of the
goodwill balance and the estimation of
recoverable amount being subject to high
degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent
risk in relation to the impairment assessment of
goodwill is considered significant due to
subjectivity of assumptions used including
estimated growth rates and discount rate which
are subject to change of economic environment
in future.

OTHER INFORMATION

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal control
and assessment process of impairment of goodwill and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors.

We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of impairment
of goodwill to assess the effectiveness of management’s estimation
process.

We evaluated management’s impairment assessment including
cash flow forecast, and the process by which they were drawn up,
and tested the underlying calculations.

Specific work we performed over the impairment assessment
included:

° comparing management’s short-term forecasted sales and
profit margins with historical performance;

° comparing the management’s key assumptions for discount
rate and long-term growth rate in the forecast with industry
data; and

° obtaining management’s sensitivity analysis over the key

assumptions of the cash flow forecast to analyse the potential
impact of a range of possible outcomes.

We also considered whether the judgements made in selecting the
growth rates and discount rate would give rise to indicators of
possible management bias.

Based on the above, we considered that management’s judgements
and assumptions applied in the impairment assessment of goodwill
were supportable by the evidence obtained and procedures
performed.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the

information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,

in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
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internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ERBEHIBERRE  ESAETM BEEFELCENED  YHEBERABRTRERRS
BREAHNBE  UREAFELCLEASHER RIEZAZH BEEBERFLEER
g RRBEHMEROBEASR -

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process. BHNZESEEEEE SEENITBREBRE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ng Hiu Tung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 11 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT BHIKEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZE2020F12A31 ALLFE
Note HfizE HK$’000 T#&7T HK$’000 T3 7T

Revenue WA 5 1,315,346 1,432,632
Cost of sales $HE&K A 7 (362,443) (419,836)
Gross profit EF 952,903 1,012,796
Distribution and selling expenses 7§85 & $5 &5 7 (168,917) (199,097)
General and administrative expenses — % & 17 BB X 7 (138,861) (164,824)
Other gains, net J#E A F15 6 24,278 3,111
Operating profit &I 669,403 -------------- 651986
Finance income 81 7% UK 0 21,ééé --------------- 43,41-5-
Finance costs B17§3 1 10 (4,300) (4,207)
Finance income, net 381 i U & 17,352 39,208
Share of losses of investments accounted for using the equity method FE{h iz E AR 2 R EE B 11 S (8-(:3(-))- --------------- ( 1,9-%é)-
Profit before income tax B 75 %1 A1 Rl 3 685,895 689,222
Income tax expense FT5 %R 12 (118,014) (112,370)
Profit for the year % E 7| # 567,881 576,852
Profit attributable to: L T A + FE4E FI5H ¢

Owners of the Company A2 B #HE A 542,456 556,118

Non-controlling interests FF 2 % 2% 25,425 20,734

567,881 576,852

Earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company for the year (expressed in HK$ per share)
FREQAREEARLERERN (UBKREBTIITR)
Basic and diluted earnings per share &R EA K #E 27| 13 0.65 0.66

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. LA b & Of U a0 7% FE ER BB RT BT 5 — OF RIRE o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF BHGEERKEER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZE2020F12A31 ALLFE
2020 2019
Note HfizE HK$’000 Tt HK$’000 T & 7T
567,881 576,852

Profit for the year % E /8
Other comprehensive income/(losses): Eftt4R &Rz (FiE) :
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss FJ f£E #7778 2 1825 #9218 H

Currency translation differences &% i & 2= 48 15,474 (1,469)

Release of exchange reserve upon liquidation of a joint venture — & & (255 8 M E > (& 5 (4 - (961)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss T & E# 7 EZE 829 EH

Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income

UARBENEEESHHAHMGEUENERMEENAEBED 18 (4,875) (4,485)
Other comprehensive income/(losses) for the year FEHE fbér& W /(BH) 10599 (6,915)
Total comprehensive income for the year £ E & W45 578,480 569,937
Attributable to: JA T A L FE(Y :

Owners of the Company A2 B#EE A 550,521 549,119

Non-controlling interests FF#2 % 5 27,959 20,818

578,480 569,937

Total comprehensive income for the year &£ E# & W45

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. LA & fBf U 5 3R PEER BB R B RE — OFRIEE -
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2020

M 2020F 128318

2020 2019

Assets BE
Non-current assets IR EEE
Property, plant and equipment #)2 - = R R 1&
Right-of-use assets £ A& E
Intangible assets & & &
Investments accounted for using the equity method 2z E AR ZRE
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income A A ABETE B EEBH T ARMGSRENESMEE
Deposits paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment EBEE Y% - BERRENS FiEE
Deferred income tax assets, net SFEFEFrSHEE

Current assets B & E
Inventories 7 &
Trade receivables and other current assets & 5 R B R HiR B & E
Short-term bank deposits 2 HI$R 1T 175k
Cash and cash equivalents & R IR & EEY

Total assets £ & E
Equity and liabilities #% | & &
Equity attributable to owners of the Company Z& 2 G H A FE{L
Share capital IR
Reserves f# &
— Other reserves Hfthfi

— Retained earnings 17 B iz

Non-controlling interests 3F{Z ik fE #
Total equity #Ez= 458
Liabilities &1&
Non-current liabilities 3£ E) & &
Borrowings & &
Lease liabilities FHE & &
Deferred income tax liabilities, net SFELFTSH & &

Current liabilities & & 1&
Borrowings f&&
Trade and other payables & 5 & H fth &+ 7018
Lease liabilities &8 &

Current income tax liabilities & #fr 5 & &

Total liabilities Z & &
Total equity and liabilities #% } & B4 %

The consolidated financial statements on pages 158 to 259 were approved by the Board of Directors on 11 March 2021
and were signed on its behalf.

Ding Yong Ling Lin Man

Director Director

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note Pzt HK$000 &7t HK$000 F& 7T
16 187,379 194,869
15 194,442 195,057
17 54,836 60,669
11 17,763 18,544
18 6,108 10,983

10,430 5,447
19 13,064 8,937
484,022 494,506
20 495,378 318,187
21 590,432 357,262
22 421,097 911,655
22 1,426,040 1,056,711
S S gl |
3,416,969 3,138,321
23 938,789 938,789
24
(18,917) (26,982)
2,097,617 1,747,694
3,017,489 2,659,501
112,021 106,135
o 3120510 2765636
25 2,052 833
63,095 59,395
19 5,696 5,376
o 0843 65,604
25 260 220
26 140,138 142,832
40,603 39,427
35,615 124,602
e 216616 307,081
R 28749 372,685
3,416,969 3,138,321

£158 Z 250 H A B TSHRFMN2021 £33/ 11 HEESSHE  WHIUATRERESE -

LA L& HHEE S B R BB MR — OFBIRE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2020

SHERZEXR

HE2020F 12831 BLEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATEE AERS
Non-
Share Merger Other Statutory Exchange Retained controlling
capital reserve reserves reserve reserve earnings interests
R BtHRE Hit % EERE B % RE W= R ER
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
TER TER TET TER TiEr TER TEn TET TER
At 1 January 2019 A 201961 A1 H 938,789 (13,124) 2,510 6,229 (15,598) 1,986,821 2,905,627 118,600 3,024,227
Comprehensive income 44 i i
Profit for the year & EFIH = = = = = 556,118 556,118 20,734 576,852
Other comprehensive (losses)/income H 44 (Ei8),/ Wi
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UAABEFEERSEFTARMGERENEREEAAEEEZD = = (4,485) - - - (4,485) - (4,485)
Release of exchange reserve upon liquidation of a joint venture —f & & %E 8 M AL < B 5 f#H - - - - (961) - (961) - (961)
Currency translation differences &% 5 # = 28
— Group A& - - - - (1,888) - (1,888) 84 (1,804)
— Joint ventures A& ¥ - - - - 335 - 335 - 335
Total comprehensive (losses)/income %4 (E518) Wk 848 - - (4,485) - (2,514) 556,118 549,119 20,818 569,937
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners i EUNEFTEENERETHRS
Dividends paid BT E - - - - - (795,245) (795,245) (33,283) (828,528)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners X fiEEUHFTEENSHETHR S NALE - - - - - (795,245) (795,245) (33,283) (828,528)
At 31 December 2019 42019512 831 H 938,789 (13,124) (1,975) 6,229 (18,112) 1,747,694 2,659,501 106,135 2,765,636
At 1 January 2020 420201 A1 H 938,789 (13,124) (1,975) 6,229 (18,112) 1,747,694 2,659,501 106,135 2,765,636
Comprehensive income 44 2
Profit for the year % & I8 = - - - - 542,456 542,456 25,425 567,881
Other comprehensive (losses)/income E 44 (Ei8),/ Wz
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
URABENEEASEHFAEMGERENEREEAAEEEY - - (4,875) - - - (4,875) - (4,875)
Currency translation differences &% H i £ 48
— Group &£ - - - - 12,861 - 12,861 2,534 15,395
— Joint ventures A& ¥ - - - - 79 - 79 - 79
Total comprehensive (losses)/income %4 (E518) /WA HE - - (4,875) - 12,940 542,456 550,521 27,959 578,480
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners E2EEFIEELUEFTEENENETHNRS
Dividends paid 21Tt & - - - - - (192,533) (192,533) (22,073) (214,606)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners EEEZfTEENEFEENSNETHNRZNAE - - - - - (192,533) (192,533) (22,073) (214,606)
At 31 December 2020 72020 12 B 31 H 938,789 (13,124) (6,850) 6,229 (5,172) 2,097,617 3,017,489 112,021 3,129,510
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. L& GHRERR S B R PR EE BB it 5T — FRIEE o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS BHIRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZE2020F12A31 ALLFE
Note Fff & HK$°000 T % T HK$’000 &7t
Cash flows from operating activities L& EFEELENRERE
Cash generated from operations && fES 2R & 27(a) 327,589 557,155
Income tax paid 217 FriE%i (211,535) (6,145)
Net cash generated from operating activities & & E B FIE A MRS F 58 116,054 551,010
Cash flows from investing activities BEEBBEEWBETE
Interest received 2 WHIE 28,855 48,274
Dividends received & W% & 165 195
Decrease in short-term bank deposits with original maturities exceeding three months AR & =18 B M £ Z SR TEHRD 490,558 803,954
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment HE&EM % - BE R RIEFER 27(b) 30 108
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E¥1% - = &2 & (7,190) (11,478)
Deposit paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment BE % - BERRENSHEE (5,690) (5,512)
Net cash generated from investing activities & & Bl i E £ IR & 548 506,728 835,541
Cash flows from financing activities BEEBFEENBLRE
Principal elements of lease payments & 5284 & 2 5 (46,613) (45,775)
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders B 13482 & i R AV IR B (192,540) (795,238)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 2 1 3E4% BR 25 AU IR B, (22,073) (33,283)
Interest paid E 1% 2 (4,300) (4,207)
Proceeds from borrowing f& & FT1§ X 1,394 -
Repayment of borrowing &2 & (166) (166)
Net cash used in financing activities B2 & & fr IR & 7 F 48 . (64298 (878,669
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents & R H & % E Y INFHE 358,484 507,882
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year £#] 2R & R IBEEEY 1,056,711 549,831
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and cash equivalents &R IR &L BYE KUk (3BK) 10,845 (1,002)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FR 2 HER B LEEY 1,426,040 1,056,711

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) are engaged in manufacturing, retail and wholesale of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products
and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments. The immediate holding company of the Company is
Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (“Tong Ren Tang Technologies”) which is a joint stock limited company
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The intermediate holding company of the Company is Beijing Tong Ren
Tang Company Limited, (“Tong Ren Tang Ltd.”) which is a joint stock limited company incorporated in the PRC and
is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The ultimate holding company of the Company is China Beijing Tong Ren
Tang Group Co., Ltd. (“Tong Ren Tang Holdings”) which is a company incorporated in the PRC.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is Room
1405-1409, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange starting from 7 May 2013 and were
transferred to be listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange starting from 29 May 2018.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 11 March 2021.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income, which is carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(i) Adoption of revised framework and amendments to standards

The Group has adopted the following revised framework and amendments to standards which are
relevant to the Group’s operations and are mandatory for the financial year beginning on 1 January

2020:

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material
(Amendments)

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

Conceptual Framework for Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
Financial Reporting 2018

The Group also elected to adopt the following amendments early.
HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
Except for the Amendments to HKFRS 16 set out above, the adoption of the above revised framework

and amendments to standards did not have any significant financial impact on these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)
(i) New standard and amendments to standards which are not yet effective

The following are new standard and amendments to standards that have been published and are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 or later periods, but
have not been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Annual improvement project Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 @
(Amendments)

HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and HKAS 37 Narrow-scope amendments @
(Amendments)

Amendments to Accounting Guideline 5  Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations @

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause ©

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current ©
HKFRS 17 (New Standard) Insurance Contracts @

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture @

® Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2021

@ Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2022
@ Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2023
@ Effective date to be determined

The Group will apply the above new standard and amendments to standards when they become
effective. No new standard and amendments to standards is expected to have a significant effect on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

(b) Changes in accounting policies

The Group has early adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions” retrospectively
from 1 January 2020. The amendment provides an optional practical expedient allowing lessees to elect not to
assess whether a rent concession related to COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees adopting this election
may account for qualifying rent concessions in the same way as they would if they were not lease
modifications. The practical expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following conditions are met: a. the change in lease payments
results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration
for the lease immediately preceding the change; b. any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
due on or before 30 June 2021; and c. there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the
lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all qualifying COVID-19-related rent concessions. Rent
concessions have been accounted for as negative variable lease payments and recognised in distribution and
selling expenses and general and administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2020, with a corresponding adjustment to the lease liability. There is no impact on the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries

(i)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Business combinations

Except for business combination under common control, the Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is
the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred also includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, and fair value of any
pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the
identifiable net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Where necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in the profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint ventures or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2 TEEFICRIME (&)
(c) MEAT (4)

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(ii) Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes directly attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

(d) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s investments in associates include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwiill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in the statement of other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to “share of profit/loss of investments accounted for using equity method”, in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the Group and its associate
are recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in the income statement.

(e) Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined
them to be joint ventures. Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. The Group’s investments in joint ventures include goodwill identified on acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference between the cost of the joint
venture and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill. When the Group’s share of losses in joint ventures equals or exceeds its interests
in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Joint arrangements (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(f) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Company’s executive
directors that makes strategic decisions.

(g) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

— all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Property, plant and equipment

(

)

Buildings comprise mainly a factory, offices and retail shops. All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost net of their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

— Buildings 25 to 50 years

— Leasehold improvement Shorter of remaining lease term or useful life
— Plant and machinery 3 to 12 years

— Motor vehicles 5to 8 years

— Furniture and equipment 2.5t0 12 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2())).

Intangible assets
(i) Goodwill

Gooduwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identified net assets acquired.

Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. Gains and losses on disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

(i) Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The customer relationships have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the expected
life of the customer relationships of ten years.

(iii) Other intangible assets

Within the Group there are two types of other intangible assets: management contract and exclusive
supply contract. These intangible assets acquired have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over their expected
useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

(k) Financial assets
(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income (“OCI”),
and
° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

(ii) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.

(a)  Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OClI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

(D

Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Measurement (Continued)
(b)  Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Group classified its debt
instruments into financial assets at amortised cost:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, see Note 3(a) for
further details.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

(m) Inventories

(n)

(o)

(p)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Trade receivables and other current assets

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. Other current assets include prepayment, deposits and other receivables. If
collection of trade receivables and other current assets is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade receivables and other current assets, excluding prepayments, are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts (if any).

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(q) Trade and other payables

(r)

(s)

(t)

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their

intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

(ii) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(i) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

(iii) Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Employee benefits

The Group operates various post-employment schemes which are defined contribution plans and are generally
funded through payments to insurance companies or trustee-administered funds. The Group has adopted a
provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, and has also participated in employee pension schemes organised and governed by the
relevant local authorities for its employees in the Mainland China and overseas countries/regions.

(i) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions to a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

(i) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Revenue recognition
(i) Sales of goods

The Group sells healthcare products and Chinese medicine to wholesalers and individual customers.
Sales of goods are recognised when control of the products has been transferred to the wholesaler or
customer, being when the products are delivered to the wholesaler or customer.

Wholesales

For wholesales, the wholesaler has full discretion over the channel and price to sell the products, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the wholesaler’s acceptance of the products. Delivery
does not occur until the products have been shipped to the specified location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. Sales are recorded based on the
price specified in the sales contracts.

No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term within 90 days,
which is consistent with market practice.

Receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered at the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional, which only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Retail sales

For retail sales, the Group operates a chain of retail outlets for selling products. Sales of goods are
recognised when a group entity sells a product to the customer. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately. Retail sales are usually in cash or by credit card.

(ii) Service income

The Group mainly provides Chinese medical consultation and treatments in retail outlets. Service
income is recognised over-time in which the service is provided to the customer and it is settled in cash
or by credit card.

(iii) Royalty fee income

Royalty fee income is based on pre-determined rates on the total turnover of overseas entities for them
to use the “Tong Ren Tang” brand name. Royalty fee is recognised in the income statement on an
accrual basis upon sales recognised by the overseas entities.

(iv) Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

(x) Interest income
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated using the effective interest method is

recognised in the consolidated statement of income statement as part of finance income, net.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see Note 10 below. Any other interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of
the loss allowance).

(y) Dividend income

Dividends are received from a financial asset measured at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other net gains
in the consolidated income statement when the right to receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B B %5 ¥k 2% Bfif 51

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 FTEEFIKRIS (&)

(z) Leases (z) TH&

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease payments:

(i) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(i) variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

(i)  amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees;
(iv)  the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

(i) where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received;

(if) uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third party financing; and

(i)  makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based
on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.
Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

(if) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;

(iiiy  any initial direct costs; and

(iv)  restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of properties and equipment and all leases of low-value assets

are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B B %5 ¥k 2% Bfif 51

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 FEESFIRIMEZ ()
(aa) Dividend distribution (ono) RERIK

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the AAABRRDEKNREEREERDAARRRES (WEH) #HENBER A

Company’s financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s SERADNRBBRERERREE -
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
(ab) Government grants (nb) EX I 1 B

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the ERERBBUIBNAEDEAERBETHAEMRGHRENERT » LAARE
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. ERFZBUTHE -

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the income statement over the period BRI AMBENBAEE  FEAETHENRAHCRENXERBR  BLEILE
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate. BETER -

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 Bk E b e 1
(a) Financial risk factors (n) BiFSEEAR

AEEXBEHSEYERAR  TH5AR(BEEBRERRRERFEEAR) -
FERRERBESAR ARENERAREESREINERTSNTT
TR BOREEAEETBERENETIANEE EREEHAEEARNS

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk and cash flow
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance. Risk management is carried out by management of each individual entity within the BRI EENEEASET -
Group.
(i)  Market risk (i) Tz
(1) Foreign exchange risk (1) SNEEE B
Each individual group entity has its own functional currency. Foreign exchange risk to each BEENESEEREETEINDEEYE - SENEEERNIIER
individual group entity arises when future commercial transactions or recognised assets or BREUFEEERDEEENEBTENRRBERZI DB
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the group entity’s functional currency. REEHEE -

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various FEERLLEREYR NEHTREREENIERKR T2
currency exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi. The Group currently does not have a RARY - AEERGUETAINELEFBER -  AEEBBRE
foreign currency hedging policy. The Group manages its foreign currencies risk by closely ESIRONESTE R B IR HINE RS o

monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.

2020512 A31H  MARBEBIAE BRES%  MABEM
BERETE ) AHZE2020F 12831 BEFENBRAEHAF
L AN, 3E 4> 23,294,000 % JT (2019 £ : 10,590,00058 7T ) » £
ERHRREGTERMBELAR (HNEEBARARB) iEET
FTENESEARBENNERS BEAH - EEERBHAIN

At 31 December 2020, if Renminbi had strengthened/weakened by 5% against Hong Kong dollar,
with all other variables held constant, the profit before income tax for the year ended 31
December 2020 would have been HK$23,294,000 (2019: HK$10,590,000) higher/lower, mainly as
a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of Hong Kong dollar-denominated trade
payables held by a subsidiary in the Mainland China whose functional currency is Renminbi.

Whereas, the exposure arising from the other foreign currencies is not significant to the Group. BEENREBHAEELTREKX -
(2)  Cash flow interest rate risk (2) BRemRn=EgE

BREMRTERRBITESN  AEALBEAGEEERAE -
EREEREBENMNE  ESRALFEERRSRNERN TS
EREMARENFI AR FEK -

Other than short-term bank deposits and bank balances, the Group does not have significant
interest-bearing assets or liabilities. The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk associated with the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of the market interest rates on its cash flows are not
deemed to be substantial in the view of the Directors based on the nature of the assets and
liabilities.

At 31 December 2020, if the interest rates on bank deposits had been 50 basis-points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, profit before income tax for the year would have been
HK$9,231,000 (2019: HK$9,837,000) higher/lower, respectively, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest income on bank deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits and trade receivables (including trade receivables from the
immediate holding company, fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures and an associate) and other current
assets.

(ii)

M

Risk management

All the bank deposits are placed with banks with good credit ratings to mitigate the risk. For trade
receivables (including trade receivables from related companies) and other current assets, the
Group assesses the credit quality of the counter parties by taking into account their financial
position, credit history and other factors. Management also regularly reviews the recoverability of
these receivables and follows up on the disputes or amounts overdue, if any. The credit terms of
trade receivables are normally within 60 to 90 days. The management is of the opinion that the
risk of default by counterparties is low. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

Trade receivables — related parties

The Group considers the credit risk characteristics and the days past due to measure the
expected credit losses. As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables of HK$378,725,000 (2019:
HK$161,344,000) are due from related parties of which HK$187,570,000 (2019: HK$72,222,000)
were past due. Given there is no history of significant defaults from related parties and
insignificant impact from forward-looking estimates, the assessed expected credit losses are not
material. As at 31 December 2020, the loss allowance in respect of the trade receivables due
from related parties was HK$1,137,000 (2019: Nil).

Trade receivables — third party
The Group measures the expected credit losses on a combination of both individual and
collective basis.

Measurement of expected credit loss on individual basis

The receivables relating to customers with known financial difficulties or with significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually for provision for impairment allowance. As at
31 December 2020, the balance of individually assessed receivables was HK$20,420,000 (2019:
HK$7,792,000) and the loss allowance in respect of individually assessed receivables was
HK$5,718,000 (2019: HK$2,727,000). Please refer to Note 21 for details.

Receivables for which an impairment provision was recognised were written off against the
provision when there was no expectation of recovering additional cash.

Expected credit losses are also estimated by grouping the remaining receivables from third party
based on shared credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for the likelihood of loss
allowance, taking into account the nature of the customer, its economic environment and its
ageing category, and applying expected credit loss rates to the respective gross carrying
amounts of the receivables.

Measurement of expected credit loss on collective basis

The expected credit loss rates are determined based on the historical credit losses experienced
of up to past 2 years and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic effecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has
identified the GDP of the countries in which it sells its goods and services to be the most relevant
factor, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in the GDP.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(ii) Creditrisk (Continued)

(2)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss on collective basis (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables of HK$154,300,000 (2019: HK$147,258,000) are due
from remaining third parties and are assessed under collective basis, of which HK$83,316,000
(2019: HK$98,857,000) have not yet past due. As at 31 December 2020, HK$67,517,000 and
HK$3,467,000 (2019: HK$32,813,000 and HK$15,588,000) were past due less than 60 days and
over 60 days respectively. The expected loss rate in respect of the trade receivables past due
over 60 days was 4% (2019: 4%) and the loss allowance was HK$138,000 (2019: HK$624,000) as
at 31 December 2020.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

For other financial assets at amortised cost, including deposits and other receivables,
management considers that its credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition
with reference to the counterparty historical default rate and current financial position. The
impairment provision is determined based on the 12-month expected credit losses which is close
to zero.

Impairment losses on other financial assets at amortised cost are presented as net impairment
losses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

(iii) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet its working capital
requirements. The Group has steady cash inflow from operations and has adequate financial resources
to fund its operations and future expansions. As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s financial liabilities
were mainly trade and other payables amounting to HK$106,677,000 (2019: HK$101,647,000), lease
liabilities amounting to HK$103,698,000 (2019: HK$98,822,000) and borrowings amounting to
HK$2,312,000 (2019: HK$1,053,000).

The analysis of the financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual
maturities is set out below. The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

B 1 B 5 3R R Bfif 5

3 HIFSEREIE (8)
(o) MEEBRAR ()
(i) EEE’(E)

(2)

EHEERNE ()

HHEEEGEFAREFEX. (4F)

MR2020F 12831 B BETHATIENRBE=ZTEKES K
A £154,300,000%8 7T (20194 : 147,258,00058 Tt )+ H &
83,316,000 7T (2019 4F : 98,857,000 7T ) 14 R H - %2020
F12A31H AP L RE0ARZR0XNEKRZRES 3 5
67,517,000 7t & 3,467,000 % 7t (2019 & : 32,813,000 T &
15,588,00078 7T) o R 2020%F 12 A31H » BHI60 KR L L FE IR
IRAMNTEHRIB AT B 4% (2019F @ 4%) » BKREE S 138,000%
7T (2019 4F : 624,00038 7T) °

HUHEHRAT BN A M T HEE

USSR ATENHESHEEQRFRMAERNR - EEE
RBR BRREFENEZMNEMNBBMRRAME  HERARABREBE DK
BREARBERM - RERBRE12EAEHNERBERETTE
FEHERBRRETRE -

USSR ATENEGEREENRERRAELSLERBEPIRE
HEBAFE REREN A THENEREARBREERER -

(iii) MEEEER

AEEANBERERBZUNE SRR CESBYUREHEEESESR -
AEFEBENLKEEBRERARZTEUBER  THAHEBRRRK
BREMRE S N2020F12A31H  AEBENEREBETES

106,677,00038 7T (20194 : 101,647,0008 L) 2 E S R E M ETFRE ;
103,698,000 Jt (2019 : 98,822,000/ t) 2 HE& ELL K 2,312,000
77T (2019 : 1,053,000587T) Z1&5K °

REARMRNEREBEINHAANIFTNT - WENESEHER KN

BELRE -

Less than Between 1 and Between 2 and

1 year PATCETES 5 years Over 5 years

DPR—F —E=fF —ERF ZREF
HK$’000 T # T HK$’000 F % T HK$’000 F % T HK$’000 T # 7T HK$’000 F % T

At 31 December 2020 720204 12 A 31 H

Trade and other payables 2 5 & H it fE {4 7018 106,677 - - - 106,677
Lease liabilities fAE& & 44,138 31,610 29,760 6,485 111,993
Borrowings &k 262 710 1,380 - 2,352
Total #5t+ 151,077 32,320 31,140 6,485 221,022

Less than Between 1 and Between 2 and
1 year PAYCES 5 years Over 5 years
DR—F —B=F “ZERF ZRAF
HK$’000 &7t HK$’000 F#& 7T HK$’000 77T HK$’000 &7t HK$’000 F#& 7T
At 31 December 2019 2019512 A 31 H
Trade and other payables & 5 & H fth fE{S 7B 101,647 - - = 101,647
Lease liabilities fHE & & 42,646 23,860 32,359 8,004 106,869
Borrowing f&3X 220 166 498 169 1,053
Total #5 144,513 24,026 32,857 8,173 209,569
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

(c) Fair value estimation

The Group’s financial asset at FVOCI is carried at fair value as at 31 December 2020 by level of the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair
value hierarchy as follows:

d Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

There were no transfers between any levels during the year.
The Group’s financial asset at FVOCI is included in level 1.

Details on the fair value measurement for financial asset at FVOCI are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The rest of the Group’s financial assets are classified as financial assets and are measured at amortised cost.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets, including short-term bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and trade receivables and other current assets, approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, borrowings and
lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(a) Goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment according to their recoverable
amounts determined by the cash-generating units based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates including five-year sales growth rate, estimated growth rate beyond the five-year
period and discount rate which are subject to change of economic environment in future. Details are set out in
Note 17.

(b) Loss allowance on trade receivables

The loss allowances for trade receivables are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past experience, existing market conditions as well as forward-looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in
Note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”). The Executive Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources and have determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Executive Directors consider the Group’s business and aggregate the operating segment from a geographic
perspective and have determined that the Group has three reportable operating segments.

The geographical location of revenue is analysed based on location where goods are sold and services are provided.

The details are set out as follows:

(i) Hong Kong — sale of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments through retail outlets as well as wholesale of Chinese medicine products and
healthcare products in Hong Kong. In addition, it includes the royalty fee income received from overseas
entities for using “Tong Ren Tang” brand name.

(if) Mainland China — wholesale of healthcare products in the Mainland China and the sole distribution of Tong
Ren Tang branded products of Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. to customers outside
the Mainland China.

(i)  Overseas — retail and wholesale of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products and provision of
Chinese medical consultation and treatments in other overseas countries/regions, including Macao.

Segment assets include property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets, investments
accounted for using equity method, financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income, deposits paid
for purchase of property, plant and equipment, deferred income tax assets, inventories, trade receivables and other
current assets, short-term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Segment liabilities include borrowings,
lease liabilities, trade and other payables, current and deferred income tax liabilities.

Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate expenses.

Sales between segments are carried in accordance with terms agreed by the parties involved.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating segments based on revenue and segment results
of each segment. Management has determined the operating segments based on the location of the entities and the

information reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision maker for the purposes of allocating resources and
assessing performance.

200 Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2020

B 1 B 5 3R R Bfif 5

AR =t
TBEEAEECHRARDANHGES (HTES]) - BT ESBHNARE RS
BELFEERL S MR INRERSHEEEEEEHEH -

HITESRAHEE I NN EAEZEARENEB A EEAKEEIFEIMEE

2Ep e
BARRBZREEERRRBEREAEL DN - MEFHEOT :

() BB - AHEEEBTEEHEETEERRRARALERTEDHERE - U
RitBhEERRRER LI ZONBEREEABACE]mEEEH
BN BRENMABEREWRS -

(i) FEAL - RPENEHBEREARAOTEABUINEFERDIHEERCE
MEREBCERONECEREER -

@iy B/H — REMEBMEAR ME (BERM) ZERRBTEERRRERUR
RHPEDERYE

DEEEBRENE BERRFE EAREE EFEE BREZZEARZIRE U
NABEFEEESHFTAAMGERENEREE BEYX BERRBHEM
BE - BEEFMBHEE FHE BEZEWRERAMGRDEE  BHRTERRRS
RREEEY  2HEECERLFE HEEE EZRAMECRE - ERRELR
BsHEaE -

AABMEBETERELEME -
2 B E AR B AR T 1 2 R FOETT -

HITESREBEZEALEIFNBARD BEATFEIFRR - EEERBERNLE
RAKETEZERERRERIMERRTERRMENNERNEECLESH -

ERACEREARAR | —Z-TFFHK 207



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B B %5 ¥k 2% Bfif 51

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 NERER ()
(a) Analysis of consolidated income statement (n) BSHIKEERAMN
Hong Kong Mainland China Overseas
&8 R (A 3 pisZ)
HK$’000 3%t HK$’000 T8 T HK$°000 T T HK$’000 %t
Year ended 31 December 2020 EZ2020F12 531 HLLFE
Segment revenue 73 ZBULA 971,433 623,345 337,995 1,932,773
Inter-segment revenue 73 B B UL A (424,994) (192,315) (118) (617,427)
Revenue from external customers 3 B SMEBE F Z A 546,439 431,030 337,877 1,315,346
Timing of revenue recognition W A T 52 iy i Bh
At a point in time 7£ 5 — 525 545,445 425,819 306,392 1,277,656
Overtime £ —RRIFE A 994 5,211 31,485 37,690
546,439 431,030 337,877 1,315,346
Contribution to segment results
o EEEZ B R 617,721 69,638 85,872 773,231
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #]3% « lENRETE (7,974) (494) (8,250) (16,718)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ B EEITE (32,425) (2,053) (21,076) (55,554)
Amortisation of intangible assets &2 & = # 84 (1,300) - (4,514) (5,814)
Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment &Y% - E kR #E 28 (13) = (2,111) (2,124)
Loss allowance on trade receivables & 5 FEWFIIE Z BETIR (43) (3,044) (240) (3,327)
Write-off of inventories 1% & i (51) = (159) (210)
Segment results 5 2R 4& 575,915 64,047 49,522 689,484
Inter-segment elimination 2 &f &5 % 4 (20,081)
Operating profit 4% 55 669,403
Finance income 817§tz 20,959 127 566 21,652
Finance costs 8173 (1,337) (132) (2,831) (4,300)
Share of losses of investments accounted for using the equity method FE{G IR R A A BR 2 IR E K12 (860)
Profit before income tax & 158 A1 Il 685,895
Income tax expense FT{S#i R X (87,809) (18,593) (11,612) (118,014)
Profit for the year & FE FI/;H 567,881
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B B %5 ¥k 2% Bfif 51

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 NERER ()
(a) Analysis of consolidated income statement (Continued) (n) SHWKEERAIM ()
Hong Kong Mainland China Overseas
B8 FRE A i yisEN

HK$’000 F &7t HK$’000 T &7t HK$°000 F & T HK$’000 & 7T
Year ended 31 December 2019 EZ2019F 12 831 HLLFE
Segment revenue 7 ZBULA 1,076,111 474,322 338,805 1,889,238
Inter-segment revenue 73 B B UL A (285,946) (170,660) - (456,606)
Revenue from external customers 3 B SMEBE F Z A 790,165 308,662 338,805 1,432,632
Timing of revenue recognition W A 7 52 iy i Bh
At a point in time £ 5 — B5 2 787,772 295,947 292,702 1,376,421
Overtime £ —EX BRI R 2,393 7,715 46,103 56,211

790,165 308,662 338,805 1,432,632

Contribution to segment results % &b 4& > & gt 658,603 6,128 67,793 732,524
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥3% + E K REITE (8,227) (736) (7,170) (16,133)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets A EEITE (28,729) (1,575) (21,009) (51,313)
Amortisation of intangible assets 7 & &= # 85 (1,300) = (10,497) (11,797)
Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment HH &2  EKRRE 2 BB 2 2 (2,063) (2,067)
Loss allowance on trade receivables 2 5 B R IE 2 i E T2 - (3,390) (10) (3,400)
Impairment loss on inventories 7 & 2 F{ET 2 - - (7,180) (7,180)
Write-off of inventories 1% & fifl (197) o (110) (307)
Segment results 2 &R 4E 620,148 425 19,754 640,327
Inter-segment elimination %-3p & £ 11,659
Operating profit £&% K& 651,986
Finance income 817§ Uiz 42,498 165 752 43,415
Finance costs 8173 (1,081) (46) (3,080) (4,207)
Share of losses of investments accounted for using the equity method FE{5 IR A AR Z IR EE1E (1,972)
Profit before income tax [ 158 A1 Il 689,222
Income tax expense FiS 8B % (101,531) (4,483) (6,356) (112,370
Profit for the year FFE FI/;H 576,852
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B B %5 ¥k 2% Bfif 51

. 20 252 Uy =
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ATER ()
. . AR sSs a2 (=
(b) Analysis of consolidated balance sheet (h) EHEEGEBERNANR
Hong Kong Mainland China Overseas
BB R B Ay it BIh
HK$’000 F & 7T HK$’000 &7t HK$°000 F & T HK$’000 F& T
At 31 December 2020 742020512 A 31 H
Segment assets and liabilities 2 HEER & &
Total assets B E = 2,383,239 653,722 380,008 3,416,969
Investments accounted for using the equity method 1R A ABRZ IR E 9,074 - 8,689 17,763
Additions to non-current assets " JERENE & 2 1 0O 53,464 7,376 4,614 65,454
Total liabilities # & & (117,320) (62,892) (107,247) (287,459)
At 31 December 2019 X 201912 31 H
Segment assets and liabilities 2 EER & &
Total assets B& = 2,458,660 323,307 356,354 3,138,321
Investments accounted for using the equity method R A A BRZIRE 10,376 - 8,168 18,544
Additions to non-current assets O IEFRENE = 2 E 0O 29,940 482 8,289 38,711
Total liabilities #2 & & (225,634) (36,376) (110,675) (372,685)
Ul In this analysis, additions to non-current assets exclude investments accounted for using the equity method, financial m KOWHP FRDEEZEMNTEERESEARZRE - LAAEBENE
asset at fair value through other comprehensive income and deferred tax assets. BHEESHT AEMGERENEREENELEFRESHREE -
(c) Revenue (c) UKA
The analysis of revenue by category is as follows: RERESHBRADNAOT :
2020 2019
HK$’000 T3& T HK$’000 F& 7T
Sales of products $HE&EE @ 1,277,656 1,376,421
Service income ARFEUIA 37,487 55,963
Royalty fee income fif & {85 FA & Ui 2 203 248
1,315,346 1,432,632
(d) Information about major customers (d) BREEEFNER
For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue from two (2019: three) customers each accounted for more BZE2020F12A31BLEFE > REME(2019F : ZH)FPHBAZ LK
than ten percent of the Group’s total revenue. These revenues are attributable to the Hong Kong segment and EEBARABSZTHULE ZZERARERBSHRPEARNMS I - REZZE
the Mainland China segment. The revenues from these customers are summarised below: BEFHWAMMENT ¢
2020 2019
HK$'000 3T HK$'000 F % 7T
Revenue from: 8RB LT AT HIUA -
— Entities under the control of the ultimate holding company @ (Note 29(a))
RAAER AR FEGINER O (EE29()) 346,692 204,024
— Customer AZF A 265,670 323,589
— Customer B ZF B N/ATRER 140,204
612,362 667,817
o It represents a group of entities under common control considered as a single customer. m EZHAREHN—HER  RAE-—FF -
There are no customers of other segments individually accounted for ten percent or more of the Group’s total BZE2020F12A31ALEFE  Htho BHMEEF (2019F &) @ERMEARE
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil). BRANBED ZTHUL -
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. v 1 P2 A ==
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 nEiEm (48)
(e) Information about geographical areas (e) BRthERNER
The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. An analysis of revenue from external customers and non-current RAABREBLE - AEERMEBEINRENINAREFZRARFREBEEN
assets of the Group by geographical area is set out below: AWM -
(i) Revenue®™ (i) WAM
2020 2019
HK$’000 T # T HK$’000 F 7% 7T
Hong Kong & & 546,439 790,165
Mainland China Bl Ay it 431,030 303,662
Macao J#Fj 169,552 168,121
Australia JB X Fl 53 52,243 52,311
Canada & X 41,081 37,042
New Zealand #7858 24,293 20,029
Singapore N 23,053 23,773
United States % 10,957 20,599
Other countries EAEI R 16,698 16,930
1,315,346 1,432,632
(i) Non-current assets? (ii) IEREBEE®
2020 2019
HK$’000 T # T HK$’000 F 3% 7T
Hong Kong &% 278,916 267,804
Mainland China # B A i 7,217 1,991
Macao 2 Fj 61,427 68,232
Australia JB X Fl 53 50,285 51,217
New Zealand %774 & 15,076 14,455
Canada & X 11,746 17,558
Europe BUM 12,177 15,617
United States % 2,953 10,074
Other countries EthEIZR 7,290 9,094
447,087 456,042
o The geographical location of revenue is analysed based on the location where goods are sold and services are O] WA BIZEES M RIBEREME D -
provided.
@ The geographical location of non-current assets is analysed based on where the assets are located or held. In @ R EERNES N 2R EENFIE RS HERE o« X9H
this analysis, the total of non-current assets excludes investments accounted for using the equity method, ho RS EAETOERESEAEYRE UAABHEEER
financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income and deferred tax assets. HEBHT ABMGEANENESREENELZFREHEE -
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(f) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

The Group has recognised the following liability related to contract with customers:

B 1 B 5 3R R Bfif 5

nEER (48)
(f) HEFENERNEENSE
AEBOERUTRESSAEMNAMN

At At

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
A2020F12H31H 2019F12H31H

Contract liabilities — Service income &R & & — RIFUA

The Group has not recognised any contract assets related to contract with customers as at 31 December
2020 and 31 December 2019.

There is no significant changes in contract assets and liabilities during the year ended 31 December 2020.

(g) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities in the year related to carried
forward contract liabilities.

HK$’000 T # T HK$’000 F 7% 7T
3,734 2,159

A2020F12A31AM2019F 128310 » AEEAEREEZFEREENEGRAEE °

HZE2020F12A31ALLFE  CREENEBARABEETERESE -

(o) EERNESRSESRMNURA

TERAFRFECHEANESRAEERTANBRATHEZESREEABEINT
AZH -

At At

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

M2020F12H31 8B 20195612831 H

HK$’000 T#&T HK$’000 F & 7T
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities at 1 January

CHERE1 A1 BERABEHENEA 1,327 2,812

v /8

6 OTHER GAINS, NET FENE
2020 2019
HK$’000 T %t HK$’000 F#& 7T
Government grants (note) BUR## B (FizE) 22,373 768
Others HAih 1,905 2,343
24,278 3,111

Note: There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to these grants. The Group did not benefit directly from

any other forms of government assistance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B B %5 ¥k 2% Bfif 51

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 WRUBEAENEX
HK$’000 T T HK$’000 F& T

Cost of inventories sold (Note 20) H &7 & & 2~ (Fff5E 20) 284,198 341,585
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) {& £ 18 HI5 % (K5E8) 183,587 215,323
COVID-19-related rent concessions ¥18 BARE = I & HHEEHE SR ZE (3,360) -
Expenses relating to short-term leases 8 #iH & & A 13,042 27,259
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities (note)
AEESENREER (TEEEsREEARE) () 193 986
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) E 2 & E #i84 (HizE17) 5,814 11,797
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 15) {F A EEHTE (MizE15) 55,554 51,313
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 16) #13 * & & &1 E (KizE 16) 16,718 16,133
Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment (Note 27) HEYIZ - BiE - RE 2 &8 (izE27) 2,124 2,067
Impairment loss on inventories (Note 20) 175 Z B {E5T1E (izE 20) = 7,180
Write-off of inventories (Note 20) 17 & #s (Ffi 5 20) 210 307
Loss allowance on trade receivables (Note 21) & 5 FEUWFIE Z R EHE (K 21) 3,327 3,400
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 2 ET B &

— Audit services #% Z{FR 7% 4,058 6,596

— Non-audit services J4% & iR 75 304 455
Research and development expenses #f 2 & F 9,462 13,512
Net exchange gain & 5, U8 &5 7% 48 (53) (240)
Promotion and advertising expenses /&K% E 4B 16,821 12,351
Legal and professional expenses SAE R E#£BI 3,999 5,454

Note: Variable lease payments represent the amounts which are calculated based on percentages of revenue generated by certain Mzt : IR HENRBAEAREETSEEEENB AR LAEERHEBR ERHEN S
retail outlets that exceed their fixed rentals. 58 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ B
EMOLUMENTS

B 1 B 5 3R R Bfif 5

ESEhF%  aEEEHE

Salaries, wages and bonuses & + TERIEAL
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Bk & KA — EZEHF
Other benefits EAth &7

v

T8l

s
=111

(a) Five highest paid individuals (o)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year include two (2019: two)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 9(a). The emoluments paid or
payable to the remaining three (2019: three) individuals during the year are as follows:

2020 2019
HK$’°000 Fi& T HK$’000 Fi& T
164,366 190,560
8,380 12,171
10,841 12,592
183,587 215,323
hZREHAT

AEBEANTAEBRSHFATEREMM(2019F : M) EE - HBSRHE
9a) PRI - FRENHNENEBRT =L (2019F : =fu) ATHENSOT :

Basic salaries and other benefits 745 & & H 15 R
Bonuses fE4L
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Bk & M4 — EZEM KT 2

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emolument bands Bl & &5 &
HK$ % Jt 1,000,001-HK$ 78 7t 1,500,000
HK$ 78 Jt 1,500,001-HK$ 75 7T 2,000,000

(b)

Senior management’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to senior management (including the one who resigned as senior
management in May 2020 (2019: October 2019) and two being appointed as senior management in May and
July 2020 respectively (2019: nil)) for the year ended 31 December 2020 fell within the following bands:

(b)

2020 2019
HK$'000 F % 7T HK$’000 F8 T
2,380 2,392

1,910 1,869

136 132

4,426 4,393

MENFUATEE :

Number of individuals A £

2020 2019

SREBASIE
BZE2020F 12A3TBLFECHNIENSREEAB(BIENR2020F5 A

(2019 : 2019 F10B) ) B EN — B REBAERM D FIN2020F5 A K
TRABZEENEREBAS)NHMEN FUTEHE :

Number of individuals A £

2020

Emolument bands Bl <& &5 &
HK$ 78 Jt 0-HK$ & 7t 1,000,000
HK$ 78 7t 1,000,001-HK$ 75 7t 1,500,000

For the year ended 31 December 2020, no emoluments (2019: nil) were paid by the Group to any of the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office, and no arrangement under which any of the highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any of
the emoluments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B B %5 ¥k 2% Bfif 51

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED O ZSNnEMED (HEB(ATRBINERZ22E)5E
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE FBIRERAT (REESNRERN) EBINEB220
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT =) HENRER EMHBIEENIRE
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK
LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (n) EFHE
The remuneration of every director for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out below: BZE2020FR2019F 12 A3 1 HLEFEENAQARZSEEHMOT ¢

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

ERES(FEREAQRAFEFARLE) BHEEMIARERNHE

Employer’s

contribution to a
retirement benefit

Salary and Discretionary scheme
Year ended 31 December 2020 other benefits bonuses EExZBRE
HZE2020512 31 BILEE FeRHMEFR BBTEA s AR
HK$’000 T3& T HK$’000 F7& T HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 T3& T HK$’000 F & T
Executive Directors #{TESE
Ms. Ding Yong Ling ® T k¥ &+ ® - - - - -
Mr. Chen Fei @ [T 54 @ - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Huan Ping ® 3 54 © - 741 1,763 4 2,508
Ms. Lin Man &%+ - 824 896 4 1,724
Independent Non-executive Directors B FEH{TES
Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper & &%/ 5t 4 240 - - - 240
Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen AR 554 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chan Ngai Chi BR &5t 55 4 240 - - - 240
720 1,565 2,659 8 4,952

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

FERES (FERADRREF A RDE) BRI RERNHE

Employer’s

contribution to a
retirement benefit

Salary and Discretionary scheme
Year ended 31 December 2019 other benefits bonuses EExZRKE
BZE2019F 12831 HIEFE & FE R HEMER By 1ETEAL sTEIHER
HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 &7t HK$’000 F%& T HK$’000 & T HK$’000 &7t
Executive Directors #{TEE
Ms. Ding Yong Ling ® T k& 2+ - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Huan Ping 3R/&F 54 - 827 917 57 1,801
Ms. Lin Man # 2% + - 815 917 57 1,789
Independent Non-executive Directors B FEHTES
Mr. Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper & &k &4 240 - - - 240
Mr. Zhao Zhong Zhen iR 54 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chan Ngai Chi PR %% 5tr 55 4= 240 - - - 240
720 1,642 1,834 114 4,310
™ Ms. Ding Yong Ling is also the Chief Executive of the Company. ) TRBEZTRAERATBRSITHAE °
@ Mr. Chen Fei was appointed as Non-executive Director of the Company on 24 March 2020 and re-designated as @ R EBH2020FE3 824 B EEEAARRAEHITES I HR2021E3 8
Executive Director of the Company on 11 March 2021. 11 BEREARDAHITES -
® Mr. Zhang Huan Ping has retired as Executive Director of the Company on 11 March 2021. @ RIGFEENR2021FEIF 11 BEEARDTHITES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK
LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

No directors of the Company waived or returned any emoluments and no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office as a director.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefit under a defined benefit scheme during the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to any directors as compensation for the early termination of the appointment during
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’
services

No payment was made to the former employer of any directors for making available the services of them as a
director of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
glrectors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such
irectors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

10 FINANCE INCOME, NET

Finance income 813§ Ut 2
Finance costs 87§37 H

— Borrowing & &

— Lease liabilities HE& &

Finance income, net i3 &1 1§ Uz
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O SSEMNNMEED (HEB(QTHRPINER22E)E
B3I RRAT (RESEMNRER) BHINEB226
5) HENKER CHERIEENKE) (&)

(o)

(D)

(c)

(d)

(2)

(f)

sEM<E (&)
ANDYWESHRABAEANS - ARETBOESXAETHS - 55
U 3] 10 A\ SE 1 B8 R o5 15 A B SR IS A B R T 4 o

S E RN

AEERTBENAENESEREN  EAELEERQAAREWBENSE
EEARE MR 2B 45 (2019 F © &|&) o

e |

SERERE®EN
AEERLEHETL ETHS £ BBNBHEORBBE (20105 | &) -

BIE-—RNASREFEXNNMRE

AEERYTEREEIE=AAEARQAAESMEXIFAZEAEITEEN
RE(2019F : ) »

S5 ESEEHIRE SERABERCZEM EEM
PAT ELfth 3 Za i Bd & 5l

AEERNNBES - ESRFCE EFTEHSEER  EEFURHEMK
ZHEBEE (201945 : #)

EEAENREEF VRS « R EADNEAIED

FEEARFER  FEEREZTEASIRAEECXBEMA LA 2ESRE
ERBETATHEEEARECEERS  ZHHERE (2019F : &) -

10 B IR

2020 2019

HK$'000 3% 7t HK$000 T35t

21,652 43,415

@) ®)

(4,203) (4,204)
_______________ 4300 (4207

17,352 39,208
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11 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 11 WA NRIRE

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

. . . Y Se £ (= 2 A% .
The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows: (n) REHEESBERERNESEAWN :
2020 2019
HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 &7t
At 31 December 7412 B 31 H
Joint ventures & & 3 17,763 18,544
The amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as (b) REHIKDKRERNSKZEL N
follows:
2020 2019
HK$’000 T /& T HK$’000 &7t
For the year ended 31 December EZ12 831 BILFE
Joint ventures & & 3% (860) (1,972)
Interests in joint ventures (c) REELREVIER
The Group has interests in a number of individually immaterial joint ventures. The following table analyses, in AEEESETENFTERNEGELENER - TRONMAEEEHAFZE
aggregate, the movement of the carrying amount of the Group’s interests in these joint ventures, and its share EECENERRAEZBNELZECLEOENES LGS RERAE -

of results, other comprehensive income and commitments of these joint ventures.

2020 2019

HK$’000 T3& T HK$’000 F& 7T
At 1 January A1 B 1H 18,544 20,181
Share of losses FE{L FE 512 (860) (1,972)
Share of other comprehensive income FE{L E 145 & Uk 3
— Currency translation differences & i # =8 79 335
At 31 December 812 A 31 H 17,763 18,544
The Group’s share of joint ventures’ commitments 7~ £ B FE{G & & (b 2RI 555 -
Notes: B3
(@) The joint ventures are private companies and there are no quoted market prices available for their shares. (a) GCELEARAQAT HRHAXEHHEHRE-
()  There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in joint ventures. (b) YEFEAKEFSEELEEZNIEEE-
(© Details of the joint ventures are set out in Note 30. (c) BEDEFBFHNMEES0 -
Interests in associates (d) REtENTigm
The Group has interests in a number of individually immaterial associates. AEBEEETENTERNEE QATNELR
2020 2019
HK$’000 T /& T HK$’000 &7t
At 1 January and 31 December A1 A1 HBX 12 A 31 H - -
Notes: B 5
(@) The associates are private companies and there are no quoted market prices available for their shares. (a) HELNTNARALT  HROILEHIZRE
()  There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in associates. (b) UEEBAEEMSHEARAEZNIEEE-
(© At 31 December 2019, the Group’s investment in one of the associates which was still under the process of being () H2019F12A318 AEEEP—RHBELATMEEES  LBEEATN
wound up, was fully impaired. At 31 December 2020, the process of liquidation of this associate was completed. RECEERE - R2020F 128310 LFEEQRAANBERFELETAK ©
(d) In 2020 and 2019, the Group has not recognised its share of loss of one of its associates as its share of accumulated (d) RAAEEEE-—HEEQAANEEBBANERNZBE AT 2RERK W
losses has exceeded its investment cost. M2020FE K 2019 F M EERHBELNERE -
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12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit
for the year. PRC corporate income tax has been provided at the rate of 25% (2019: 25%) on the estimated
assessable profits for the year of the subsidiaries operating in the Mainland China. Taxation on overseas profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

B 1 B 5 3R R Bfif 5

12 Frfgii <t

34 PO S RBLRI B2 16.5% (2019 4F © 16.5%) KB AR B BAIBH - A
Pt 2 T B 23 ) 4F P £ 3 BESR BRI T 4R 25% (2019 FF : 25%) BB R SHR R EI 0 %
PG BE o 35 M8 H0 BT B 10 0 1 SRS BLR T 427 4 0 48 8 1 B SR IO TRAT BB
5 -

Current income tax & HFT 158
— Current year N E
— Under/(over)-provision in prior years X &5t (Z5t) &

Deferred income tax (Note 19) IEFEFT 1581 (FizE19)
Income tax expense Fi{8%i % H

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

2020 2019
HK$’000 T3 7T HK$’000 T8 7T
120,643 109,631

1,041 (668)

121,684 108,963

(3,670) 3,407

118,014 112,370

FEEBRRAFNBNAESHERAEANRGHARSEA BN MEF IB R EHE
WEEERMT ¢

Profit before income tax B} F7T 158 51 FI ;&
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits in the respective countries
248 Bl B X F AR B Y Bl R B = 5T B 2 iR
Tax effects of: AT HIBIFE /2
— Income not subject to tax F Bt Uz
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 4~ A] H1%i B =
— Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognised FRERRIEIEFriSH & ENBIBE IR
— Withholding income tax on royalty fee from overseas entities B /SN & 8 W M H B R INFTEH
— Under/(over)-provision in prior years & D5t/ (Z5h) #E
— Research and development enhanced deduction #5258 8% & #9 in{Z 181 58
— Others HAth

Income tax expense Fii5 %

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2020 2019
HK$’000 F & 7T HK$’000 F3& 7T
685,895 689,222
117,687 112,587
(6,588) (7,330)
4,560 3,829
2,030 4,551
14 40
1,041 (668)
(181) 210)
(549) (429)
118,014 112,370

13 SEREIR

BREZTBIDEARTEBABGIBERUFAC R TEBROMEFHHHE -

Profit attributable to owners of the Company (HK$’000) 74~ 2 Bl %5 A (L RE (T8 7T)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) & 2% {T% B IR IEFHIH (TR)
Earnings per share (HK$) &R &% (G&7T)

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
share as there were no potential dilutive shares.
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2020 2019
542,456 556,118
837,100 837,100

0.65 0.66
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 DIVIDENDS

The dividends paid in 2020 and 2019 were HK$192,533,000 (HK$0.23 per share) and HK$795,245,000 (HK$0.95 per
share) respectively. Dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 of HK$0.24 per share, amounting to a
total dividend of HK$200,904,000, is to be proposed at the annual general meeting on 28 May 2021. These financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

B 1 B 5 3R R Bfif 5

14 RS2

2020 FE R 2019 FEME IR E £ B A 192,533,000 7T (R 0.238 7T) & 795,245,000
BT (ER0.958T) - BE2020F12A31THLEEENRESRI24B T (REA
84 200,904,0008 7T) SRR QT E2021 F5 A28 BETHRRERBERST LIESE -
DEMKBRLERRZELRE -

2020 2019

Special interim dividend paid of HK$Nil (2019: HK$0.72) per ordinary share
2 EREBRSAPHREZET (20195 : 0.7287T)

Proposed final dividend of HK$0.24 (2019: HK$0.23) per ordinary share
ERESREERARERE0.24787T (20194 : 0.23#7T)

15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

At 1 January 2019 74201941 A1 H
Additions ¥
Modification %
Depreciation charge (Note 7) T &z H (FizE 7)
Currency translation differences &% 5 i = 58
At 31 December 2019 A 2019512 531 H
At 1 January 2020 74202051 A1 H
Additions ¥
Modification %
Depreciation charge (Note 7) T &z H (FizE 7)
Currency translation differences &% 5 i =58
At 31 December 2020 42020512 5 31 H

(a) The total cash outflow for leases, including the payments made in relation to lease liabilities and expenses
relating to short-term and variable lease payments in 2020 was HK$64,141,000 (2019: HK$78,224,000).

(b) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for

The Group leases various offices, warehouses and retail stores. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 6 months to 10 years (2019: 6 months to 10 years), but may have extension options as described
below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets must not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are linked to sales generated from a store. For
individual stores, variable lease payments are calculated based on percentages of revenue generated by
certain retail outlets that exceed their fixed rentals. Variable lease payments that depend on sales are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property leases across the Group. These are
used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group’s operations. The
majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective
lessor.
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HK$°000 F 3% 7t HK$'000 T %7t
- 602,712
200,904 192,533
200,904 795,245
15 (RAHEEE

Leasehold land Buildings Total

HELH B¥F &%
HK$’000 F &t HK$’000 &t HK$’000 F& 7T
100,807 122,017 222,824
- 23,620 23,620
- (421) (421)
(2,668) (48,645) (51,313)
_ 347 347
98,139 96,918 195,057
98,139 96,918 195,057
- 52,574 52,574
- 150 150
(2,668) (52,886) (55,554)
- 2,215 2,215
95,471 98,971 194,442

(01) 2020FmmAE a4 0 4 7 i A 35 64,141,000 7T (2019 4F : 78,224,000
B ERYEESEENEESIXMNURENHEHENRENTEHESNTREE-

(h) EENEESEEIRE S5 R

AEBHAZERQAE ERENTESH HECRBEEREEHMR 6@A
Z10F (2019F : 6 HAZE10F) AL EAREES T XMW EHRRERE -

HEPRETSEHENER LETEHY YRS TR ERRMEE - 8
ERBETEESHEARENEEEENERAS ZINEARY - HEEE
TERAEERER-

BoFHEHEESHEHNWHERH MM TSI RERR - BRFEH - 7
SHENHERERBTE B BABEHESNE LR MEADLLFTEN -
RBHERRTNTEEENNBAEB RSN RENREBENHBAAE

%o
FEBEAERHEREESERERENK LHERER  UEAKEKE

FRAMNEEERFERAREMRESEENEEN - AEEFANAI D HAE
BERNKLEERERERLRETE  MIFRBEOHHBATE -

AFRCERBEERAT | —E-TFER 225



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Freehold land

Buildings

B 1 B 5 3R R Bfif 5

16 4% « BEIR&E

Furniture
Leasehold Plant and and Motor

improvement machinery equipment vehicles

KAFERE L

BF

MEYEEE PR = K # 25 HRERRE S

HK$’000 &7t HK$’000 T &7t HK$’000 F &t HK$’000 F &t HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 F &7t
Year ended 31 December 2019 EZ2019F 12431 HILLFE
Opening net book amount i ¥ iR E /FE 48,231 104,354 20,996 10,678 16,026 676 200,961
Additions & i - - 3,565 4,160 3,973 812 12,510
Disposals (Note 27(b)) & (FftzE27(b)) - - (927) - (1,138) (110) (2,175)
Depreciation charge (Note 7) 7 & % H (Fi& 7) - (3,117) (6,865) (1,326) (4,540) (285) (16,133)
Currency translation differences & %5 7 2 =58 (82) (267) 138 - (79) (4) (294)
Closing net book amount 8 R iR FE 48,149 100,970 16,907 13,512 14,242 1,089 194,869
At 31 December 2019 R 2019512 A 31 H
Cost 4~ 48,149 131,913 69,630 59,889 38,686 3,791 352,058
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 25175 K& - (30,943) (52,723) (46,377) (24,444) (2,702) (157,189)
Net book amount {REF{E 48,149 100,970 16,907 13,512 14,242 1,089 194,869
Furniture
Leasehold Plant and and Motor
Freehold land Buildings improvement machinery equipment vehicles
KAFREL BF HEWEESE NN FERRE RE
HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 T & T HK$°000 T & T HK$°000 T &t HK$’000 T %7t HK$’000 T % T
Year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020512 31 HLLFE
Opening net book amount %] BR E /H{E 48,149 100,970 16,907 13,512 14,242 1,089 194,869
Additions &0 - - 2,179 1,984 2,690 1,044 7,897
Disposals (Note 27(b)) B & (FfzE27(b)) - = (2,048) 9) (97) = (2,154)
Depreciation charge (Note 7) T & x Hi (FfzE 7) - (3,113) (4,871) (1,709) (6,671) (354) (16,718)
Currency translation differences & %5 5 & =58 668 2,074 449 - 282 12 3,485
Closing net book amount 8K iR FE 48,817 99,931 12,616 13,778 10,446 1,791 187,379
At 31 December 2020 42020512 5 31 H
Cost B 48,817 134,210 67,752 59,455 41,801 4,664 356,699
Accumulated depreciation and impairment £+ & KR & = (34,279) (55,136) (45,677) (31,355) (2,873) (169,320)
Net book amount §RHEFE 48,817 99,931 12,616 13,778 10,446 1,791 187,379
As at 31 December 2020, bank borrowing is secured by a freehold land and building amounted to HK$11,255,000 7A2020%F 128318 - SRITEFLABRMEME 11,255,00078 7t (20194 : 10,536,000 7T)
(2019: HK$10,536,000) (Note 25). Bk R R+t RAEFER IR (HiFE25) ©
Depreciation expenses were charged to the consolidated income statement as follows: RERBERPFTANERZIOT ¢
HK$’000 T /& T HK$’000 F &7t
Cost of sales S8 &2 4,559 4,094
Distribution and selling expenses 7 85 & 551 %% 7,391 7,729
General and administrative expenses — % & 1T B % 4,768 4,310
16,718 16,133

No impairment loss on property, plant and equipment was charged to general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement for the years ended at 31 December 2019 and 2020.
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3 S
17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17 BILEE
The net book value of the Group’s intangible assets is analysed as follows: AEBNEFLEENREFEIMOT :
Other
intangible
Goodwill assets
BmE Hitt B EE
HK$’000 &7t HK$’000 F &t HK$’000 T8 7T
At 1 January 2019/R 201951 A1 H 49,419 23,068 72,487
Amortisation (Note 7) #i 8 (FizE7) - (11,797) (11,797)
Currency translation difference & 5 i = 58 - @1) (21)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 720194 12 B 31 H& 20204181 H 49,419 11,250 60,669
Amortisation (Note 7) ##H (K 7) - (5,814) (5,814)
Currency translation difference & & 5 i 2= 58 = (19) (19)
At 31 December 2020 72020 12 A 31 H 49,419 5,417 54,836
Note: BiEE
Other intangible assets represent customer relationships, a management contract and an exclusive supply contract. HWBFEEESRATFBEE EEARRBERHEESAE -
Impairment test for goodwill 72 2k {8 5t
The Group recognised a goodwill of HK$49,419,000 in 2015 as a result of the acquisition of the equity interest in AEER2015FHBERAREZERAGD(HETEXBANEERSIBPEER)K
Honour Essence Trading Limited, which is principally engaged in the distribution of Chinese medicine products in BREEER49,419,0008 T - BERIREREIHIARLEZERAANREE
Hong Kong. The goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing to this Honour Essence Trading Limited CGU HEV PETRERE -
within the Hong Kong segment.
Goodwill is monitored by management at the operating segment level. For the purpose of impairment testing, the EEEELEIDIEAENFE AT REIENEN  BHEBEIREAEBZES
goodwill arising on acquisition is allocated to the Group’s cash generating units (“CGU”) within the Hong Kong WEANESHBENESEELESE N -
segment.
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined by management based on value-in-use calculation. The key ReELEBENNTRECEREREERBEEAEETEELIMEE - ANTEFERE
assumptions adopted in the value-in-use calculation are based on management’s best estimates and past ENERBIREREEENGEMTNREENECRMEE -
experience.
The value-in-use calculation is based on a five-year financial budget approved by management, with five-year sales FREEHEREREEEBBNAFHRBE -AFHHEELRZERANE21%
growth rate ranging between 0% to 21% (2019: -7% to 12%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are (2019 1 -7T% E12%) - AFHUBR ZHBFEAFETIEA3% (2019 : 3%) WA IER
extrapolated using the estimated growth rate of 3% (2019: 3%). A pre-tax discount rate of 16% (2019: 16%) is used ZEWHE - FTAZHAIBEERAE16% (2019 1 16%) » RMMBEBEI B2 HERR -

which reflects the specific risks relating to the relevant operating segment.

18 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 1BXAnEEFGEHHZE G ABMGES KGN

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HE
FVOCI represents a Hong Kong listed equity security which is denominated in Hong Kong dollars. This is a strategic UARBEFEEHEHTAHMGERENEREERUBLEENEBLTAA
investment which is not held for trading and the Group considers this classification to be more relevant. Its fair value FHEH BRERMERERITFIUEERES  FEEIRE—DEERE -HARE
is analysed as follow: BEAIHWT :
2020 2019
HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 &7t
At 1 January ®1 B 1H 10,983 15,468
Loss recognised in other comprehensive income 185t A & E 1474 Uiz (4,875) (4,485)
At 31 December 212 831 B 6,108 10,983
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as follows:

19 REFRTSIR

BRIEFFEHEERBENDFTOT -

B A1 fS

¥k 7% Bt 5F

Deferred income tax assets IEfEFTSHEE

— Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions % 81 #5158 & Frik S5 IR FEFT SR & &
Deferred income tax assets, net SFEEFTSFHEE
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTSHi & &

— Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions 1% BRIK #8518 & Fr ik S5 HIETEFr S & &
Deferred income tax liabilities, net SHEE F 5 & 18

Deferred income tax, net JE3E FT 1554 B 48

The net movement in the deferred income tax account is as follows:

RIEFFSBARE FLBMNT ¢

2020 2019
HK$’000 F & 7T HK$’000 F & 7T
32,449 28,829
(19,385) (19,892)

13,064 8,937
(25,081) (25,268)

19,385 19,892
(5,696) (5,376)

7,368 3,561

At 1 January A1 818

Credited/(charged) to the consolidated income statement (Note 12) 5t A~ (31 B ) & #f i & (K 12)
Currency translation differences & ¥ 5 i = 58

At 31 December 7412 B 31 H

The gross movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Accelerated

2020 2019
HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 &7t
3,561 6,977
3,670 (3,407)
137 )

7,368 3,561

ETEZEE BB AERENEREHENERT - EEMEHEEREERZDHNT -

Unrealised
profit resulting
from intragroup

accounting transactions Lease

depreciation £EEABRIELEMN Provisions liabilities

EEHIE RERFE B HESE
HK$000 T8 7T HK$’000 F3& 7T HK$’000 T3 T HK$000 T 7T HK$’000 F3& 7T

Deferred income tax assets JEZ TSR EE

At 1 January 2019 R 20191 H1H 84 11,767 - 23,819 35,670
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated income statement ({18 ), st A& H#HKRE R (5) (4,286) 1,045 (3,650) (6,896)
Currency translation differences & #5 7 # = 48 3 () 7) 60 55
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 742019412 531 HAK 20201 A1H 82 7,480 1,038 20,229 28,829
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated income statement (31 8), 5t A & #fUk & (51) 3,056 724 (913) 2,816
Currency translation differences & #5 7 1 Z 48 1) - 112 693 804
At 31 December 2020 X 2020512 31 H 30 10,536 1,874 20,009 32,449

Accelerated

Deferred income tax liabilities iE7E FT 1§ 5t & &

At 1 January 2019 420191 81 H

(Charged)/credited to the consolidated income statement (18 ), st A& B R
Currency translation differences & #5 i 2 =48

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 /4201912 531 B LK% 202051 A1 H
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated income statement (18 ), st A& BN R
Currency translation differences & #5 7 i =48

At 31 December 2020 742020412 A 31 H
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tax Right-of-use
depreciation assets
IEHIETE EREEE
HK$’000 F& 7t HK$°000 F7& 7T HK$°000 F7& 7T HK$’000 T8 7T
(4,542) (23,819) (832) (28,693)
(870) 4,027 332 3,489
(6) (58) - (64)
(5,418) (19,850) - (25,268)
(520) 1,374 = 854
(6) (661) - (667)
(5,944) (19,137) - (25,081)

ERACEREFRAA | =
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
approximately HK$12,970,000 (2019: HK$14,805,000) in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately
HK$71,209,000 (2019: HK$72,646,000) at 31 December 2020 that can be carried forward against future taxable
income. These tax losses have no expiry dates except for the tax losses of HK$26,584,000 (2019: HK$22,288,000)
which will expire between 2021 and 2040 (2019: expire between 2020 and 2039).

The Group did not recognise the deferred income tax liabilities of HK$5,709,000 (2019: HK$3,756,000) in respect of
the withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries amounting to
HK$114,189,000 (2019: HK$75,121,000) at 31 December 2020, as the Group can control the dividend policies of
these subsidiaries and these unremitted earnings will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

20 INVENTORIES

B 1 B 5 3R R Bfif 5

19 BEFRS I (48)

HWHBEBRRERFF LB HEAEHEER AN EFEEAERIAELEMEHE
EoAREEMEMAAE UK AR RERB WM E 871,209,000 % 7T (2019 F -
72,646,00058 7T ) BRIELE Fr 8B E E £ 12,970,000 7T (2019 4 : 14,805,00038
JT) ° BRFLIEE5 18 26,584,000 JT (2019 4F : 22,288,000 7T ) MK 2021 & 2040 F
B ZIH (20194 : 2020 £ 2039 FHEIH) » ZEREFBUMEHmAH -

MR2020F 12831 B AEBUYBRE THEBARKREE ZZEF/114,189,000& T
(20194 : 75,121,000 t) st EMR 2R BB ZIEE B H B E5,709,000 % T
(20194 : 3,756,000&7T) » WIIHREEEAEFELHNBARNREBR » L H
ELREENABEFEETRBENRRSE

2078

2020 2019

Raw materials J&#1 %}
Work in progress £ &L
Finished goods and trading merchandise &% & & 5 & @

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost of sales” amounted to HK$284,198,000 (2019:
HK$341,585,000) and the impairment loss on inventories and write-off of inventories included in the “general and
administrative expenses” and “distribution and selling expenses” amounted to HK$Nil (2019: HK$7,180,000) and
HK$210,000 (2019: HK$307,000) for the year ended 31 December 2020, respectively.

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

HK$’000 T % T HK$’000 F 7% 7T
344,049 180,964

5,148 14,038

146,181 123,185
495,378 318,187

BZE2020F12B31BLEE BRABEAIAFTATHEXNRINEERL S
284,198,000 Jt (20194 : 341,585,000 ) » sT A —MRITHAX | R [ 28
FHENIZ INEFERBEFRREFEMBE S AZET(20195F © 7,180,000/ T) &
210,000 7T (2019 £ : 307,00038 7T) °

21 BRERIBIREMREEE

2020 2019

Trade receivables & 5 FEURFXIE
— immediate holding company B2k A &
— fellow subsidiaries [& % /& 2 &
— joint ventures & & %
— associate B 1 7
— third parties 55=7
Trade receivables, gross & 5 FEUNFRTE - 4858
Less: loss allowance (note d) i : JREE %k (FzEd)
Trade receivables, net 3 & 5 FEURFRIE
Prepayments and other receivables T8+ 5% 38 & H {th FE Uk 718
Deposits &%
Amount due from a joint venture (note b) FEUR & & 25718 (MizEb)

Notes:
(@) The fair values of trade receivables and other current assets approximate their carrying amounts.
(b) The amount is repayable on demand, unsecured in nature and bears no interest.
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HK$’000 &7t HK$’000 T8t
3,596 -
364,721 155,912
1,931 1,993
8,477 3,439
174,720 155,050
553,445 316,394
(6,993) (3,351)
546,452 313,043
23,738 24,112
19,272 18,993
970 1,114
590,432 357,262
MiEE
(a) BIERFEREGADEENAABERLEEEMRE -

(b) FEHEARBERBEE BEARRE -
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21 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) Retail sales at the Group’s stores are usually made in cash or by debit or credit cards. For wholesales to customers (including
the immediate holding company, fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures and an associate), the Group normally grants credit
periods ranging from 30 to 90 days.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the aging analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date (including amounts due from
related parties of trading in nature) is as follows:

B 1 B 5 3R R Bfif 5

21 BRRIGRIBIRE tiREN &= ()

MiEE - (&)

(c)

&
AL

EBEEXBEEURS - AR FAERFET MAMBTEF (BEEEER
ERAKBEAR  AELERBEQARME AREBEERHNEEDNARS0E

90 X

R2020F K 2019F12A31 0 RERXZAHNEZRUNE(EEREREELN
ESRE)NIRRANAOT :

Up to 90 days 90 &

91-180 days 91 X &£ 180 X
181-365 days 181 X £ 365 X
Over 365 days 365 K LA £

(d) The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. This resulted in loss allowance amounted to HK$6,993,000 (2019: HK$3,351,000) for trade
receivables as at 31 December 2020. Please refer to Note 3(a)(ii) for details about the calculation of the allowance and the
Group’s exposure to credit risk.

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31 December reconcile to the opening loss allowances as follows:

2020 2019
HK$’000 T3 7T HK$’000 T3 7T
344,216 220,595
67,156 31,397
59,542 50,616
82,531 13,786
553,445 316,394

AEERASEVERESENFIORMNB A ATEEREREL NHFAEESE
WA BRIZEFERNFARBRERS - 20205128310 EENESERR
BB LB 155 6,993,00058 7T (2019 : 3,351,00038 7T) ° KizE 3(a)(ii) sE AR Bt E
HFAER -

M12A31H8  EZBWRAZREF RESRNES BKFEZREFT ROARNT

Loss allowance as at 1 January A1 A1 BiR{EEX

Loss allowance of trade receivables for the year (Note 7) B 5 FEW R 2 B{EFHE (FizE7)
Exchange difference [ 5% Z= %8

Loss allowance as at 31 December A 12 A 31 AiR{EIE %

(e) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables and other current assets are denominated in the following currencies:

(e)

2020 2019
HK$'000 T 7T HK$'000 Fi& 7T
3,351 -

3,327 3,400
315 (49)

6,993 3,351

FEENESEYER MRS EENREBUTHIERTE !

Hong Kong dollar & 7T
Renminbi A R#&

United States dollar £
South Korea won 87t
Australian dollar &7t
Euro BT

Canadian dollar fl7c
Other currencies H1th & #

) At 31 December 2020, the Group does not hold any collateral as security (2019: nil).
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2020 2019
HK$’000 T3 7T HK$’000 T3 7T
171,315 162,068
399,258 175,361

9,045 8,022

2,718 2,643

674 2,478

1,435 1,181

1,388 1,103

4,599 4,406

590,432 357,262

R2020F12A31 B AEEIF|BFEFTMEARIERER(2019F : |) -
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/_\ n| VA tf\
22 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 22 BERIRITEEER
2020 2019
HK$’000 T T HK$’000 F& T
Cash and cash equivalents I & R IREZEEY)
— Cash at bank and on hand TR EFRE 497,829 415,763
— Short-term bank deposits with original maturities within three months FREIfR B =18 B s AN 2 B EISR1TIE R 928,211 640,948
1,426,040 1,056,711
Short-term bank deposits with original maturities exceeding three months REifR A= B Ll L 2 B HIR1T 1K 421,097 911,655
Total Z25t 1,847,137 1,968,366
At 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits included balances of R2020F12A31E  FEENE SRR SEEBEYWUREHRITEREE
HK$117,886,000 (2019: HK$69,382,000), which were deposits with banks in the Mainland China. The remittance of 117,886,00038 7t (2019 4F : 69,382,000/ T) ' ZEREBEBEPE AR ZR1T
such balances out of the Mainland China is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control NER - BZEEHRELTEANMESFEBFERNIMNES SRR EREE -
promulgated by the PRC government.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits are denominated in AEENESRESSEYUREHRTERNREEATHE R E !

the following currencies:

2020 2019

HK$’000 T & T HK$'000 F &7t
Hong Kong dollar /&7t 1,573,583 1,787,197
Renminbi A R#& 102,049 60,470
United States dollar 3t 35,404 27,736
Australian dollar J&JT 30,909 21,056
Canadian dollar il 7t 30,281 21,152
Singapore dollar #7 03 7t 28,154 23,529
Macao pataca J#F9Jt 27,684 11,322
Other currencies HEth & #& 19,073 15,904
1,847,137 1,968,366
23 SHARE CAPITAL 23 R

Number Share
of shares capital
R EE ;&S
HK$'000 F 38 7T

Ordinary shares issued and fully paid 2% T R 82 ZER
At 31 December 2019 and 2020 A 2019 % 202012 A 31 H 837,100,000 938,789
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24 RESERVES

Merger reserve
(note a)

aftEE

B 1 B 5 3R R Bfif 5

24 fitit&

Statutory reserve

Other
reserves

Retained
earnings

(note b)
EE A

Exchange
reserve

(Ff=Ea)

HK$’000 T8t

Hitbf# B

HK$’000 T8t

HK$’000 T8t

(Bff=EDb) BE 7 R W

HK$'000 T8t  HK$000 T8  HK$000 Ti&7T

At 1 January 2019 74201941 A1 H (13,124) 2,510 6,229 (15,598) 1,986,821 1,966,838
Comprehensive income %R & I 2
Profit for the year #F & ;& - - - - 556,118 556,118
Other comprehensive losses Hftt 428 &8
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UAREENEEEEBH AL MGRERENSREEAARNEEED - (4,485) - - - (4,485)
Release of exchange reserve upon liquidation of a joint venture — & & (2558 M 3 B 2 & X f1E = = = (961) = (961)
Currency translation differences &% X & =58
— Group A&EH = = = (1,888) = (1,888)
— Joint ventures & % - - - 335 - 335
Total comprehensive (loss)/income & (E518) k25 458 = (4,485) = (2,514) 556,118 549,119
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners S FIEEUEFEEN SR ETHR S WAL
Dividends paid (Note 14) B43 2 8. (i 14) - - - - (795,245) (795,245)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners B2z I EE UHFMMIEEN BN ETHR S WEE - - - - (795,245) (795,245)
At 31 December 2019 X 20194512 831 H (13,124) (1,975) 6,229 (18,112) 1,747,694 1,720,712

Merger reserve
(note a)

BOHEE

Statutory reserve

Other
reserves

Retained
earnings

(note b)
EERE

Exchange
reserve

(Kfz£a)

HK$’000 T % T

HAt A

HK$’000 T % T

HK$’000 F 7% 7T

(Ff=EDb) BE 5 i fREE W2k

HK$’000 T 7% 7T HK$’000 T 7% 7T HK$’000 T 7% 7T

At 1 January 2020 74202041 A1 H (13,124) (1,975) 6,229 (18,112) 1,747,694 1,720,712
Comprehensive income R4 W&
Profit for the year FE K8 - - - - 542,456 542,456
Other comprehensive income E 4R 4 W
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UARBEFEEESHTAHMFERENEREEAAEEED - (4,875) - - - (4,875)
Currency translation differences & % 5 Z 48
— Group REEE - - - 12,861 - 12,861
— Joint ventures & & 3 - - - 79 - 79
Total comprehensive (loss)/income %44 (B518), WS 4% - (4,875) - 12,940 542,456 550,521
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners B2 FTEEUEFEEANEDETNR B WELE
Dividends paid (Note 14) 248 & (KfzE14) - - - - (192,533) (192,533)
Total transactions with owners in their capacity as owners E2EZ i EUEHFIEEN S HETHRZ WAL - - = = (192,533) (192,533)
At 31 December 2020 74202012 F 31 H (13,124) (6,850) 6,229 (5,172) 2,097,617 2,078,700
Notes: MiEE
(a) Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the net book value of the entities that had been acquired and (a) AEENSHRGBECUWEEENREFEEAATAR2010FETEAMITN

the investment consideration paid by the Company to effect a reorganisation that took place in 2010.

(b) The PRC laws and regulations require companies registered in the Mainland China to provide for certain statutory reserves,
which are to be appropriated from the net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years) as reported in their
respective statutory financial statements, before profit distributions to equity holders. All statutory reserves are created for
specific purposes. The company in the Mainland China is required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to statutory
reserves, upon distribution of its post-tax profits of the current year. A company may discontinue the contribution when the
aggregate sum of the statutory reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital. The statutory reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the companies, to expand the companies’ production operations, or to increase the capital of the
companies. In addition, a company may make further contribution to the statutory reserve using its post-tax profits in
accordance with resolutions of the board of directors.

Annual Report 2020

RENEBEWEE -

PEGERERERAE  EREANGREMO QA ARESEADIKFBEA > AREZA
EEVBRERMEZBUFANB(EEUTFENRABER) P 2EAEUARRS
THRERE FELZERBUOABERARMRIL - PERNE LIRS IKE FEHER
REARNBEE  ARZEZEREIEEZEFRNEN10% EXAREZERBENEANBBE
AMEANS0%K  ARAAFLEIE ZERBRUAEREARANEE  BAL
AMEELEREMATNER - it RRESTRBR > 2ATEAEBKHRR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B B %5 ¥k 2% Bfif 51

25 BORROWINGS 25 88
Note Fff&F HK$’000 T T HK$’000 F &7t
Non-current JE7i &)
— Secured bank borrowing B iK1 ER1TE K @-(c) 59 -
— Unsecured government loan #1518 Bt {£ 57X (@ 1,993 833
Total non-current borrowings JERBIfEEAZE 2052 833
Current 57 &

— Secured bank borrowing 5 & R T & (@-() S 54
— Unsecured government loan 35 8 B fF (£ 5% (d) 260 166
Total current borrowings MENMEEAREE 260 220

Total borrowings & & 428 2,312 1,053

Notes:

(@)

(o)

CING)

The bank borrowing is secured by the freehold land and building of the Group amounted to HK$11,255,000 (2019:
HK$10,536,000) (Note 16).

The bank borrowing bears interest at 1.5% plus the bank bill rate in Australia per annum and is wholly repayable in 2023 (2019:
repayable in 2020). The Group has HK$8,320,000 (2019: HK$7,602,000) undrawn borrowing facility with floating rate expiring
beyond one year.

The bank borrowing is denominated in Australian dollar and its carrying amount approximates its fair values.

The government loans represent a fund from Macau Economic Bureau under a special assistance scheme for small-medium
corporations affected by typhoon and funds from governments under the schemes related to COVID-19.

For Macau government loan, the interest free loan is unsecured and repayable in 7 years. The loan is denominated in Macao
pataca and its carrying amount approximates its fair values.

For other government loans, two of the loans bears interest at 1% per annum and the remaining loans are interest free. All of
the loans are unsecured and repayable in 2 to 5 years. The loans are denominated in Canadian dollar, Poland zloty and United
States dollar respectively.

RITERABRNEEB11,255,0008 T B K X E R L #h & 42 F B 7 (2019 F
10,536,000 7T ) (HizX 16) ©

RITERERBARNEMNRTEERNEMI5%XESTE > WABTERER20234
2 IEE (2019 : FER2020F 2 FE B ) o A& & B 58,320,000 7T (2019 F :
7,602,000 ) KB AN TR REEEEINHEEBERE—F -

RITEEURTAE - BAREERAABERES -

B ERARMEERZ RS E P/ RSB R BT 81T #9708 LUK H B R 3
T R R BB ©

BRAEMBAES  LESEREEREIFTR7FREE - SRR TE B
REESEAABERS -

BEREMBAERN  EFMEGRNFRNRS1%  HEENEREFR LS - A EKE
BERMAFR2ESFAMEE - ERUAMT - RWLERARETFE - BEKREE
HARBEEES -

26 BARHEIMENFRIE

26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

HK$’000 T3& T HK$’000 T8 T
Trade payables & 5 FE{FIE
— intermediate holding company /1 RE{Z A% 2 & 10,893 26,287
— immediate holding company B2k A 7 16,005 7,554
— fellow subsidiaries [E % [t & 2 &) 144 —
— third parties 5=7 47,089 32,068
Trade payables (note a) & 5 FE{S 7 E (Kizta) 74,131 65,909
Accruals and other payables fE&5T& A & H &S 7K 1E 62,273 74,764
Contract liabilities & E & & 3,734 2,159
140,138 142,832
Notes: BiaE
(a) At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the aging analysis of the trade payables (including amounts due to related parties of trading (a) R2020F K% 2019F 128310 RERZEAHNESEANRE(BEESEERN

in nature) based on invoice date is as follows:

BEHE)WREITOT ¢

HK$’000 F7& T HK$’000 F &7t

Up to 90 days 90 X 61,015 59,702
91-180 days 91 X £ 180 X 7,503 1,050
181-365 days 181 X £ 365 X 969 308
Over 365 days 365 kK A £ 4,644 4,849
74,131 65,909
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B B %5 ¥k 2% Bfif 51

26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 26 BEZAREMENFRIE (8)
Notes: (Continued) et @ (48)
()  The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies: (b) FEBESRHEMEMRENREENATIEMEE:
HK$’000 F 77T HK$'000 F &7t
Hong Kong dollar &7t 52,685 69,805
Renminbi A R# 46,559 37,709
United States dollar 37t 6,757 9,606
South African rand EI3ERI4S 5,236 5,455
Australian dollar 27 5,660 5,864
Canadian dollar flc 6,111 4,324
Singapore dollar A0 7T 2,519 1,984
Other currencies Hfth & # 14,611 8,085
140,138 142,832
27 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 27 etHiEEREKMEE
(a) Cash generated from operations (n) ESMEEVIRE
HK$’000 T3& T HK$’000 &7t
Profit before income tax K& 155+ A A58 685,895 689,222
Adjustments for: §i LA T IH B A :
— COVID-19-related rent concessions (Note 7) ¥ H S Ak Fm = i & A REHE €52 (M5E7) (3,360) -
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 15) & E & (K5 15) 55,554 51,313
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 16) #13 - = N R EITE (s 16) 16,718 16,133
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) E & E## (KizE17) 5,814 11,797
— Impairment loss on inventories (Note 20) 17 & 2 F {512 ({5 20) - 7,180
— Write-off of inventories (Note 20) 17& ##5 (Ff3E20) 210 307
— Loss allowance on trade receivables (Note 21) & 5 FEUW I8 2 R EFHE (HEE21) 3,327 3,400
— Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment (Note 7) tHEY % - BE K RE 2 EE (st 7) 2,124 2,067
— Gain on modification of lease TR &% ¥ 2 71§ (82) -
— Dividend income &R U3 (165) (195)
— Finance income, net (Note 10) JE B #5 Uk 2 (FEE10) (17,352) (39,208)
— Share of losses of investments accounted for using the equity method (Note 11)
bR EARZIREEE (MEE11) 860 1,972
— Gain upon liquidation of a joint venture —f& & %58 2715 - (961)
749,543 743,027
Changes in working capital: &E2& &% 8 :
— Inventories 7 & (168,753) (82,288)
— Trade receivables and other current assets & 5 FEWFIE R HRENE E (219,541) (133,902)
— Trade and other payables & 5 & H{th fE {718 (33,660) 30,318
Cash generated from operations & FiE4A 2 HE 327,589 557,155
(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of (b) SHIREREERD - HEWME « MERKREMSRIA
property, plant and equipment comprise: B

2020 2019

HK$’000 T & T HK$’000 F &7t
Net book amount (Note 16) BR [ H & (Ffi = 16) 2,154 2,175
Losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment (Note 7) tHEW % - BE KRB 2 EE (MiaE7) (2,124) (2,067)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment HE&EY % - =R RIEMER 30 108

242 Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2020 IERFACERERRAR | ZTTFF®R 243



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B B %5 ¥k 2% Bfif 51

27 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 27 aHIBEREEMEE (8)
(Continued)
(c) Reconciliation of cash flows from financing activities (c) AMEEEfMEENIRE RS

Borrowings liabilities
B8 HESE
HK$°000 F7& 7T HK$°000 F7& 7T HK$’000 F7& T
Liabilities from financing activities as at 1 January 2019742201951 A1 BRIEEE M AR 1,219 121,081 122,300
Principal elements of lease payments & & &R £ 22 - (45,775) (45,775)
Interest paid B 14 %I 8 @) (4,204) (4,207)
Repayment of borrowing f& 2 & & (166) - (166)
Acquisition of lease EV{SfA & - 23,620 23,620
Others® E A0 & 3,783 3,786
Foreign exchange adjustments [& 5 382 - 317 317
Liabilities from financing activities as at 31 December 2019 420194 12 B 31 BRI & EEMNERE 1,053 98,822 99,875
Liabilities from financing activities as at 1 January 20204202051 81 BE@&EEHNERE 1,053 98,822 99,875
Principal elements of lease payments # & & &£ 22 = (46,613) (46,613)
Interest paid 247 & ] (4,293) (4,300)
Proceeds from borrowing f& & Fi{§ X 1,394 = 1,394
Repayment of borrowing {&Z{E & (166) - (166)
Acquisition of lease U8 E - 52,574 52,574
Others® E A0 7 1,001 1,008
Foreign exchange adjustments [& 5 782 31 2,207 2,238
Liabilities from financing activities as at 31 December 2020 22020512 B 31 BRI EEHNEE 2,312 103,698 106,010
0 Other changes include accrued interest expense, COVID-19-related rent concessions and lease modification. O Hith 2B EEEAFNE  FEITRFESHAEREASHENHEESZE -
28 COMMITMENTS 28 K2
(a) Capital commitments (o) BIRKIE
2020 2019
HK$’000 T3& T HK$’000 F &7t
Contracted but not provided for B 5] £1B Kk #45
— property, plant and equipment #13£ - &= K% & 5,155 3,811
. =
(b) Lease commitments (b) THEKIE
The Group has recognised right-of-use assets for leases, except for short-term and low-value leases as set AEBCHRIAEEAFAEEE  UTHRACEHREEERERD
out below:
2020 2019
HK$’000 T3& T HK$’000 F& T
No later than 1 year 1 R 5,074 3,403
As at 31 December 2020, undiscounted future lease payments amounted to HK$14,059,000 (2019: R2020F 12831 AEBECAHEBABEENRFTRARBESTRES
HK$13,021,000) are committed by the Group but the relevant lease periods have not commenced. These 14,059,000 7T (2019 : 13,021,000 t) - ELLBEREZ N 2021 FHEH
lease commitments will be recognised as right-of-use assets upon the lease commencement date in 2021. HHBBRREIREREERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

At 31 December 2020, two subsidiaries of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong
Ren Tang Ltd. directly owned 38.05% and 33.62% of shareholding in the Company respectively. Tong Ren Tang
Ltd. is also the controlling shareholder of Tong Ren Tang Technologies. Tong Ren Tang Ltd. effectively owns 71.67%
equity interest in the Company. The remaining 28.33% of the shares are widely held.

The Board of Directors of the Company regards Tong Ren Tang Technologies as the immediate holding company,
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. as the intermediate holding company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings as the ultimate holding

company, all of which are companies incorporated in the PRC.

In addition to those disclosed in other sections of these consolidated financial statements, the following transactions
were carried out with related parties:

(a) Sales and purchases of products

B 1 B 5 3R R Bfif 5

29 EARBRRZA

R2020F12A31 8 A CEEEAANMAEAMBAGRRCEREERCERDER
AEDHEEFEARDNT38.05% K 33.62% Ewm e FI—ERMBERLITTBELCE
RENERBRR ELCEROGERATNERIEELRDTT71.67% RE - £ T 28.33%
KRB WEZIEE -

ARAESEREACERNEREEERAF B CERGERIARFHERAAR
ECEEEARAARKERAT  ZEQARYRPEZEMRL -

BRZEAHUBRRAMEHMREEN  THRXIDEBELET

(n) HEREEER

Sales of products to $HEE R F
Joint ventures & & b3
Fellow subsidiaries [E % i & 2 &
An associate & A 7]

Immediate holding company B £ % 2t 7

Purchases of products from B T A BB EE R
Immediate holding company B £ % 2 7
Intermediate holding company H E3£ & 2\ 7]
Fellow subsidiaries [ % {8 2 &

(b) Royalty fee

2020 2019
Note Ff{E HK$'000 F3&7T HK$'000 F3&7T
[0} 5,105 7,135

0 338,024 204,024

[0} 17,417 4,328

(0 8,668 -
369,214 215,487

2020 2019

Note izt HK$'000 F &0 HK$'000 F 38T
[0} 36,708 31,445

(0 70,038 81,690

[0} 2,014 857
108,760 113,992

(b) mRERE

Royalty fee income from joint ventures R B & & 1t 3 2 fp B A B Wi

(c) Rental expenses

2020 2019
Note FffzE HK$’000 Tt HK$’000 T 7T
(i) 203 248

(c) HEMA=

Rental expense to: B T AR XS 2 HEMEX
Ultimate holding company & #4182 7
Fellow subsidiaries F & & A &

At 31 December 2020, the Group recognised lease liabilities payable to fellow subsidiaries of HK$9,336,000
(2019: Nil) over the relevant property leases.
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2020 2019
Note BffsE HK$°000 F & 7T HK$’000 F5& 7T
[0} 773 558

(0 4,874 4,401
5,647 4,959

R2020512A31 A - AREFEENEAERIRCSERMBELRANEES
%9,336,0008 7T (20195 : £&) ©
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29 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 20 EARBRRZ (88)
(d) Advertising agency services expense (d) BEREREER
Note Fff&E HK$’000 T3& T HK$’000 F7& T
Advertising agency services expense to a fellow subsidiary BRI ZHB QA 2 EEREREE B 0] 1,235 21
(e) Key management compensation (e) TEEHASHIH
Key management includes executive directors and senior management. The emoluments paid or payable to FEEBEAEBEERUTESNSRERAE - EERBREEEBAESRM
key management for employee services is as follows: RESHBMEOT :
HK$’000 T3t HK$’000 T8 T
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits & M E b S ESTEF] 7,834 7,834
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Bk & KA — EZEMHRTE 32 287
7,866 8,121
Notes: B 3E
(i) These transactions were conducted in the normal course of business at prices and terms mutually agreed between the (i) ZERGR—REKBREIREFHENERE REFTET

parties involved.

(ii) In accordance with the royalty agreements, the royalty fee is charged annually by the Company at either 1% on (i) MEERABENARARREREEARGERZSEEELHEEERAN 1% B
revenue and 1.5% on profit before income tax of the joint ventures, whichever is higher. Pursuant to these agreements, AIFEMN1.5% WEBSEWRE - RIEZSHE  ZEAECEREURCE]
these joint ventures are permitted to operate under “Tong Ren Tang” brand name. MBERBEE -

T I R /,\ ST A &S M
30 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES 30 FEBME TS ZEF
The following is a list of principal subsidiaries and joint ventures at 31 December 2020 and 2019: TXHEHNR2020F K 2019F 12 A1 BN EEHRBLATAMEGEBE :

Particulars of issued Effective equity interest held

Place of incorporation and kind of legal entity Principal activities and place of operation share capital FiRR R

Name &7 A G HREARRER IREBRELHE BRORFFE 2020 2019

(@  Subsidiaries fif& 2
(i Directly held by the Company &2 B A

Beijing Tong Ren Tang International PRC, limited liability company Sale and distribution of Chinese medicine products HK$10,000,000 100% 100%
Natural-Pharm Co., Ltd. HE - BRAR and healthcare products 10,000,000/ 7
TRECEERERERAROW FERDHPEERARRER
Beijing, PRC
HE 1R
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Australia Pty. Ltd. Australia, limited liability company Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products and AUD1,000,000 75% 75%
FRECE (BARE) ERAR BARE  BRAA healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical 1,000,000 27

consultation and treatments
HERTETEEREARBRIURRHTEDRRS
Sydney, Australia
BARE BR

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Science Arts Singapore, limited liability Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products and SGD857,000 51% 51%
(Singapore) Co Pte. Ltd. company healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical 857,00037 1% T

ERRCEHME (RE)RABRAT o BRAR consultation and treatments

HERFETEERERRAURRHETEDRRK

Singapore

AR
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Toronto) Inc. Canada, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products CAD497,300 51% 51%
TRECE (3R%)BRAF ngx BRAA and provision of Chinese medical consultation 49730018 AT

and treatments

SEPEERERBRURRETEDRRE
Toronto, Canada

mex: %%
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Subsidiaries (Continued) &2 = (&)

Directly held by the Company (Continued) &2 A B i 45 ()

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Canada Co. Ltd.
TREECE (NER)BRAF

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Gulf FZ-LLC
FTREACESEERAR

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Macau)
Company Limited
EFRECE (RM) BRAR

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Poland sp.zo.0.
ERECE (R BERAR

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Seoul)
Company Limited
TRECE (B ek

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Auckland)
Company Limited
TRECE (RRR)ARAR

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Tong Xin Tong Le
Company Limited
FRBCEROFLRRAT

Honour Essence Trading Limited

AEEFERLA

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Vancouver
Healthcare Center Co., Ltd
TRECERFERETOERAT
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30 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Place of incorporation and kind of legal entity

BRI AEEE T BIN 1 b

Canada, limited liability company
MEX  ERAR

United Arab Emirates, limited liability company

MaRRRERE ARAF

Macao, PRC, limited liability company
e BP9 BRAR

Poland, limited liability company
RE - BRAA

South Korea, limited liability company

%8 BRAF

New Zealand, limited liability company

HER BRAA

Hong Kong, PRC, limited liability company
HE B ARAH

Hong Kong, PRC, limited liability company
HE BE ERAT

Canada, limited liability company

NEX ERAH

B 1 B 5 3R R Bfif 5

30 T TBMBEROFSEEHE ()

Principal activities and place of operation
TEERRSE Y

Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products
and provision of Chinese medical consultation
and treatments

SENEERERERRREHPEDRES

Vancouver, Canada

MeX BIFE

Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products
and provision of Chinese medical consultation
and treatments

TEPEERAREARRETED RS

Dubai, United Arab Emirates

MuAEEERE  BE

Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products and
healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments

HERTENEERERERRRETEDREY

Macao, PRC

HE R

Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products
and provision of Chinese healthcare treatments

TEPEERAREARRETED RS

Warsaw, Poland

R ED

Wholesale of Chinese medicine products
and healthcare products

HBPEERERER

Seoul, Korea

EH EE

Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products
and provision of Chinese medical consultation
and treatments

TEPEEREREARRETEDRRHS

Auckland, New Zealand

MO BRE

Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products
and provision of Chinese medical consultation
and treatments

TEREERARRERRREPEDRER

Hong Kong, PRC

HE . &

Wholesale of Chinese medicine products
and healthcare products

HENEERERER

Hong Kong, PRC

HE B

Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products
and provision of Chinese medical consultation
and treatments

TEEERERRERRREPEDRER

Vancouver, Canada

mex . BFE

Particulars of issued Effective equity interest held
share capital 1

BROTRAFE 2020

CAD1,000,000 51%
1,000,000 12 KT
AED1,920,000 51%

1,920,000 P BA S 148

MOP1,000,000 51%
1,000,000 2F9 7t
Zloty130,000 100%
130,000 2 &R
WON1,052,000,000 51%
1,052,000,000 87
NZD2,000,000 51%
2,000,000 BT
HK$10,000 100%
10,0003 7
HK$2,000 51%
2,000 7
CAD750,000 51%
750,000 E AT

ERACEREFRAA | =

2019

51%

51%

51%

100%

51%

51%

100%

51%

51%
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30 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 30 FEME TS =1 (8)

Particulars of issued Effective equity interest held

Place of incorporation and kind of legal entity Principal activities and place of operation share capital it L
SRR G REARRER FTEERRCE Y BRTRARE 2020 2019

() Subsidiaries (Continued) &2 7 ()
(i) Indirectly held by the Company &2 R Fig 5

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Melbourne Australia, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products AUD100,000 38% 38%
Pty Limited BARIE - BRAF and provision of Chinese medical consultation 100,000 27T
ITRECE (RER)BRAA and treatments

ZENEERARRRRRUTEYBRE
Melbourne, Australia

BAFE  BEA

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Pudu Health The Netherlands, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products Euro650,000 45% 45%
Centre B.V. THE - BRAR and provision of Chinese medical consultation 650,000 870
TRRCEEERETOERAR and treatments

SEPEERERBRRE P EDRRS
Den Haag, the Netherlands

Tl 8%
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Czech Republic SE The Czech Republic, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products (CZK3,296,400 45% 45%
FTRELCE (BR)ERAR 7 BRAH and provision of Chinese medical consultation 3,296,400 % % 8
and treatments

TETEERERRRRRMAPEDREY
Prague, Czech Republic

R, Hak
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Sweden AB Sweden, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products SEK 50,000 45% 45%
FTRERLCE (RR)ERAR 5l BRAR and provision of Chinese medical consultation 50,0005 252 5
and treatment

SENEERARERRRETEBYBRE
Stockholm, Sweden

R FEIHE

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Swiss SA Switzerland, limited liability company Provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments CHF500,000 45% 45%
EERCERLRAERAT it BRARE REPEDREY 500,0003% 1 %8B

Geneva, Switzerland

Bt BAR
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Ming Qi Group, LLC United States, limited liability company Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products US$200,000 60% 60%
TRRCEREERAR 26 BRAR and healthcare products 200,000 X7

HERSETEERERER
New York, United States

ESRE e
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Concord United States, limited liability company Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products and US$800,000 51% 51%
New York LLC 28 BRAH healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical 800,000 7T
FRRCERRANERAT consultation and treatments

HERBETEERERERIRRHMEDRRYE
New York, United States
26 449

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Los Angeles United States, limited liability company Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products US$600,000 51% 51%
Healthcare Center LLC ZE BRAR and provision of Chinese medical consultation 600,000% 7T
FRECERVRBREPOVERAR and treatments

ZETEERERRRRRAPED RN
Los Angeles, United States

ELN 7
Beijing Tong Ren Tang United States, limited liability company Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products and US$600,000 51% 51%
(San Gabriel CA) LLC 6 ARAF healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical 600,000% 7T
FRECE (ZEBNMN) ERAT consultation and treatments

HERTETEERERRAURRATEDRRY
Los Angeles, United States
X8 BB
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30 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Place of incorporation and kind of legal entity

BRI AEEE T BIN 1 b

B 1 B 5 3R R Bfif 5

30 T TBMBEROFSEEHE ()

Particulars of issued Effective equity interest held

Principal activities and place of operation share capital i RRRLE
TEERRSE Y ERTRAFRE 2020 2019

@

)

(b)

Joint ventures A& 4%

(i Directly held by the Company &2 AIE £ 5
Peking Tongrentang (M) SDN. BHD® Malaysia, limited liability company
TRECE () BRAF BRAEL BRAR
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Thailand) Co., Ltd.? Thailand, limited liability company
TRECE (RE)ARAR ZE BRAA
Union Health International Limited Hong Kong, PRC, limited liability company
REERERAR HE &5 BRAF

The English names of the Group companies incorporated in the Mainland China represent the best effort by the management
of the Group in translating from their Chinese names as they do not have official English names.

Although the Company owns more or less than 50% of the equity interests in these entities, the directors of the Company
consider that these entities are joint ventures of the Company because their strategic operating, investing and financing
activities are jointly controlled by the Company and the joint venture partners in accordance with the joint venture agreements
rather than under the unilateral control or significant influence of the Company.

The non-controlling interests of all non-wholly owned subsidiaries are individually not material to the Group.

Registered as a Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise under the PRC Law.
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Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products MYR1,900,000 60% 60%
and provision of Chinese medical consultation 1,900,000 5%
and treatments

FEVEERARRRUARRETEDRRK

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

ERAL  EBR
Wholesale and retail of Chinese medicine products and THB38,000,000 49% 49%
healthcare products and provision of Chinese medical 38,000,000 %%

consultation and treatments
HEREETEERERERURRETEDRRS
Bangkok, Thailand

ZE 8%

Retail of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products HK$10,000 50% 50%
and provision of Chinese medical consultation 10,0008
and treatments

ZENEERERRRARRHRPEDERE
Hong Kong, PRC
HE - BB

“) RPBAMEMEINEELATEEARNEN  HAXEBRAEEEEBRETXE
BEEMA -

@ BEARABAZEERZRRLONE0% KBE  EHRRESEHE  ZEERNERLE
g RENBMETHUHARARSERHLARES  MIBARAESTEEHRBREE
REE BEADDESRAZSERDARTEERE -

® FENEZENBARZFERESENMSHERREEATE -

@ REFEEZEIMB/IEBEDRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

B 1 B 5 3R R Bfif 5

2020 2019

Assets BE

Non-current assets IR E&EE
Property, plant and equipment #J% - &= R & &
Right-of-use assets i A& E
Investment property 1% & ¥ %
Investments in subsidiaries K& A 7 2Rk &
Investments in joint ventures RE & ¥ 2 1RE
Investments in associates REEE A 7 2 &

Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income

UAREEFEEESE T ARLMGRESRENEREE

Deposits paid for purchase of property, plant and equipment EEE Y ¥ - BERRENE FiZE

Current assets B EE
Inventories 7 &
Trade receivables and other current assets & 5 FEWRGRIE R H R B & &=
Short-term bank deposits % iR 1T 17 5%
Cash and cash equivalents & R R EZEY

Total assets EEHAE
Equity and liabilities % R & &
Equity attributable to owners of the Company X2 A& A (L
Share capital f&Z<
Reserves f# &
— Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
DARBES2EESHTAHMGERENERMERE
— Retained earnings 1% & W&
Total equity =& EA
Liabilities &1&
Non-current liabilities 3F57 B & &
Lease liabilities & & &
Deferred income tax liabilities, net SHEME B &1&

Current liabilities F ) & &
Trade and other payables & 5 & HE b fE 58
Lease liabilities A E & &

Current income tax liabilities & 2 Fr 55 & &

Total liabilities & & %8
Total equity and liabilities ## & & &85

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors on 11 March 2021 and was signed on

its behalf.

Ding Yong Ling Lin Man

Director Director
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Note FfizE HK$’000 Tt HK$’000 F3& T

81,906 84,690

130,439 120,474

11,935 12,074

278,477 278,477

26,448 26,448

3,930 3,930

6,108 10,983

10,430 5,447

549,673 542,523

370,597 217,397

655,037 394,602

390,340 890,420

1,171,757 880,747
.. 2587731 2383166

3,137,404 2,925,689

938,789 938,789

(7,680) (2,805)

32 2,090,749 1,772,121
... 3021858 2708105

16,888 4,122

5,535 5,210
e 22428 9332

56,180 75,501

19,154 18,335

17,789 114,416
I 93,123 208,252 _
e 15546 217,584

3,137,404 2,925,689

DNAMNEEEBRN2021F3IF 11 HRESSHE  TAUTRREE -

T K& £
EF E2E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B B %5 ¥k 2% Bfif 51

32 RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 32 Rali#E

Financial asset at
fair value
through other
comprehensive

income reserve
Retained NAREESER
earnings HE st AHA
REWE HFEUENESREE

HK$000 T 7T HK$’000 F 7% 7T
At 1 January 2019742019181 H 2,011,967 1,680
Profit for the year & 78 555,399 -
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UAREBESEEESHHAAMFERENEREEAABEED - (4,485)
Dividends paid (Note 14) 2% & (K 14) (795,245) -
At 31 December 2019 A 2019512 H 31 H 1,772,121 (2,805)
At 1 January 2020 /42020%1 B 1 H 1,772,121 (2,805)
Profit for the year & E 78 511,161 -
Change in fair value of financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
UARBEFEEHEHTARMASRENSREEAABEEZE - (4,875)
Dividends paid (Note 14) 2B & (KfzE14) (192,533) -
At 31 December 2020 42020512 5 31 H 2,090,749 (7,680)
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INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

INVESTOR CALENDAR

13 August 2020
11 March 2021
28 May 2021

24 May to 28 May 2021
(Both days inclusive)

3 June to 7 June 2021
(Both days inclusive)

7 June 2021
On or before 30 June 2021

SHARE INFORMATION

Company Name
Listing

Stock Code

GEM Listing Date

Transferred from GEM to
Main Board Date

Lot Size

Issued Share Capital
as at 31 December 2020

2020 interim results announcement
2020 annual results announcement
Annual General Meeting

Closure of Register of Members (for determination of shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at annual general meeting)

Closure of Register of Members (for determination of shareholders who qualify for
the final dividend)

Record Date (for determination of shareholders who qualify for the final dividend)

Payment of final dividend

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited
The Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
3613

7 May 2013

29 May 2018

1,000 shares
837,100,000

INVESTOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT

Room 1405-1409, Office Tower, Convention Plaza

1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2881 7989
Fax: (852) 2881 0839

xEaHE

202048 A13H
202153A11H
20215 5A28H

202155H24HE5H28H
(BEEEMA)

20216 A3HE6ATH
(BEERWA)

20216 H7H
202156 A30 H= z Al

RINER
DB

i)

BRI

GEM 7 B £
HGEMEZ iR A

= oo

BEEEN
M2020F12A31 82
ERITRAE

XE &R RS

B EEME R

SRESH D KE1405-1409F

BEE  (852) 2881 7989
f#H : (852) 2881 0839

XEBE&M

2020 FHHEAEBE NS
2020 F FEEBENE
BRBEFASE

TEMERMEFECTFE(REFREERRBERS
YREEREZRR)

TEMERMBFELTFE (RESERBWERAREN
MR

i A H (RESERKERBRENBRR)

RIS RER B

ERE-EREARAR
BERBMERZARARER
3613

2013 5A7H
201855829 A

1,000 B% A% 19
837,100,000 %

Email: ir@tongrentangcm.com B3 : ir@tongrentangcm.com
Website: cm.tongrentang.com #4k © cm.tongrentang.com
SHAREHOLDERS SERVICE AND ENQUIRIES AR R ARTS IR &5

BH BTREEAMESIMUEZTE  ROER BLAREIREIZNECRZNEFE
RHBRE)NER  BHEALRARONBLERBFE

For enquiries about your shareholding including change of name or address, transfer of shares, loss of share certificates or
dividend cheques, registrations and requests for annual/interim report copies, please contact the Company’s share
registrar and transfer office:

EBPREFETARDT
EBEIEREARBEER183%
BB N171712-1716 554

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8555 B 1 (852) 2862 8555

Fax: (852) 2865 0990/2529 6087 fEH : (852) 2865 0990/2529 6087
Email: hkinfo@computershare.com.hk B : hkinfo@computershare.com.hk
Website: www.computershare.com #3k © www.computershare.com
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ding Yong Ling (Chairman)
Chen Fei

Lin Man

Independent Non-executive Directors
Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper

Zhao Zhong Zhen

Chan Ngai Chi

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chan Ngai Chi (Chairman)
Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper
Zhao Zhong Zhen

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper (Chairman)
Chan Ngai Chi
Ding Yong Ling

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Zhao Zhong Zhen (Chairman)
Chan Ngai Chi
Ding Yong Ling

COMPANY SECRETARY

Tsang Fung Yi

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Ding Yong Ling
Lin Man

STOCK CODE

3613

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

cm.tongrentang.com

REGISTERED ADDRESS

Room 1405-1409, Office Tower
Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP
Suite 3203-3207

32/F

Edinburgh Tower

The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

22nd Floor, Prince’s Building

Central, Hong Kong

Annual Report 2020
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GLOSSARY

AGM
Articles of Association

Audit Committee
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group

Board
CG Code
Code Provision(s)

Company or TRTCM

Company Secretary

Competition Executive Committee

Competition Supervisory Committee

Controlling Shareholders
Director(s)

EGM(s)

ESG

Executive Director(s)
Listing Rules

GLSPC

Group, we or us
Hong Kong or HKSAR
HK$

Independent Non-executive Director(s)
or INED(s)

Model Code

Macao

Annual general meeting of the Company

Articles of Association of the Company

An audit committee of the Company, consists of Chan Ngai Chi, Tsang Yok
Sing, Jasper and Zhao Zhong Zhen, and is chaired by Chan Ngai Chi

Tong Ren Tang Holdings, its subsidiaries, its jointly controlled entities and its
associates (including the Group)

The board of directors of the Company

Corporate Governance Code, Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

Code Provisions in the CG Code

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited, a limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong, the shares of which were listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange on 7 May 2013 and were transferred to Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 29 May 2018

The company secretary of the Company

A competition executive committee of the Company, consists of Chan Fei and
Lin Man

A competition supervisory committee of the Company, consists of Tsang Yok
Sing, Jasper, Zhao Zhong Zhen and Chan Ngai Chi, and is chaired by Tsang
Yok Sing, Jasper

Tong Ren Tang Ltd., Tong Ren Tang Technologies and Tong Ren Tang
Holdings

Director(s) of the Company, including all executive directors and independent
non-executive directors

Extraordinary general meeting(s) of the Company

Environmental, Social and Governance

The executive director(s) of the Company

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Main Board of the Exchange

Sporoderm-broken Ganoderma Lucidum Spores Powder Capsules
manufactured by the Company

The Company and its subsidiaries

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong

The independent non-executive director(s) of the Company

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

The Macao Special Administrative Region of the PRC

264 Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited | Annual Report 2020

RERBFRE

tRECEER

Esg

P

il

&<t Al

PRI

RABRE-EHEE

ERRR

BRERFERAE

R -HERER

HITES

AEE R KM

58

BT

BYFHITES

ofll 58

RABRRBEFRE
ARBRESEREME

RRBZEREES  REBERRH - BEARBEF
¥ - BHBRERBLIEEERE

BCERELR  HNBQE HARZHEERHB
ZA(BEAREE)

KRR ESE
LHRBIM 14 FTR 2 R EER A
ERTFRIP 2T AKX

ERECEREERAT  —RREBEMARLZBR

AR ERMHR2013FE5 7B REBERFIGEM £ »
WHR2018FE5 B 20 HEFBRArEMR LT

AR ZHFEREZET  HEGEEHER - BPRR
BREREL - HEHEREETRE

BCERD B CEMNKRECERELF
RRBESE BEFMEUTESRBIFUTES
RABRREFBIARE

KRB ZHITES

R P EMRE S LR A

ARBFEENBRESSHIHEE

PEIEBERITRE
BBEEERET

RRBBIFATES

FHBRTAESETESZRZNRESTE
HHEDRPIHE BT R B

ERACEREFRAR | —Z-TFFRK

265



GLOSSARY

Mainland China

Nomination Committee

Non-PRC market
Owned Product(s)

Parent Group

PRC
Prospectus

Remuneration Committee

SFO

Share(s)

Shareholder(s)

Stock Exchange or Exchange

Tai Po Production and R&D Base

TCM

Tong Ren Tang

Tong Ren Tang Holdings or
TRT Holdings

Transfer of Listing

TRT International Natural-Pharm

Tong Ren Tang Ltd. or TRT Ltd.

Tong Ren Tang Technologies or
TRT Technologies

US or United States

Year

PRC but excluding Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan region for the purpose of
this annual report

A nomination committee of the Company, consists of Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper,
Chan Ngai Chi and Ding Yong Ling, and is chaired by Tsang Yok Sing, Jasper

Markets outside of the Mainland China

The product(s) manufactured by the Group

Tong Ren Tang Holdings, its subsidiaries, its jointly controlled entities and its
associates (other than the Group)

The People’s Republic of China

Prospectus of the Company dated 25 April 2013

A remuneration committee of the Company, consists of Zhao Zhong Zhen,
Chan Ngai Chi and Ding Yong Ling, and is chaired by Zhao Zhong Zhen

Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571

Share(s) of the Company

Shareholder(s) of the Company

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

The research and development and production base of the Company located
at Tai Po Industrial Estate in Hong Kong

Traditional Chinese medicine

Beijing Tong Ren Tang

China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co., Ltd., a state-owned enterprise
established in the PRC on 17 August 1992 and is the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company

the transfer of listing of the Shares from GEM to the Main Board pursuant to
Chapter 9A of the Main Board

Beijing Tong Ren Tang International Natural-Pharm Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited, a joint stock limited company
established in the PRC on 18 June 1997, the shares of which have been listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange since 1997, and is the intermediate holding
company of the Company

Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd., a joint stock limited company
established in the PRC on 22 March 2000, the H shares of which have been
listed on GEM since 2000 and have been transferred to the Main Board since
July 2010, and is the immediate holding company of the Company

The United States of America

Fiscal year from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
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Where the English and the Chinese texts conflict, the English text prevails.
MERANB MBI E - BEAZESRAAELE -

This Annual Report is printed on environmentally friendly paper
RERURRERDE
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